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ASSEMELYMAN KENNETH T. WILSON., (Chairman): We
are now going to resume our hearing on Assembly Bill 2212;
which was held September 22nd, by the Assembly Committee on
Air, Water Pollution and Public Health. |

I am Kenneth T. Wilson, Chairman of the Committee,
from Essex County. On my left is Assemblyman Kiehn, Union
County: and on my right is Assemblyman Fay of Middlesex
County. ' |
’ We are going to hold witnesses to five minutes.
If your statement is longer than five minutes, your complete
statement will be entered in the record and you can summarize
it so you won't take longer than five minutes.

The first witness will be Assemblyman Cafiero,

from Cape May~Cumberland Counties.

JAMES CAFIERDO: Mr. Chairman and members of

the Committee: I wish to go on record and wholeheartedly

join my colleague, Assemblyman James R. Hurley, in the remarks
he made on September 22nd of 1971, in opposition to Assembly
Bill 2212. ’

If this bill were to bécome law, it would do
immediate, immeasurable and irreparable harm to a leading
industry in our district which employs approximately 25
per cent of the total labor force in Cumberland County.

The impact of this legislation upon the economy and employment
situation in our district could well be disastrous.

Furthermore, I seriously question the constitutionality
of such a propdsal. The authority for laws of this nature
is found in the police power of the State and, therefore.must
be based upon a reasonable and logical application of that
power. '

This bill is clearly and obviously an anti-pollution
measure and while its purposes are commendable, the content
of the containers in my opinion bears no reasonable relation-
ship whatsoever to the litter power of the container in
which it is packaged. Therefore, limiting this bill to

- beverages is highly discriminatory a@d anr unreasonable arbitrary
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and unconstitutional exercise of that police power. I

think you gentlemen are aware that the Legislature recently
enacted two amendments to the Disorderly Persons Act which
made it a disorderly persons offense for anyone to discard
abandoned refrigerators with the doors remaining on; and
another bill that we passed within the last year or two,
making it a disorderly persons offense to discard TV tubes
intact. Both of these bills were passed because of the
potential dangers to children. Now if those particular
bills provided that only GE refrigerators would be affected
or only RCA picture tubes would be affected because perhaps
maybe those two manufacturers happen to produce the greatest
number of refrigerators and the greatest number of TV tubes,
it would obviously be discriminatory. I think if that logian
were applied to those bills, that is the same logic that is
being applied to this one when we use as a measure ofvthe
litter power whatever the content of these containers may
be. |

To overcome that constitutional barrier, this bill
would have to apply equally to each and every product
packaged and sold in non-returnable containers, including
but not limited to foodstuffs, such as canned soups, baby
food, pickles, catsup, fruits, candies, etc., as well as
cosmetics, medicines, detergents and cleaning supplies, as
well as thousands and thousands of other products packaged
in non-returnable containers. :To broaden the scope of this
bill to encompass all these items would be absurd and throw
the entire State and our industrial complex into a state of
turmoil and chaos.

Considering the fact that non-returnable beverage
bottles represent less than 3 per cent of the roadside litter,
passage of this bill in its present form would legislate
them out of existence and leave 97 per cent of the problem
unsolved. d

In my opinion, the answer lies in educating the
public and adopting and enforcing realistic and practical

laws against littering.- ‘the problem is in my opinion a

R ‘



people problem and not a litter problem - also in improving
techniques of solid waste collection and disposal, and, thirdly,
recognizing the potential in availing ourselves of the
techniques of the recycling process.

Each of us began our conscious:.lives by being exposed

to the basic 3 R's. I think that mankind has reached that
stage in history of the world that the 3 R's should perhaps
be increased to 6, by the addition of reclamation, recycling
and reuse. Perhaps therein lies our hope for survival.
~ Thank you‘very much. ,
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman, you seem to more
or less stress the fact of litter. Do you think the intent
of the bill is in the main more or less to reduce litter or
is it more involved with solid waste disposal?

ASSEMBLYMAN CAFIERO: Well, I think it is a two-pronged
attack, but I tﬁink it is aimed at some 3 per cent of the problem
and I think it is an unfair approach to penalize this particular
industry which contributes such.a small amount to the ‘total
problem, and I think the answer to the problem should be
directed at 100 per cent of the problem which I feel is in
the field of education of the public and recycling, reuse
and better methods of solid waste disposal.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No response.)
Thank you very much.

Mrs. Masterson.- (Not present.)

Mrs. Kline. (Not present.)

Mrs. Duzinski. (Not present.)

Mrs. Allan Wallace. (Not present.)

~ Mrs. Waterman.
SUSANNA WATERMA N: I am Susanna Waterman
of Princeton and before I introduce the group that I
represent today, I would also like to speak for the New
Jersey Federation of Sportsmen's Clubs. Mr. Thomas‘Gopsill
gave me authority to speak for that club, with a membership
of 33,000, in support of this bill.



| I am a resident and property owner in
Princeton, It is a pleasure to appsar before the committee 1in
support of Assembly Bill 2212, In the light of dramatic increases
pro jected for per capita consumption of béveragéé, and the
present trend away Froh réturnabla‘bottles~toward non-returnable
cans and bottles, The Conservation Coalition believes that
the>envifonmental degradation and increased costs imposed
upon the society by the non-returnables are no longer accsptable,
This legislation would reduce the volume of solid waste and would
encourage the :ignsumer to return his beverage container td the
store. In the nétions' most heavily populated state, this
would have a significant effect on landfill, waste disposal, and.
taxes spent on waste, A mandatory deposit now will be the first small

step in a realistic approach to solid waste control,

The Conservation Coalition is a nonnpfofit organization which
promotes activities concerning thé protection of the snvironment.
Although it has never advertised publicly for support, citizens
have come from almost all the’municipalities in Mercer County
to develop the programs we now sponsor., The present aim of the
Coalition is to gain support and initiate legislation to:

1) prohibit the sale of non-returnable beverage cnntainers

2) establish a deposit of not less than 5¢ or more than

10¢ on any returnable beverage container
3) inéugerate municipal collection of trash which has

been separated in the household

4) encourage regional solid waste management for Mercer
County with emphasis on the recyclable goods and

their disposition



The Conservation Coelition has representative members from the
following organizations: Princeton University Environmental Advisory
Board, the South New Jersey Group of the Sierra Club, Princston
Wildlife Refuge, Stonybrook Garden Club, Trenton Naturalist

Club, Princeton Unitarian Church, University League Garden Club,
Stonybrook Watershed's Association, West Windsor Envirbmmeﬂtal Protection
League, Whole Earth Center of Princeton, Zero Population Growth,
Princeton Branch of the American Association of University

Women, Ecoloqgy Action of Princeton University, Garden Club of
Princeton, Friday Club of Hightstown, East Windser

Hightstown Coalition, Marquand Park Foundation, Student CoUncil

of Princeton High School, Princeton Board of tHe YWCA, and

the friends of the Princeton Environment. fMany individuals

who do not represent any group also belong.

The Coalition is a county-wide working organization. It has:

1) instigqted recycling programs in many of Mercer County-'s
MUnicipalities --a total of 10,000 families are cooperating.

2) gathered 2,500 signaturesvin the Princeton area where the

) population is less than 25,000 -- all in support of legislation

, égainsf non-returnables

3) encouraged citizens to write the dozens of letters on file
in the municipal offices supporting such legislation.

4) encouraged resolutions petitioning the state for action
against non-returnables, I have copies of the resolutioné

from Princeton Borough and Township with me today for the

record.



S§) spearheaded the effort to introduce legislatien into the
govérnments against throw-aways and for municipal collection
of separated trash, Councilman John Strange of the Borough

has drafted ordinances to this effect in Princston.

The Coalition has also written a position paper on the non-re-

turnable bottle versus the returnable. As it is of considerable
(over twenty pages) ,

length, we shall not include it in our public statement, but

shall enter it into the record, and hope it will be of use to you,

The issue at staké this morning is essentially a confrontation
between the freedom of business to earn as high a profit as pos=
sible and the responsibility business has to society even tﬁaugh
it may interfere with that profit. 1In other words, can business
be conducted as usual when it becomes increasingly clear that

it is at the expense of the public good? Increased awareness

of the hidden costs to sobiety, both economic and envirenmental,
has brought this into focus. There are businesses all over the
country that are being made to comply with new saFetybstandards- and
air and water ppllution control which may impede the proFit
structure, buE?ﬁde been legislated for the public good. The
automobdle industry has been forced by legiélatioﬁ to take costly
steps which it is douthul‘would have been made by the industry's
own choige. It is our conviction that the unlimited prnduttion
of "throw-away" beverage containers,‘while produciﬁg maximum
\prbfits for the industry , is unnecessary,and tha£ thefe is an

alternative which is economically feasible and environmentaliy

soundesess the returnable bottls .



Industry promotion combined with public acceptance bas, in 25
years, created.the "throw-away"” container and, until recently,
left the returnable behind. Even ten years ago, the returnable
was a familiar market product, but today 80% of the soft drink
bottles manufactured are non-returnables, and 50% of all cans

“manufactured go for soft drinks and beer and they are all throw-
aways The more expensive (8.5¢ to 9¢) returnable was left

behind for fhe thinner throw-away (3.5¢ to 4¢) bottle when the
can people developed the technology to keep carbonated beverages)
and convenience was king. Business has been so good,Ain fact,
that the large container companies have invested heavily in
bhigh-volume packaging lines for non-returnables. According to

a reliable bottler from Pennsylvania,the gentleman who was

here last week and.spoke at this hearing,it is not unusual for a

small bottler to be told simply that the returnable bottles are
no longer available, and in his need to meet a production schedule,
that bottler is often forced into buying non-returnables whether
he wants them or not. It is not unheard of for delivery on
returnables to be deferred long enough to have the same effect,
Inasmuch as the beverage container market is the last growth
potential which the industry now sees ahead of them, it is under-
standable that they seek the highest potential profit == but

at the cost of the small bottler who prefers returnables.

Going on down the line with the non-returnable container, the
supermarket puts the pressure on the returnable container, too.

He doesn't want the inconvenience of extra storage and the added
labor of approximately 4 a man (in a large supermarket ). Under the
threat of replacing the small bottlers brands with special

private label brands, he forces the returnable out,



The returnable bottle is an old idea, but it has a new look,

With the daily trash quotient, which is something over five pounds
per day already, rising 4% per year, the beverage non~returnable
container production increase is almost 8%. - Because it promises
to increase its 5% hold on the solid waste mass, ths non-return-
able is destined to be the bad quy, and the returnable, whether one.
likes it or not, be=comes an increasingly sensible alternative,
Inasmuch as a well-treated returnable container can make as many
as forty trips back to the bottling plant, while a non- returnable
only makes one one-way trip, a difference of billions of solid
waste beverage containers is at stake., The Council on Environ-
mental Quality states that the 100 billion non-returnables
predicted by industry could be cut to 6 billion if restrictions

were adopted. The returnable bottle looks better and better...

Even it there weren't so many of them, the "throw-away" containers
are an expensive nuisance.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mrs. Waterman, you have about 2
minutes if you want to sum it up. I am giving you 10 minutes.

MRS. WATERMAN: I would like to say that I spent the
entire day here last week and there were many speakers who spoke
a great deal longer than five minutes and I would appreciate it
if you gave me an extension to completelmy testimony.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: ' I am going to limit everyone. We
want to get through this testimony. As I said, we are going to
have this printed verbatim. It will be entered into the record
and we will have opportunity to read it when it is printed. 1In
some cases, I let the legislators speak longer. Mr. Seales spoke
over that period of time, but in the main, I think we held them
down, as far as reading prepared statements. If there are questions
from members of the Committee, of course, they may ask them. But
as far as reading your statement, we are going to have it printed
verbatim. : | |



MRS. WATERMAN: I certainly will complybwith youxr
wishes, but I would like to say that I consider that unfair
inasmuch as other citizens, aside from Assemblymen, have
had longer than 5 or 10 minutes, as was indicated last
week, for a number of speakers from the opposing side.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: We will limit you to 10
minutes@ So you have 2 more minutes to summarize.

MRS. WATERMAN: Even 1if there weren't so many of
them, the "throw-away" containers are an expensive nuisance.
They cost more to buy (from 2¢ to 4¢ a bottle), they cost
more in waste disposal, which is incidentally the third
highest item on most mﬁnicipal budgets, and they end up in
incinerators as over 50 per cent of the remaining weight
in residue. ‘

New Jersey would do well not to count on a boundless
and bountiful supply of landfill as a repository for unbridled
consumer and industry indulgence. The Environmental Protection
Agency says that the entire East Coast will have run out
of landfill and dumping sites in the next fifteen years.
Advanced technology will surely help in future solid waste
management, and it is perfectly true that the collection and
disposal of refuse has hardly changed in a thousand years.
But it is unlikely that in a world of diminishing natural
resources and increasing population (the world population
will double in 30 years) the great American "Dream Machine,”
consuming everything and spewing out neat packages of sorted
trash could ever give us license to waste.

Is it up to the society to absorb an unending and
indiscriminate outpouring of goods? Is more better? Is bigger
better? What, if anything, will stop the American consumer
from spiralling his private garbage pile to 8 pounds per
day (predicted) and then to 10 pounds, etc.? Inasmuch as
the cost of absorption rises commensurately with the need
to absorb, it would seem economic and sensible to choose
areas within the society where consumption could reasonably

be slowed down. Again, the returnable bottle, a tried and

9



true system of multi-reuse, no-loss, no-gain deposit for the
consumer, would be a good place to start.

I wiil skip my comment on litter, which essentially
says that it depends on whose figures ydubuSe as to what the
proportion of litter is. ' ’

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mrs. Waterman, I will ask you

some questions.
MRS. WATERMAN: May I read my recommendations about

the bill and my closing statement, please?
(Following is the portion of Mrs. Waterman's statement

which she did not read:)
It would be impossible to cohplete this statement without
a comment on the litter situation, It is a basic fact that litter
costs the nation about 5500 milllion per year. Even if only‘Z%
of the projected beverage throw-awéys become litter, that makes
2 billion of them to pick up at a cost of from 15¢ to 30¢ a
piece. It is also a basic fact that people litter and we do not
think that is likely to change without a great deal more educafion.
Depending on whose study you use, the percentages of containers
from non-returnables rises and falls like the barometer. The

famous 1969 Keep America Beautiful Study says one thing...bottles
s of .

.+ _ ¥, 16% together
and cans are only 22:/0? the litter. It would be worth mentioning,

however, that Keep America Beautiful is an off=shoct oF‘the Glass

Container Manufacturers Institute, whose members produce 90% of

the glass inbthe United States, It is possible that the figures

are biased, It is pertinent for us to use the 1970 study by

volume analysis made in Vermont last Spring. Volunteers collected
) ONE DAY

40,006 cubic yards of litter, of which 90% consisted of non-

returnable cans and bottles. In 1969 New Jersey spent

$610,000 to pick up bottles and cans along 2,000 miles of highway.,

10



The simple fact remains that as beverage container production

goes up, it is ;1kely that litter from them will also increase.

It is the firm conviction of the Coalition that recycling, as
it pertains to the beverage container industries, is an environ-
mental smokeescreen., Ffor the glass industries, who are already
fighting the incursion of the can into their market} and for
the metal container industries, who are planning growth leaps

to encourage recycling
with on=-site plants in the future, it is perhaps cheaperAthan
to buck legislation designed to control production, Vast outputs
of propaganda and some effort have gone into luring the consumer
into the re-cycling net. _But every citizen who has worked a
long hard day on a voluﬁteer recycling program knows that the
core of the problem is the handling and shipping of the collected
material, It is not the citizens duty to be volunteer trash col-
léctors. There is little or no incentive at the sale end of the
recycled goods, and industry, with all the protests of deing the
environment a service, has nat been willing to qgrapple with that

crucial issue -- the handling and moving of recycled goods and

the ensuing efforts and costs involved.

It is incomprehensible to imagine that the consumer will acceht

the inherent contradiction in the container industry recycling pro-
gram, an the one hand, millions of dollars are being spent to
encourage the consumer to buy the “convenient no-deposit no=-

return throw-away container”., It is more expensive to buy, but

the convenience of being able to throw it away is worth it, they séy.
Othhe other hand, they are ésking for those same containers back;

for recycling, Having paid more for them, the consumer is asked to
11



- forego the very thing he paid for, and to carry them back to the

industry where thsy ﬁill_get less than %¢ for the effort.

The "throw-away" catch-word is beginning to catch up with
itself, The citizen is béginning to rsalize that thefe is no
"away", that as often as not tﬂe gurchase of diéposables brings
less qualiﬁy for more money, and that the garbage he is left
with, in the delightful and rueful words of the CAN newspaper,

is "gone today, here tomorrow". There is no escapeesses

A company in lMassachussetts s 'ays they are making a cellulose
fiber bottle that you can eat, Another is making one that will
melt when exposed to air. Neither of these containers posesba
threat to the container industries today. The gentleman Qith
the plastic bottle, however, could spell the end of the
beverage container market for both metals and glass, We oppose
the plastic bottle on the grounds that it is composed of crude
oil ~-with less than 30 years supply 1lsft at present rate of
consumption, this would seem an unwise shift, But who is going
to prohibit the plastic bottle from moving into the beverage
market? Derhéps the container industries will bhe Forced into
new and creative markets %or their products. PerhS%s the glass

manufacturers will realize that they are actually the only one

in the industry with the capacity for re-use and capitalize on

it as aqénvironmentally sound kind of package.

The returnable container does begin to have a new look. Because
an initial deposit, preferably 5¢ for bottles up to 16 ounces,
and 10¢ for anything larger than that, has been made, the

bottle is already valuable enough to be treated with some considera-

12



tion., Inasmuch as industry sold the American public on the
throw-away, it is perfectly possible that an advertising campaign

could be launched to sell the returnable.

If Bill 2212 is passed, it is certain that there would be an
industry-wide readjustment to make., The container people would

be making fewer beverage containers, but imaginative pioneering
should create new products, The distributor will have greatér
moving costs because returnables require a 2 to 1 space ratio to
non-returnables. He will need more storage. The bottler will
require more help, thus taking up some of the slack from the
container industries, if indeed, it proved that there was some,
The retailer would need more storage,and be slightly inconveh-
ienced. Any increased costs in the line of productioﬁ and deliver-
y_to the consumer would follow the time-worn patterh of every |
product on the American market =--the consumer would pay for it,

and there is little chance of him not. The development in the near
future of reclamation markets would also provide new work for

any displaced labor,

The small bottler stands to do well with teturnables IF he is able

to keep the number of trips which his bottles make high. With a

heavy investment in container inventories, he will count on their
return for his profit., As the trips each container makes in-
creases, so does his profit. wifhout a high enough incentive

to 1nsuré réturn,'and a phblic who cooperates in the return

of thésa more expensive containers, the small bottler would be
out of business in a few months. It is easy to undefstaﬁd why

small bottlers, in the throes of the disposable society and

13



with contaiﬁer manufacfur;fsiqﬁﬁﬁne'énd'préssingkthem to buy
non-raturnables_énd retailérs dn £hé‘dthef end making it difficult
for them to present their proddété fa%ﬁy dn the market shelf,

are reluctant to speak up on this issue., It is valuable to note
that one small bottler who prefers to stay with returnables, asked
the National Soft Orink Association teo rum a survey of the bottlers
in this country requesting their preference between returnable

adn non=-returnable pontainers. The Association refused to do

this survey, and the gentleman in question proceded to conduct it
himself, He sent out almost 4,000 survey sheets all over the
United States, His return mail is running five to one in favor

of returnable containers,

It is often suggested that tHe deposit structure would impose
a hardship on the consumer. Aside from the fact that the pur-
chaser can at any time regain his money, it is estimated that
the normal investment in containers per family would not exceed

2,50 at any time.

The consumer, as a matter of fact, is the one who profits most
from returnable containers. He will pay as huch as 25% less

for his beverages. HMe will save 51.5 billion of grocery money

each year. He will save 25 million dollars for beveraqge container
pick=-up along the nations highways;land his municipal costs.For

waste disposal will be 1éssened becéuse of volume feduction.

14



(Reading)

The Coalition believas that the beverage industry is om;nently

qualified to use the returnable.containnrﬂsystem. If haaaddne

so successf‘dlly in the past, and it is one of thé few built=in Pzpbuc.ﬁol\’
systems where re-use is possible. For industry to call this

legislation discriminatory is incorrect. The legislative premise

stands that application of a sound solution to a limited patt

of the problem is a way to attack the problem. It is the

beginning of re~use and re=-cycling as a way of life, - S

As environmental deterioration spreads around us, it becomes
increasingly clear that we must act, It is ndf”enough that we
offer our good will, In order that we all cafry responsibilities
for aur actiong, we must observe the problem, and all take our
proper place in their solutions. It would be prudent for the
soft drink and brewery industries to recqgniie that the very

fact that we are here today, and that Assembly Bill 2212 is before
you, is a signal of public distress which is not likely to go
away.. Improved waste disposal systemsvand‘recycling of‘some.
things are surely going to play a lafge part in.solving the solid
waste crisis, However, these are not aiternatives to the
intelligent RE = USE of commodities,ilike béverage containérs;
which can be :e-used. We must learn to ra-uée what we can, .
re-cycle what we cannot re-use, and to manage the remaining

waste intelligently.

15



The Coalition has several recommendations to maks:

Assembly Bill 2212 should be amended as Followsx

1) only soft drinks and malt baverages should be included in
the bill

2) the focus of the bill be redirected towards re-use rather
than returnability

3) definition of terms be more clearly stated

4) careful study of the Bowie, Maryland and Oregon State
bill for enlargement and more detailed construction

5) prohibition of any container with'ﬁwo-pbce construction (pull-tabs)

Other recommendations;

That the legislature make a job study of the effects of such a
bill on the glass and metal container industries in NJ., This
would ensure the factual analysis of possible job loss or gain
in a highly volatile area of the issus

That the state legislature make a through study of packaging and
its real costs to the taxpayer and that it recommend an approach
to the requlation of this problem on a state-wide level

That the legislature give top priority to the development of
markets which would encourage the reclaiming and recycling of
solid waste, Particular attention should be paid to all metals,
which should by law be totally recycled.

That the state ban throw-aways in state-owned parks and lands
(Maryland has already done this)

That the legislature consider the long-tihe needs as well as the
current ones of this state,

That this committee gather the resolutions from other municipalities
which have been sent to the state in recommending state action
on non-returnables

That this law, with the considerations listed above be passed, and
that it be administered by the Department of Environmental
Protection,

(Resolutions passed by the Borough of Princeton and
the Township of Princeton submitted by Mrs. Waterman
‘can be found on pages 180 and 181, respectively.)

16



ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mrs. Waterman, 1n ycur statament
you say that your Coalition believes that recycling is en
environmental smoke screen. Would you elaborate cn that,
please?

MRS. WATERMAN: Yes. May I read it from my scate-
ment? The essehtial_problem in recycling is that the major
problems are incurred betwe@@ the time the containers,
which we are asked to bring back and have paid a larger
price for in the first place, but are asked to take some
place even more inconveniéent than the grocery store =--

They are taken to a reclamation center which in our area is

~a totally volunteer operation. I have worked on it for a

year myself and it is hot. grubby., tiring work. I don't

feel that it is the citizen's responsibility to be the
nation's garbage keépe‘rq The municipality in Princeton is

in the process of taking over separated gcods, scme separated
goods; and as a matter of fact. some of our people today are
at a meeting we arranged with a man from Hempstead, Long Islanc,
who is running an. @conomically successful program of curis—
side collection. We feel all the container industries have
spent a great deal of money propagandizing the recycling
operations. They have been of some help. They have made

some gestures. However, they have never offered us any trucks
to come and pick up 40&000 pounds of glass. and therein liecs
the catch. '

The transportation of solid waste is 80 per cent cf
the solid waste disposal cost and that cost must be naintainead
by someone. It is either the taxpayer who pays for the
disposal to get rid of all this stuff or., as far as recycling
is concerned, it is the volunteer work that fills that eccneomic
gap. We don't feel that industry is making any more tharn
a signal gesture in this field because the problem lies in
that area. Once you get the container, you have taken
something out of it, and what do you do with it then? The
industry is only willing to accept it, but it has not made

any effort to cover the cost of collecting it and carting r:.
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I know there are some reclamétion cehters - I think
there may be a hundred all over the country - and tha£ is
pretty far away to carry your disposals.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have one gquestion. You say
that it is too far away to carry disposals when reclamation
centers are located far away. Is it any more costly than
it ‘'would be to ship returnables to a brewery that is located
six states away? . ' '

MRS. WATERMAN: It depends on who' is paying the
cost. One of the reasons that the brewery is six states
away is that with the increase in non-returnables, the
industries have become much more centralized and organized.
As a matter of fact, that has been the demise of many of the
small bottlers. They no longer can compete with the large
breweries and the large soft drink people who are now moving
into this on a regional basis.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: You mentioned,' Mrs. Waterman,
that you attended last Wednesday’s meeting.

MRS. WATERMAN: Yes. B

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: T would be interested in your
opinion of the Pepsimcéla situation in Manhattan. _

MRS, WATERMAN: That is a very famous survey and
again it depends on who is telling the story. When you are
dealingbwith a menﬁal image of throwwaways which has been
offered by the induStries for 20 years, it is rather ridiculous
to assume that you are going to achieve 100 per cent returns
when you are dealing with a new-ccncept poorly advertised,
in a big c1ty° '

It is also true that those bottles are not necessarily
lost just because they didﬂ“t c©me in in the 6-month period.
It doesn't mean that those are a total loss to the company.
And it is also true that even durlng that study, many of the
super markets rgfused to take the bottles because that was a
test area and a single-shot deal and all the supermarkets
wouldn't take them. It Was a'very difficult survey to get
anything but the kind of statistics that are usually given
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for that survey. We consider that a pocrly run and rather
a fraudulent survey frankly. '
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have one other guestion.
Then you feel that the utilization of returnable bottles
would be more effective 1f they were forced upon the people?
MRS. WATERMAN: That is not really a very fair question
because we say that non-returnables are being forced upon
the people. There is always a difference of opinion on this
issue and it would be very difficult to prove. I think
public apathy and public willingness to be seduced into
conveniences has been very much part of the problem. I
think that industry would not in any way say they also were
not part of the conveniehce syndrome. It has been pressed
on the nation for 20 years. We have a great many statistics
of the amounts of money. In 1969, I think it was 7-Up
spent $7 1/2 million trying to sell non-returnables to the
young. As a matter of fact, you have the newspaper articles
and you have information on that in your fact sheets that
we compiled last year. I won't go into details. But when
you talk abecut forcing things onto the public, I would say
that industry has done a very thorough job of spending.
fabulous amounts of money and time and effort on just that.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I wonder then why the Coca-Cola
Company, whose regional représentative when he was hekre
indicated that they had the largest returnable bottle program
of any producer, continues to f£ind their returnable bottle
sales diminishing day by day, to their detriment. |
MRS. WATERMAN: I think this is the kind of thing
you can separate from a total problem and say. here is
someone who is trying and isn't succeeding. You will remember
in my statement, I suggestéd that goodwill is not sufficient.
One company is not going to be able to turn the tide. Again
the mehtality of the nation at this point is a disposable
-one and we feel that it is no longer a viable one.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: No further guestions.
ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Mrs. Waterman, I appreciate

your comments and recommendations and they will be given
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consideration when we deliberate. But in line with what
Assemblyman Black has said, I have this letter that came
in from Canada-Dry in Neptune, New Jérsey¢ which is
probably a smaller area, and they stated that the reason .
they have gone to non-returnable bottles is the fact that
during the year when returnable bottles were in vogue, let
us say, they had sold 600,000 cases of Canada-Dry and the
reason they had to go to the non-returnable bottles was
due to the fact that only 275,000 cases were actually
returned of the 600,000, _

MRS. WATERMAN: Do you know what date that is?

When did that happen? | | |

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: While returnable bottles were
in vogue, I said. Their letter is dated September 13th.

MRS. WATERMAN: I would be interested in knowing
when that happened because up until about 10 years.ago,
this was generally true, that returnable bottles were still
available. As a matter of fact, in many parts of the
country they are still a higher percentage than non-returnables.
The East happens to be a particularly disposable section of
the nation.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I intend to contact this
particular gentleman. If you want to contact him, his name
is Herald Garbarine.

MRS. WATERMAN: I will. I don't mean at any time
in my testimony to say that the consumer is not at fault.

I think that this is not a question of one person beingv
totally to blame for a situation which has become intolerable,
but I contend also that the industry has not done its part

to give either the bottler or the consumer who wants return-
ables a chance to purchase them. It is impossible to
purchase a Pepsi—Cola in this state in returnable bottles
unless it has been brought in from another state. This is
becoming increasingly true of other sodas. A suxrvey of
Princeton shows that it is almost impossible for the consumer

to have a choice. When the induétry talks about a choice,
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they are purposely preventing the citizen from having a
choice. There is no choice.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Mrs. Waterman, your organization
recommends a study of the factor of unemployment and under -
employment and also the impact on the cost of living to
the consumer. Is it your recommendation that these studies
should be made before legislation is pasSed?

MRS. WATERMAN: Well, I would say, as far as
the jobs are concerned, after the testimony last week, it
becomes evident £hat there is a great deal of excitement
about job loss.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: If you are going to be unemployed,
that is natural.

MRS, WATERMAN: I understand that. That is why
I am saying it would be prudent and sensible for the Committee
to make a specific study on this issue to ascertain whether
there, indeed, would be a job loss, so that it is simply not
just one person's statement. When you think of returnable
containers and you realize it will cut glass production -
there is no denying that - in that area of the glass industry,
either glass production comes up with another answer to a
growth factor or there will be job loss.

Now the gentleman who was here last week with the
plastic bottle would seem to me to be a greater threat to
the container industry than the returnable bottle. And T
would suggest to the glass manufacturers, inasmuch as they
are the only people who at this point have the capacity
to have a reusable container, that they would be wise to use
this as an environmentally sound idea for further growth.

I think the temper of the people is changing. With the 18-
year-old vote, I think it is worthy of note that the
continual disposability of life and goods is up for question
now. I would suggest to the glass manufacturers that they
do some creative thinking in new fields of growth. Because
the beverage container was their last growth factor and the
HEW report says that.
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ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you very much, Mrs.
Waterman. Your whole statement will be entered in the
record.

Mr. Zillwager of the Pepsi-Cola Company.

CHARLES A, ZILLWAGER: I would like
to read a statement prepared by Alfred Rossow, who is

the Director of Environmental Affairs for the Pepsi-Cola
Company.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Remember we are going to
keep within certain time limits.

MR, ZILILWAGER: All right.

Mre.Chairman and gentlemen, thank you for the
opportunity you have allowed me to submit a statement in
behalf of Pepsi-Cola Metropolitan Bottling Company, Inc.

In New Jersey, the Pepsi-Cola Metropolitan Bottling
Company - owned by the Pepsi-Cola Company - has three plants.
They are located in Jersey City, New Brunswick and Teterboro,
New Jersey. Our payroll is $5.5 million. We employ 343
people and buy $6 million worth of supplies locally. We
paid $90,000 in New Jersey State and Local taxes and
have about $8.5 milliocn ihvested in our plan%s@

It should also be noted that there are three other
indepéndent franchise Pepsi-Cola Bottlers in New Jersey.
They are located in Asbury Park, Atlantic City and Pennsauken.

Less than 2 per cent of the Metropolitan Bottling
Compény sales in New Jersey are in returnables.

Why?

The reason is that consumers no longer return
returnable bottles in the New York Metropolitan area.
Several years ago in New York City, we tested the effect of
increasing our deposit rate from 2¢ to 5¢ on retqrnable |
bottles in order to try to increase the amount of bottles
returned by our consumer.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Excuse me. When you say
several years ago, how maﬁy years ago?

MR. ZILLWAGER: 1968. This test was in New York
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City. It wés completely unsuccessful; in fact, our sales went down.
The Pépsi—Cola Company is against restrictive legislation aimed

at packaging rather than at the basic problems of litter and

solid waste.

There are two reasons for this. First, such iegislation would
force us to market counter to the desires of consumers aﬁd our
immediate customers, the grocery trade. Second, such legislation
does not solve any of the basic problems involved in litter or
solid waste.

During the course of this héaring you have heatdvand will hear that
the problem of litter is a peéple problem not a packaging problem.
We concur. Therefore, I will address my.commentsvprimarily tb

the subject of solid waste disposal. - In this conjunction I would
like to dwell for a moment on some qf the encouraging develépments
in this field. |

Solid waste is a préblem‘that will only be‘solvedbthrough regycl_
ing technology -- thfough a total syétems approaéh'which will
recover the valuable materials and latent energy in the growing
solid waste stream, using the funds so generated to finance.the
acceptable disposition of the less valuable components.

Pepsi-Cola Company, I am proud to say; is a fbunding sponsor of
thé National Center for Resource Reco?efy. The Center was |

. formerly known as the National Center for Solid Waste Disposal,

by which name it has been referred to in testimony already given.
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The change of name is consistent with-the solution to the problem.
The solution to tﬁe problem is, in fact, the recovery of the
resourcés now funneling into the waste stream.

The Center was forﬁed in 1970 by sixteen leading manufacturers,
retailers and users of packaging containers.

Among the founding sponsors and on the existing Board of Directors
are the following organizations: Continental Can, The United
Steel Workers of America, U.S. Plywood, Monsanto, Connecticut
College, General Foods, Owens-Illinois, the Washington Post,
Alcoa, University of Denver, Reynolds Metal and the Glass Bottle
Blowers Union. This covers only about half of the important
companies, unions and educational groups involved.

There is a deep commiLment on the part of those involved to
finding a way to solve the solid waste problem.

The Center is responsible for coordinating efforts by industry and
for working with government, labor and civic groups in developing
solutions to solid waste management. Specifically, it: (1) Serves
as a resource agency forvinforhation on solid waste management
systems. (2) Functions as an agency to receive funds from private
and éublic sources for the supportnof research. (3) Contracts

out research grants for the development,gf solid waste management
systems. (4) Obtains and eQaluates the results of research for

use in the design, test, and implementation of;systems of solid

waste collection, recycling and disposal.

P
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Gentlemen, we are on the verge of a technological reyolution

in the handling of solid waste. Our society has only recently
begun to apply to the problems of solid waste the kind of
systems approach which industrial and governméntal management
has éuccessfully employed in coping with major problems in the
past.

" In testimony'already offered, you have been advised éf several
areas in the country which are already taking advantage of the
basic technology necessary for the recycling of waste materials.
In order of fheir difficulty, from the most simple system to the
more complex system, they are: Atlénta, Georgia; San Francisco,
Califdrnia;‘Palb Altq! California and Franklin, Ohio.

I am sure that Mr. O'Niell of your Environmental Protection Agéncy
is familiar with the work underway in each of these municipal-
ities. I offer the services of the Pepsi-Cola Company to acquaint
Mr. ‘O'Niell with the work underway at the National Center for
Resource Recovery. | | |

In conclusion, I would like to reiterate the following: (1) I do
not believe Bill 2212 will be effective in solving the problems
of our environment because it legislates at symptoms rather tﬁan
at basic problems. (2) The technology to solve the solid waste
problems is rapidly emeréing. I urge this committee not to ré—
pqrt favorabif.on legislation that is inconsistent with the

solution to the problem. -As an examplé of ways in which such

VA
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legislation could be inconsistent, I will cite only two:

1) ‘Returnable thtles are heavier than ndn_returnable bottles

and cans. Therefer@, if present conSumer habits of tteating
éverything as a ocne-way package are.unchanged, the.problem

could be worsened. |

2) Secondaryvmaterials markets must be allowed to develop as part
of the total systems apprcach to the solid waste prcblem. Tt

-is our feeling that they can best be developed in a market

free of restrictive legislation of the»type proposed.

. Thank vou. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: In your statement you offer
to acquaint Mr. O0'Neill with the work underway at the National
Center for Resource Recovery. The Committee is the one who
is holding the hearing. He is in the Executive Branch. I
thought maybe you would offer it to the Committee.

MR. ZILLWAGER: It is offered to the Committee also,
sure. ‘ | -
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions?
ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I would just like to know one
thing. Presently do you have any returnable bottles or
are they all non-returnable?

MR. ZILLWAGER: I am familiar with the three Jeggey“#fmg
plants that I direct here and we have returnables inythea
vending area only now because it has been economically un-
feasible. About 200,000 cases we sell annually in the
returnable through vending; 4

' ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: O.K. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have just a few questions.
First, I assume you are using standard bottles to bottle
your merchandise. You are using‘standard bottles in
Pennsylvania, Delaware, Connecticut and Maryland, as well
as in New Jersey? '

MR. ZILLWAGER: Right.
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ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: This question you may not be
able to answer at this point, but I feel I should ask it.
Do you feel in your opinion that your company could or
would readily undertake replacement of the bottles utilized
in the State of New Jersey alone, so that they could be
identifiable?

MR. ZILLWAGER: At this point it would be really
very economically unsound for us. o

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: From a corporate standpoint.

MR, ZILLWAGER: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: My third question is: Do you
feel your company could afford to pay 5 cents for all the
out-of-state bottles that would be trucked in and turned
in for deposit in the state?

MR. ZILLWAGER: I don't think I could answer that.
There is no way we could possibly consider that.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you . very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any further questions? If not,
thank you. '

Mrs. Reid.

DENYSE RE ID. I am Denyse Reid. I am a home-
owner in Princeton and an active voter for 21 years. I am

- the representative for the Princeton Young Women's Christian
Assocliation Board of Directors. We represent-a minimum of
5,000 members. _ '

I welcome the opportunity this morning to make a
short statement in support of Assemblyman Dennis' bill. It is a
statewide attempt to legislaté .control of the non-returnable
beverage container. The Princeton YWCA board supported. the
proposal for control and for the instigation of a deposit
system in Princeton on March 22, 1971. The Board, by unanimous
vote, supported the petition on non-returnables presented
by the Conservation Coalition,of which we are a memberﬂvto
the Princeton Borough and Township officials. One of the
National YWCA goals this year is to focus attention on ecoclogy.

Our special concern is misuse of national resources and the
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whole problem of litter. As a member of the YWCA, I should
like to make a few obSerVationsldn this issue: |

In the light of thé'growing SOlid‘waste problem
and the depletion of natural resburces, there has been a
‘national move toward the recycling of goods. The bottle
and can container industries have opened hundreds of
recyclihg centers around the country and spent millions
of dollars to tell the public that they are 100 per cent behind
recycling.

If this is SOV then the "convenience" of the throw-
aways for which the consumer has paid a premium price -
as high as 24 per cent more than for returnables - simply nho
longer exists. |
” On the one hand, the consumer is urged to buy non-
returnables for the convenience of throwing the container in the
garbage can. On the other hand, the consumer is urged to
save the container and to carry it back to a recycling center
where the container industry will put it back into the
production line. Either way, the consumer loses.

If he throws the container away, a luxury for which
he has paid dearly, it will have to be collected, transported
and disposed of by the municipal waste disposal system.

If the Council for Environmental Quality is correct in its
figures, by 1980 there will be 100 billion throw-away
beverage containers to cart away and the consumer will have
to pay for the 800,000 trucks it will take to carry them.
That cost, solid waste disposal, is the third highest budget
item on the town books. : ’

Perhaps the consumer has not touched the container
since it went into his garbage can, but he certainly has \
paid for it. ‘

If the consumer saves the throw-away for recycling,
he is responding to a massive nationwide advertising campaign
by the bottlers and container industries. Although glass
factories create enoﬁgh waste glass within the operation for

their own production, and the can companies are more likely
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to sell the collected cans as scrap, they are making an effort
to receive materlals from volunteer recycling efforts.

The costly and "convenient!" container is not to go
in the garbage‘pail; It is not to go back to the store
where if it were returnable the consumer could get a 5 cents
minimum for it, end at the same time keep it out of the solid
waste mass. But it is to go back to a recycling center
where it will be reproduced, and if the consumer is lucky, he
might get’l/z cent.. for the bottle and many times less thén
that for the can. The paradox is, of course, that the

convenient and expensive non-returnable, under the environmental

smoke screen of recycling, has become an expensive and
inconvenient returnable. '

It is a foolish consumer who does not take advantage
of the savings available to him in returnables. The Crusade
for a Cleaner Environment has made surveys in Washington
and Richmond to determine the differences in cost and their
findings explain why, on a nationwide basis, "the American
public could save an estimated $600 million if the 15 billion
soft drinks now purchased in throw-away cans and bottles are
purchased in returnable bottles. If similar savings were
made on the 21 billion throw-away cans and bottles of beer,
$840 million could be saved." |

A 6-pack of 12 oz. cans (thrOWbaway) cost 83¢; a
6-pack of 12 oz. bottles (returnable), cost 59¢., At a savings
of 24¢ per siXMPack and 4¢ per bottle, the savings would be
28.9 per cent.

The Board of the YWCA of Princeton urges the
Commlttee to support the bill before it in hopes that the
5¢ deposit will encourage reuse of beverage containers in
the State of New Jersey. , \

I wonder if I could say a personal word, especially
on what I heard last week. Many people have mentioned this
as a motherhood bill. And I think even glass-blowers' mothers

and mothers employed in glass manufacturing do wish to be
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saved from burial in trash, like everybody else. Today
trash is the major product of the United States. I do not
use the word trash or garbage. anymore. I prefer to use "our
greatest resourse." ; |

Another thing, this famous sorting machine some
advocate to'separate all reusable materials is already in
existence. This dream machine is already here; it is called
the housewife.

'~ ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mrs. Reid, you are really
saying that the consumer gets stuck both ways as far as
the non-returnable bottles are concerned. They pay more for
them and then in turn have to pay more for garbage collection
in their: mundicipality. |

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Mrs. Reid, I would like to know
the‘address of this Crusade for a Cleaner Environment.

MRS. REID: I will give you that, sir. I don't
have it right here, but I will give it to you in a minute.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: 0.K. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Mrs. Reid, do you agree with the
Coalition group and with many of those who have testified
that a great deal more study is needed before this bill
should be passed - a study on recycling, a. study on the
impact on employment and cost to the consumer?

MRS, REID: Yes. But I would like to say that
we are very happy that this bill has even been presented
because it has generated a very good start.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you.

Mr. Edward Mitchell.

MR. VAN KEUREN: Mr. Chairman, I am substituting for
Mr. Mitchell if it is all right.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Do you have a prepared statement?

PATRTICK VAN KEURE N: I believe Mr. Mitchell
left statements with your staff last week. I will check that
and, if not, I will see to itvthat you do get a copy of a
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statement.

Mr. Chairman and Committee members: My name is
Pat Van Keuren. I am an employee of the American Can
Company and I appear here as a witness on behalf of the
can manufacturing industry, and I do welcome the opportunity
to appear before you to present testimony in opposition to-
Assembly Bill 2212,

The American Can Company, chartered in 1901, as a
New Jersey Corporation, is and has been a’responsible citizen
in the State of New Jersey for the past 70 years, and it has
contributed substantially in the way of payroll and tax
dollars in the state for many years.

The can manufacturing industry employs over 7,000
people in this state in plants located in Edison, Hillside,
Hoboken, Jersey City, Passaic, Paterson, Pennsauken and
Vineland, and these plants provide a payroll in excess of
$80 million. Obviocusly, we as an industry, along with our
employees and the consumers and thé citizens of this state,
have a vital stake in the outcome of this legislation.

Now certainly improving the environment, whether
it be in the field of solid waste or in any other area, is a -
goal which we all strive to achieve. Government, private
citizens and industry, all are striving to achieve this gcal.
However, the key question is not the goal of Assembly Bill
2212 but the real consideration &g whether or not thisabill
will have a meaningful effect, and the economic cost of '
legislation such as this should be considered. I submit that
this bill would not have a meaningful effect in reducing
sclid waste or in curbing litter and this statement is based
on some simple, well-documented facts.

For example, a study made by the Bureau of Sclid
Waste Management states that non-returnable beer and beverage
containers represent roughly 1.3 per cent of total solid
waste. Consider this in another perspective. If the Federal

government were to impose a national ban on non-returnables
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for beer and soft drinks, the nation“s municipal solid waste
level would be reduced by 1.3 per cent less than one-seventieth
of the total whlch amounts to a one—tlme, four-month delay
in a 4 per cent annual growth of total solid waste. In fact,

in this situation, as one of the previous witnesses mentioned,
if non-returnables were legislated out of existence, solid
waste would actually increase because a returnable bottle,

which would eVentually end up in solid waste, weighs up to

ten times as much as a non-returnable can.

On the positive side,,there are many potential
- solutions that offer real promise in alleviating the total
solid waste crisis. There are well over 40 systems that are
in various stages of development that will take solid waste
and automatically separate it into its recycable:components.
As far as cans and ferrous metals are concerned, this is
no’: new technology at all. The City of Atlanta, for example,
last year recovered 7,000 tons of ferrous metals from its
incinerator pits by the use of magnets. This brought a
revenue to the city of well over $98, 000. ‘The City of Chicago
has just completed the largest incinerator in the Northern
Hemisphere. They plan to recover 25,000 tons of ferrous metals
after incineration, which will generate a revenue of in
excess of $350 000. _

In addition, many mun;c;palltles, primarily on the
West Coast, are utlllzlng magnetlc separation of wet garbage
to pull out the valuable ferrous metals. This makes sense.

It gets out more than just beer and soft drink cans; it gets
out all cans, all ferrous metals.

The point is that applicatiors of sound systems
approach a technological breakthrough that have been achieved
that will bring us to meaningful solutlons of the solid waste
problema | ‘ '

Many of the proponents of Bill 2212 would have us
believe that a ban on non-returnables and a mandatory tax
on returnables would solve the litter problem. We in industry
share the.concern fot the disgraceful litter situation prevailing

in our environment, not only in New Jersey, but elsewhere.
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But logic suggests to us that Assembli{Bill‘ZZlZ is a Simple
solution where no simple problem exists. It has been pointed
out to you many times that litter is a human behavioural
problem. We don't know‘why_péople litter. We do know,
however, that people will litter whether the container is
returnable or non-returnable. , | ,

A study conducted by the National Academy of Sciences
concludes that less than 20 pér cent of’the composition of
roadside litter is made up of beer and beverage cans and
bottles. The amaZing statistic here though is that 42 per cent
of all the beer and soft drink containers that were found
éan the roadside in this survey were deposit bottles, returnable
bottles. In light of this fact, how can anyone logically
reach the conclusion that a mandatory deposit will solve the
litter problem? B

' Industry is responding in the area of litter also.
American Can Company, for examplél has acquired the rights
to a new machine which offers real promise to municipalities,
counties and states as a means of automatically picking up
litter, at substantially reduced costs. This is being studied
by various states right now. _

If Assembly Bill 2212 were made law, it would disrupt
fantastically the orderly, sanitary, efficient and economically-
sound method of beverage distribution. By definition, every
container is physically returnable. This would include not
only.beer‘andysoft drink cans-and bottles, but also milk
containers, juice containers, etc. At laét count there were
over 61,321 retail establishments in the State of Neleersey.r
These are wherelproducts are dispensed that would be covered
by this particular bill. If the consumer,were'to‘return for
redemption all of the used cans, bottles of milk,containers,
dirty and unwashed, half empty and contaminated with bacteria,
the merchants of this state would.have‘a spectacle of 61,321
privately-owned garbage dumps, infested with vermin, rodents,
bacteria and contamination, in which they would be expected

to continue selling sanitary food in the normal course of
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business. ‘ ‘ _ o , o :
It is”vifiually undisputable that a regression to

the deposit container would have the immediate impact of
increasing the cost to the consumer. It also represents

a destruction of major portions of the container-making
industry, with a consequent loss of thousands of New Jersey

jobs and millions of dollars of wages.

Gentlemen, we are as a nation coming to grips
with the litter and solid waste problem in meaningful terms.

I would ask you not to approve legislation such as Assembly
Bill 2212 at a time when government, industry and the public
are working together to produce sound solutions, solutions
which will create jobs in industry rather than destroying them.

_ I thank you for your time. If you have any questions,
I'll be glad to try to answer them.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: You say it is going to cost more
to the consumer. What do you mean by that? On the other hand,
a witness previously said the consumer pays more for non-
returnable bottles ahd‘aiso mentioned the fact that when
returnable bottles are returned, they get the deposit back
and in turn it is cheaper. Why do you say it is going to
cost more? o ‘ _

MR. VAN KEUREN: There is no question in certain
retail outlets returnable bottles or products in returnable
bottles are sold at a lower price than non-returnable
containers. However, bear in mind that the non-returnable
container dominates the market that we are referring to and,
in that sense, underwrites the cost where the returnable bottles
are used. ' } o _

‘There are statistics and studies that reveal that
an average retail outlet incurs costs of up to 42¢ a case for

handllng returnable bottles.
’ - Now if we were to revert from a non- returnable, one-way
system to a deposit, two-way system, all of the costs involved
of the bottlers in new eqﬁipmentx for handling returnables, all
of the distribution costs involved - the new trucks required
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by the diStributors, the new space and the cost incurred
by the retailers - would have to bé'passéd on. to the
consumer if these businesses were to in fact stay in
business. '

I think we are somewhat misguided by current situations
where there is a segment of returnable bottles at a lower
price in relation to non-returnables at a higher price in
a given retail outlet. '

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: It all depends on the margin of
profit of these various companies compared to what they
would have to absorb. ’

MR. VAN KEUREN: I would think that the capital
investments required, not only by somé of the soft drink
bottlers and the brewers but-the distributors and the'retailers,
would drastically change the pattern of distribution and |
availability of these products on the market to an extent
where certain businesses would no longer prevail.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I just had a few questions.

I presume that you manufacture cans and bottles for all the
major bottling companies.
~ MR. VAN KEUREN: We manufacture cans, sir, just cans.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Just cans. I see. Do you furnish
those to Pepsi-Cola, Canada Dry and so forth?

' MR. VAN KEUREN: The can industry supplies most of
the soft drink bottlers and brewers, yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Well, the cans at this time
are not returnable,

MR. VAN KEUREN: There is no way that a can can
effectively compete in a legislated deposit-returnable system,
no. A can can be returned to a given outlet. Well, let's
say this, to cite an example: There are c¢onsiderdtions: of perhaps
putting a mandatory deposit of 5 cents on a can. This
exceeds the scrap value of the can. 1In fact, it exceeds the
selling price of the original can. It doesn't make sense.

The can cannot be reused or refilled;v It does have tremendous

scrap value, however, to both the steel and the dopper industry,
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but not to the extent of 5 cents. Also consider that if a
can were returned to a supermarket, the supermarket would
then in turn have to return it:tdthedistributor and it would
eventually end up perhaps at a Wholesaler or back at the

soft drink bottler or the brewery. Then what? Great costs
would be incurred in this particular system to get it back
into the recycling, and by recyclingvlrmean back to the steel
industry or the copper industry, to a point where the can
virtually could not compete.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Since you do represent the
can industry, I would like to ask you one question. It has
been mentioned by various witnesses here and also, I believe,
by the sponsor of the legislation, that cans be outlawed that have
two~-piece construction, referring to the pull tabs. Industry
has testified before the Committee that litter is a person
problem. Now if there are no pull tabs on the can, therefore,
we take away one of the problems, do we not?

MR. VAN KEUREN: We make our cans to respond to the
consumer demands. The consumer, several years ago —--

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Excuse me. My question was
specifically directed at the two-piece construction. If we
were to remove the pull tabs, it would be out of the consumer's
reach, so to speak. We’say litter is a people problem. So
if they don't have this type of can and they can't get this
type of can, what is going to be the effect2 It is not
what you put on the market. Because, let's face it, before
we had pull tabs, it was more difficult and we had to get
a can opener. But if there are no pull tabs, then we have
to get a can opener. What is going to be the effect as
far as your company is concerned? ,

MR. VAN KEUREN: I was trying to respond to that and
indicate the.developments and the expenses the:industry went through
tordevelop @ pull tab that was demanded by the consumers at the
time. I will skip all of that and say that the can industry is
working on convenient ends that have attached tabs. That
would eliminate that problem. But the point is, if you ban
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this particular style container, thénfit can't ehd'up in
litter. You know, following that logic on through, if you
banned all cans and bottles;ﬁyou'haVe only eliminated 20
per cent of the litter. So I don't think that is a sound
approach, to degislate it out of existence. An attached tab
before too many months will be‘offéred‘tO’the consumer,
‘just like a non-returnable can is offered to them now. Let
them make their choice. ' | |
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: It will be what? an attached
tab? , ‘
MR. VAN KEUREN: I am sure all the can companies
are working on it. I know American Can is. This is a
tab that will not be totally removed from the container. It
will remain attached. There are many concepts. It requires
a great deal of testing. As you know, these containers are
rather sophisticated. They are designed to hold a product}
a specific product, and maintain that product all the way
tthughm Therefore, it requires a great’deal of development
and testing before we can go to market. SRR
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: You will have to admit though
that it is much easier for an individual to throw away a tab
than to throw away a can.
MR. VAN KEUREN: I don't think it is any more
convenient to throw away a tab on a metal can than it is
a bottle cap or a Cigarette wrapper or a gum wrapper.
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: You don't think one is more
dangerous than the other, as far as laying around?
MR, VAN KEUREN: I don't think honestly that a bottle
cap is any less or more dangerous than a tab removed from
a can. ' \ '
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: I never cut myself on a bottle cap.
MR. VAN KEUREN: You would remember it if you did,
I am sure. - ' o
ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Would you like to enlarge on the
point you made about the new machinery? Did you say that is
being developed or is developed? ' ‘ |
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MR. VAN KEUREN: For separating municipal solid
waste? |

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Yes.

MR. VAN KEUREN: There are many, many sustems.
I referred to some of the less sophisticated systems in use
in various municipalities of magnetically separating ferrous
metals out of an incinerator residue@ I think some of the
other witnesses must have mentioned,-aﬁd probably will
mention, some of the other systems, such as Blacks Clawson
in Franklin, Ohio, which uses a hydropulping technology to
separate out not only cans, but glass, and eventually glass
by color, fibrous materials, all of which are returned back
to the various industries for reuse.
‘ There is a private enterprise in Houston, Texas,
that takes the waste from the city and employs various means
of separating out these products. The organics are used for
“compost. Unfortunately, they are having a difficult time
finding a compost market. I don't think that particular
group went about it in a sound manner. They are starting to
develop compost markets now, so they have a total system.

The point is that various technologies that have
been developed by these various industries, including the
aircraft industry, are all coming to bear on the solid waste
situation. That is why there are so many systems and so many
systems that are quite effective and offer real promise, not
only of reducing solid waste that might end up in landfill
or incineration, but as a source of revenue to the local
governments. ' ’

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much.

MR. VAN KEUREN: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Peck.

THEODORE A, P ECK, J Re: Mr. Chairman and
members of the Committee: My name is Theodore Peck. I am a
member of the governing body of West Windsor Township in Mercer
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County, and it is a pleasure to appear before you today in support
of Assembly Bill 2212.

On April 26th of this year, the West Windsor Township
Committee unanimously passed a resolution urging that:

The lLegislature of the State of New Jersey enact a law
nrohibiting the use of "No Deposit, No Return" beverage
brottles and cans, exclusive of hard liquor, and that
whenever "Return" beverage bottles are used, there be
required a minigum security devosit of 10¢ per bottle
or such sum as may encourage return of such a bottle.
Manv other New Jersey municipalities have passed similar
resolutions. These votes provide evidence of a growing
concern over the increasing trend toward throwaway consumer
items. My own municipality, like most communities today,
is faced with a serious problem in solid-waste disposzal.
I cannot pretend to speak for all who have voted for these
resolutions, but I would like to express the reasons for

my own concern, as a municival official and as a citizen.

First, solid waste is vroliferating so rapidly as to
be beyond control, while most industries-- emphasizing
"convenience" at the expense of responsibility-- have
encouraged the publie to believe that practically everything
should be thrown away after first use. This attitude is
not going to be changed overnight, but the best place to
becin is with an industry which has always-- until recent
years—- orverated with reusable containers. Yet this
industry is not cooperating. Bottlers and distributors
find it more profitable to produce an endless stream of
"disvosable" bottles and cans. But their profit is my
loss—-- as 2 municipal official and as a taxpayer.

My tax dollars go to buy more garbage trucks, landfill
sites or incinerators, and to clean up the litter along the
roadways. (It has been calculated that it costs New York
City 31 cents for each bottle or can picked up.) AS an
official, I see money needed for other municipal services
being srent to subsidize the profits of bottlers and
distribuntors. Industry representatives point out that only
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about 22% of solid waste consists of glass and metal.
However, they overlook the fact that aluminum and glass do
not burn or decompose. From 60% to 80% of incinerator
refuse consists of glass and metal.

My second concern is with jobs. We have heard the
threats of some bottlers that, rather than return to the
manufacture of returnable bottles, they will shut down their
plants, thus throwing hundreds of people out of work. Well,
I wish to point out that plants are already being closed down,
by the hundreds, because of the switch to nonreturnables.
The trend to throwaways in the beer industry caused the
number of breweries to decline from 262 in 1958 to 188 in
l1967. If the current trend continues, the effect will be
mach greater in the soft-drink industry-- because it is a
larger industry, with more employees and more small franchises.
To handle returnable bottles, the operation must be
decentralized; each plant can then handle bottles in its own
area without excessive transportation costs. Nonreturnables,
however, are distributed over a much wider area, and the local
plants shut down. Officials of one of the nation's larsest
soft-drink manufacturers-- one which has more than 1000 bottling
plants today-- predict that ten years from now they will have
less than 100, serving the entire country. |

Distributors have threatened to discontinue service to
cities and towns considering legislation such as that which
is now before you. However, I don't think they can afford to
,Dull'out of an entire state. 1In enacting this law the
Legislature would insure more, not fewer, jobhe for the veotle
cf New Jersey. : )

My third concern is the cost to consumers. I have
already spoken of the higher taxes involved in dealing with
disposable containers. 1In addition, beverages in nonreturnable
bpttles and cans cost more at the point of sale. Presumably
the consumer is paying for the "convenience" of throwing
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away his bhottle or can. However, within the last two years
the recyecling concept has become universally accevted, so |
that all cood citizens must return their bottles and cans

t0o a reclamation center. The "convenience" has disappeared.

The industries would have us believe that the solution
to the nroblem lies in using old bottles in the manufacture
of new ones, and melting down aluminum cans to meke more
aluminum cens. Put why manufacture the same vproduct several
times over from the same material-- with all the exvenme of
fuel end resultant air and water pollution that the
manufacturing process entails-- when the container can
instead simply be washed and used again? The recycling
- concept is valid for those articles which cannot be used
again; for beverage containers, re-use is the answer,

The only justificetion the vrovonents of nonreturnable
containers can offer is "convenience"-- for the bottler,
the distributor and the consumer. A few years ago this
ergunent might have been unanswerable. However, times have
changed. It has become clear to many of us that today's
"convenience" can be tomorrow's disaster. It is time that
we all learned to face that fact of life. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have several questions, Mr. Peck.
I assume then that you advance the theory of returning to a
deposit and returnable bottle.

MR. PECK: Yes. Some people have suggested returning
bottles and cans that are not actually usable, but that is not
in my concept as the purpose of this bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: You would rather see the complete
elimination of this type of container. /

MR. PECK: Frankly, I think that is the ecologically
sound approach.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: If we did away with these types
of containers, how would I get my beer home from the bar?

Would I carry it in the old pot? _

MR. PECKﬁ I don't understand. If we have returnable

bottles --
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ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK:  Then you do favor returnable
bottles. I am sorry. - Perhaps I misunderstood.

MR. PECK: Yes, returnable bottles.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: You mentioned in your statement
that the industry representatives point out that only 22
per cent of solid waste consists of glass and metal.. and you
further point out that 60 to 80 per cent of incinerator refuse
consists of glass and metal. Of course, at the present time
we are interested not only in the pollution of the soil but
we are also interested in the pollution of the air. if we
reach a point in time when we discontinue incineration, we
-are right back again to the 22 per cénti aren't we?

" MR. PECK: Yes, but therpoint is that this material
does not incinerate. -If you have it in a landfill, you still
have the same problem of volume.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: "But if we are not 901ng to burn
anything, it would then be just 22 per cent you are talking
about. ' ' '

MR. PECK: For instance, in a landfill you have
paper and organic materials which can dissolve, which reduces
the volume.

- ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK' A portion of it.

MR, PECK° Yes. '

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: It might be somewhat higher than
22 per cent. : '

MR, PECK: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: My next question has to do with
somethlng I have seen mentioned several times. You indicate
"~ the trend to throw-aways in the beer industry caused the
number of breweries to decline from 262 in 1951 to 188 in
1967, which is roudghly a 30 per cent reduction. I cannot
believe personally that the switch to throw-aways is the
primary reason for this decline in the number of breweries.

I certainly doubt that we are having 30 per cent less beer
consumed at this point, h _

MR, PECK: Well, the point is that you have fewer

but larger breweries and they ship it longer distances. It tends
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to close down the smaller operations in local areas.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: In other words, it could be
connected with an increased expertise by management to
increase their facilities as well as possibly throw-away
bottles.

MR. PECK: It is possible, but a lot of the management
expertise these days I think has been exerted towards developing
non-returnable bottles and this is the way to increase profits.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have no further gquestions.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: In your opening statement, sir,
vou mentioned that the West Windsor Township Committee
unanimously passed the resolution with regard to the no-deposit,
no-return bottles. You mention that you have recommended
10 cents per bottle deposit, but didn't mention anything
about cans. Are you concerned about the cans?

MR. PECK: As I stated, my own position is that a
returnable container should actually be reusable. It has just
been stated that this is not possible with cans. So what
we are really envisioning is a returnable bottle system.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: In other words, you would be
in favor of a non-returnable can?

MR. PECK: No. My own position may be somewhat
extreme, but I feel that aluminum is such a scarce metal,
it shouldn't be used in beverage cans at all.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: You did mention that it costs
New York City 31 cents to pick up a discarded bottle or
can. Do you have any figures as to what it might cost
Jersey City, Newark or Trenton? |

MR, PECK: No, I am sorry I don't have those
figures.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Because we are primarily
interested in our own State. _

MR. PECK: - I have not seen those figures, but I
presume it would be comparable. _ :

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: You do not have figures on that.

MR. PECK: No.
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ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: You mentioned the nation's largest
soft drink manufacturer. Would you care to give the name of
that manufacturer? _ :

MR, PECK: I am sorry. I can't give you the name.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: You don't care to give the name?

MR, PECK: The statistics I read listed this as
the largest manufacturer. Frankly, I don't know which the
largest is. I have a suspicion, but'——— ‘

 ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: O.K.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Peck.

I would like to enter into the record a statement by
Alfred A. Hadinger, Councilman, Village of Ridgewood, in
support if A 2212; a resolution by the Township of Cedar Grove,
in Essex County, in support of A 2212; a letter from Mr.
George Alexander of Princeton, in favor of A 2212; a statement
on A 2212 by Ellis Yochelson of Maryland, in favor of A 2212 |
a statement by the American Association of University Women,
Princeton Branch, in favor of A 2212: and a letter from the
Crusade for a Cleaner Environment, based in Washington, D.C.,
in favor of A 2212; and a Statement by Theodore Nalikowski,
State Director of Drive, for the Teamsters' Union, in opposition
to A 2212, |

(Copies of the above can be found beginning on
page.l82§)

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Mr. Chairman, I would like to
have Mr. Peck return if I could for an additional question.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Before we do that, I also
have a statement from the Liéensed Beverage Association to
be included in the record, opposing A 2212. |

(Statement by Arthur Mitchko, Licensed Beverage
Association; can be found on page 214.)

Mr. Peck, Assemblyman Black would like to ask you
an additional question. Will you please come forward.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Mr. Peck, I was trying to check
in your testimony where you made reference to this nation's
largest soft drink manufacturer and in reply to Mr. Kiehn's

question, you indicated you did not wish to name it.
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MR, PECK: No. I'm sorry. It is not.that I.
don't wish to but I am not sure which ohe it is. ;

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Well, would vyou care,to‘téll us
what your source material is for this?

MR. PECK: Iiwould have to check my files. I have a
big file of clippings on this. .

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I become very upset when we
are talking about a bill which. certain union representatives
indicate could result in a layoff, if passed, of a.humber|of
people. The industyry agrees with the union, as does the
Chamber of Commerce. Although in a public statement you
have every right to present your opinionq I certainly think that
you should footnote references of this nature if you are
going to submit them‘inipublic testimony, for the benefit of
the Committee, so we may follow up and fully investigate the
matter. :

MR. PECK: I will give you that before I leave
today. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you very much, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSCON: Thank you. .v

Mr. Neilland of the New Jersey Food Council. I
have a statement from him so I guess he is not going to
testify.

(Statement from James M. Neilland can be found
beginning on page 215.)

_ Mr. Becci, New Jersey Package Storet Association.
Is he present? (No response.)
Mr. Price, Thatcher Glass Company. Mr. Price,
we would like you to limit your testimony to a summary of

this. We can't have it read verbatim.

GERALD L. PR ICE: Mr. Chairman and Distinguished
Members of the Committee:

Thank you for this opportunity to make what I‘hope
will be a helpful contribution to your studies on Assembly
Bill 2212, o | o

My name is Gerald L. Price. )I‘amgviée'President of
Thatcher Glass Manufacturiné Co., with plént»facilities in Wharton,
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New Jersey. My companyiis a leading producer of food and
beverage glass containers and a member of the Glass Container
Manufacturers Institute. ,

I am. speaking this morning on behalf of Thatcher
and the Institute, a national trade association whose domestic
members produce nearly 90 per cent of the glass containers
manufactured in the United States.

The legislation you are considering is of very
direct concern to the glass container industry., since our
company and the industry have invested millions of dollars and
man hours over many years in the pursuit of new and improved
syshems and prbgrams to solve the very real solid waste disposal
and litter problems that we all face. ‘

Indeed, we belleve we were the first to institute solid
waste management programs on an industrywide basis when we
established an environmental pollution control program some
4 1/2 years ago under the supervision of a former director
with the United States Bureau of Mines.

' Our joint objectives, therefore, are similar but they
will not be realized through the proposed legislation.
Legislation of this sort simply won't work.

To conserve time this morning, I have left with
the Committee some material which will outline in more detail
the program in which our induétry has been deeply involved
and devote my remarks to highlighting the findings of our
research and those projects.

I would like to urge this distinguished Committee
and others seriously attempting to develop meaningful, con-
structive solutions, to consider that when the concerned
environmental groups, whose concern we share although we differ
in approach, quote the vast figures of the solid waste problem,
only less than 1.3 per cent, as pointed out earlier by Mr.

Van Keuren, constitute the burden of beverage glass containers.
\ Furthermore, a survey of some 5,000 public works
officials by the ResourCeVManagement Corporation reveals that

these officials find gléss containers to be a negligible
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probklem ih standard solid waste disposal systems. .

Crushed glass - or cullet. as it is known - has
always been used in the making of new glass containers mvindéed!
for many vears there was a large cullet industry in New JerSey
which provided a necessary soufce of used glass for our industry
which we are trying to revive today.

In the summer of 1970, reclamation centers were
established by more than 90 manufacturing plants in 25 states.
Here in New Jersey, all GCMI member companies participated,
~drawing on its labor and management and our bottler customers,
to assist in reclamation of used containers, as a result of
programs voluntarily launched by a broad range of Community
groups and individuals.

To date, member companies alone in New Jersey have
collected more than 50 million pounds of used glass containers -
representing an expenditure of over half a million dollars -
waste glass that would have otherwise become part of this
state's litter and solid waste accumu,]_ationo |

While we see voluntary public reclamation programs
only as a vital first educational step to dramatize the
concept of recycling and reuse, we anticipate substantial increase
in programs in the months ahead. ;

However, as important as such voluntary programs are
in educating the pubklic in solid waste and litter,'dur,industxy
believes it is in the develcopment of technology and solid
waste disposal systems, as well as in the development of
secondary uses for glass, in which will lie the ultimate
solution for solid waste, and in continuing educational programs
to combat the litter problemm

Thus, our indastry is wdrking on four fronts:

In litter, GCMI was a founding member of Keep America
Beautiful, and is still its largest contributor. Our
industry has long conducted its own anti-litter programs in plant
communities, sales offices and through national anti-litter
radio and television promotion; in solid waste, we have under-

taken extensive research intc the impact of our product on
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the envirénment; the development of secondary products and
the development and testing of systems whidh would separate
our glass portion from municipal solid waste.

In the develbpment of secondary materials, I would
like to draw your attention to fhe small kit which has been
submitted to you, which displays just a few of the products
that are today being commercially made from waste glass.
These include glasphalt, a paving material that presently is
being used’éxperimentally‘in eight states:; blocks, including
a new'process of compressing rather than baking: decorative
mosaic tiling and spun glass insulation.

I would also like to note the small vial of sand-like
granuals, which represents the same vial when ground up,

indicating the reduction in size when glass is properly crushed

for landfill.

To date, our research has indicated that there are more
uses for waste glass than our entire industry could produce now
or in the future..

What are needed; of course, are the systems that can
lessen the impact of solid waste disposal on our environment
under present waste disposal practices and through separating
and recycling of all solid wéste - not just less than 6
per cent - conserve natural resources by returning those
valuable materials back to their respeétive industries.

Included in the material I have provided is a.
summary of the systems‘whi¢h are currently under development
of all facets of gbvernment, private industry and educational
institutions, numbering over 50, of which several need only
to be tested in pilot systems.

Earlier this month, GCMI compléted arrangements for
the funding of the installation bf a subsystem for the

mechanized retrieval of glass suitable for recycling from

‘the country's first full-scale pilot recycling plant,

constructed by the Black Clawson System in Franklin, Ohio.
Details of the system, which holds great promise, are also
included in the material I have left with you. The glass.
system incorporates screening, washing, air-classification,

para-magnetic and optical sorting technologies that our
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industry has,jointly researched over the bast-seVeral years.

~ Such systems, establiShed onfa‘:egional‘basis in :
New Jersey with corollary secondary materials_industries offer
the best hope; we feel, for the viable solution of solid waste
disposal problems. ‘ '

‘Such an approach would not only see the development of
many new jobs'and industries in our State, of a more constructive
nature, but would be the best utilization of industry's
economic and tecﬁnological resources rather than their dis-
sipation through quick, simplistic approaches that would
prove an economic burden to the consumer as well as industry.

In summary, I would like ﬁo mention that every '
Federal congressional and agency committee that has given
deep and thoughtful consideration to the solid waste and
littexr problems, including the Federal Environmental Protection
Agency, as well as study committees in each of the 44 states
that have considered similar legislation to 2212, have concluded
that eliminating, discriminating or restricting no-deposit
beverage containers won't solve the problem.

| All have concluded that'salvagg, reuse and recycling
of all sclid waste is the answer. ‘

Mr. William D. Ruckelshaus, Director of the Environ- .
mental Protection Agency, as reported in March 29 issue of .
U.S. News and World Report, stated that recycling is a much
more rational approach to improve the environment than
reverting to returnable containers. o ‘

To that end, in summary, I would like to recommend
a joint industry government study of regional solid waste
systems in New Jersey, and the application of systems for
solid waste and recycling with a view to implementing such
a program for our state within the next few years. To that
end, I can pledge the full support of our industry, its man-
power and its technological resources.

Thank you for your consideration of our views. |

(Mr. Price's complete written statement can
be found, beginning on page .223. )

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black. S
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ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: No queStionsd sir. - Thank you
very much, B o | .
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Kiehn?

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I think the statement speaks
for itself. | ’

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman'Fay.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: ©No guestions. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: = Mr. Price, it has been charged
by proponents of the bill that the glass industry is so locked
in with equipment manufacturing non-returnables, it is just
not feasible for them to adapt into a returnable container so
this is the reason they are justifying their poSitions Would
you comment on that? ,

MR. PRICE: Yes. We are quite capable of making both
returnables and non-returnables. In fact, we do it every day.
It is simply a matter that the public seems to prefer non-
returnables and consequently we do make a few more of those than
we do of returnables. )

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: A few more?

MR, PRICE: Yes. Of the production of the glass
industry, about 60 per cent in beverages is in one-ways and
about 40 per cent is still in returnables,; which is still a
pretty good percent of our total business.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Those figures aren't true
though in New Jersey, are they?

MR, PRICE: No. I am talking about the entire
country. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: What would be the figures in
New Jersey of non-returnables versus returnables?

MR. PRICE: Well, it would be considerably different
that that. I wouldn't really be able to answer that as far
as New Jersey alone is concerned. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: About 90 to 95 per cent? Do
you think it would be that high?

/ MR. PRICE: I guesé probably 90 per cent would be
one-ways in New.Jersey,~but}that‘is just a guess because
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naturally I don't know what the other companies produce. But
from what I know of the bottlers in this State, yes, probably
90 per cent would be one-ways.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Why do you think New Jersey
runs adverse to the national adverage?

MR. PRICE: Distribution costs in the metropolitan
areas are high. It is not quite as easy to take bottles back,
particularly in metropolitan areas.  If you go into the South
or Midwest, returnables are still a big factor in those
markets. But it is easier for the bottlers to get their
bottles back and probably easier for the people to take them
to the stores. It is very difficult in New Jersey if you buy
a six-pack of returnable bottles to get it back to the store
where you got it or any store for that matﬁers

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: I can't understand that. It
would seem to me since we are the most densely populated state
the stores would be closer to the consumer; whereas if you
take the states in the Midwest, the population is more spread
out. - :

MR. PRICE: I don't know. One of the things that
has remained a complete mystery to us is why people in this
area will not take a bottle back for a five-cent deposit.

Yet they will voluntarily pick up glass that we only give them
half a cent apiece for. Just what makes a consumer do this,
I am not sure. |

Again I think this goes back to the bottleris expenses
to some degree though. He would then have to go back to
the stores, sort out the bottles - let's say he is a Pepsi-
Cola bottler - get his bottles separated from Seven-Up and
CocaCola and Canada Dry and everybody else's, load them in
a truck and take them all back to his plant again.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: That is done at the stores
though. It used to be the stores would have them separated
according to the different brands, and the truck driver would
come in and make his delivery and in turn take the returned
bottles. The driver used to get paid .so much for delivering

full goods and so much for taking the empty bottles back.
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' 8o the only problem is storage, isn't it? . ,

MR. PRICE: Yes, storage is particularly'important -

storage and the expense of having'somébody go to work and do
this within the store. You have to have somebody there to
give the deposit back to the‘consumers It has.to'be done
really in the front of the store to make it effective or somewhere
within the working area of the store. And the glass has to be
transported to the rear of the store, segiegated from the
food products because invariably there is some residue left
in the bottles which makes them a health hazard, then separated
into the various cases by particular type of bottle, all of
which costs money to the store to have personnel do this.
This doesn't explain why the consumer won't bring it back, but
this, I think, has contributéd to the demise of the returnable
bottle in the metropolitan area. The storekéeper to some
degree just won't stock returnable bottles and he won't stock
them really to a large degree because his customers won't buy
them. | E

ASSEMBLYMAN WiLSON: 0.K. Thank you very much;

Mrs. Cyhthia Fox.

CYNTHTIA A, F O X: My name is Cynthia Fox. I
am from Princeton and a very concerned citizen. Thank you for
asking us here today. regarding Assembly Bill 2212,

I am from Princeton and have been completely involved
with our monthly reéycling program, the first of which was
last February. We are happy that it has been a success.

But I‘am convinced that recycling is only a partial
solution to the formidable solid waste problem.

I believe that it is absolutely necessary that we
slow down the production of bottles, already in the billions,
by returning to thé thrifty practice of reuse again and again.

I have heard it said that the supermarkets are against
returnables. Why? Because the lower cost of returnables competes
with the sale of their own btands, and because they have never

cooperated in arrangingka really satisfactory method of
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receiving the returned bottles. After all these years,
- the housewife,carrying her bottles back to the storei has
~to wait, sometimes in line, while in some stores an express—
line boy reluctantly takes her bottles and dumps ‘them into
a store cart, all of which is usually in everybody s waym .
It is all utterly inefficient.

- Open up your minds to a new’conoept of what happens
to those returned bottles. Perhaps in the corner of the
supermarket there could be a machine dispensing the deposit
change for the bottles. Perhaps in an extension, also roofed,
of the Pick-Up area there could be some efficient arrangement.
America is famous for its technOlogical'khowﬂhow"and I say
it is time we used some creative thinking towards making it
easy, pleasant, and efficient to return our bottles in a
well-organized system. | ‘

When we accomplish’this;'then'I think we will have
a public which, recognizihg the envirenmental and economical
importance of reusing the same container, will expect, perhaps
even demand, that once again, as we did until recently, we
have only returnable bottles. After all, they are cheaper.

Regarding.aluminiﬁ, it is a precious vanishing resource.
Let us not waste it on beverage containers.

Let us revert to returnable glass bottles and let
recycling be the last resort, not the first.

Assembly Bill 2212 is a step in the right direction.
Thank you for your attention.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No response.)

Thank you very much for your testimony. Mrs. Aletta?

CAROL ALETTA: My name is Carol Aletta. I am

not from any organized group. I am a citizen. I am a voter.
I am a consumer. I am also the’mother‘of‘two of these young
people who have been distracting you for theipast half hour
and I am going to take them out so the distraction will cease.
But I would like you to know, first of all, why I brought them

here or why I am here. T brought them because I have no one
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‘elsé to care for them; I am here because of these little
people and because I want them to grow up in a better world.
I feel that this bill currently,before you will be one tiny
step in that direction and I thihk*you, as legislators, should
think about this. Many of you have children, grandchildren,
nieces;‘nephews, It is their world that we are thinking

about ahd we are trylng to help.

. This isn't going to do everythlngi but it is a start°
it is a small step. So this is why I am here, to speak for
them and to speak for éll"the other mothers who don't have the
courage or don't live near enough or just can't make it in
here; to let you know that we are in favor of this bill and
we are concerned about our children. That's all.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black asked that
Committeeman Peck clarify thé . source of his statement, and
he advises he got it from OQutlook, which is a publication of
Owens—Iil@nois Glass Company, September, 1970. The statement
he quoted;was: "One of the nation's biggest soft drink
manufacturers has more than 1,000 localkbottling plants today -
but officials of that company predict that lO years from now
they' ll have less than 100 serving the entire country."

Mr, Harry Seales? Mr. Seales who testified last ‘
week is from Long Branch Recycling Area and he asked me if he

could come back to give some additional information.

HARRY SEALE S: Mr. Chairman‘and members of
the Committee: Last week I was asked to bring back today
specific details on proposals for area reclamation centers.
So. I have brought you these prbposals, which were prepared
by engineer R. E. Straub of Cartaret. Mr. Straub is here
in the Chamber:; he is not scheduled to appear. But if you
should want to” ask him details on this, I am sure he would
be happy to give them to you.

If I may, the United States Chamber of Commerce has
authorized me to give you for the record copies of.their
Pollution Facts, a study based on the National Academy of

Science Reports on returnables versus non-returnables. I
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won't go lnto details, but I will send you coples of thls
raportg_ I would like ‘to urge everyone who lS 1nterested 1n
this problem to secure this report trom the UE S Chamber
of Commerce in Washington - coplea of this report, number one
in a series, issued about two months ago. You can receive
these by writing directly to the U. Sglchambér'of Commerce
in Washington, D. C. ' | o »
There has been, I am afraid, in‘a,good bit of the
testimony a lot of wishful thinking with disregard for cold,
hard facts. One fact is thiss"Your lz;ouncé return bottle
Welghs appr@xrmately a half poundﬁ The statement has been
made that g01ng to mandatory use of return bottles would
supposedly reduce litter. The fact 1s that it would tend to
increase the litter volume and the garbage volume 2 to 10
times over, becau e it takes 5 tin cans or 10 aluminum cans --
I should say lt would take 5 half—pound dep051t bottles to
replace 5 tin cans. Your ratio of weight -- 1 bottle equals
5 tin .cans or 10 aluminum cahs. And the hard, cold facts are
that the lltter studies that have been madeybincluding this
one by the U. S. Chamber and by the Natlonal Academy of 801ence,
have all shown the amaZLngl 1ncred1ble fact that litter surveys
show a higher percentage of returned bottles, thrown away,
than the total perceﬂtage of returned bottles in use in the
various areas that have been studied. No one knows why
this is, but every study that I have beeﬁ able to find has
shown this to be a fact and it has been borne out in our
reclamation center in Long Branch and in the teams that we
have had in @peration for 45 weeks, cleaning all the litter
off the city streets, city-owned properties and vacant lots.
As to the value of reclamation, Coke of New York
released figures to me about 30-daYs ago that showed a
reversal of their downward . trend on return trips of deposit
bottles in areas where there has been extensive reclamation
education and activities, such as in Eastern Monmcuth County.
Their turnover had gone down to as low as 3 trips per bottle.
It is now back up to nearly 6 trips per bottle in that
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particular area—Where,we haVe engaged for a year in such
extensive activity. -

I have tried to find exact information on the
effect of transportation in going to return bottles completely.
A five-yard truck willvcarry about 6,000 pounds of crushed
glass from the reclamation centers to the recycling plants.
Every estimate that I have been able to get shows that from
12 to 20 trucks would be needed to carry that same amount of
glass, same weight of gléss, in return bottles in cases back
to the bottling plants. o

’ I am not opposed to return bottles. I am opposed

to this legislation though on the basis of the cold, hard
facts. | V _ | 4

‘Also this proposed legislation would prohibit the
sellers at wholesale and retail levels from using anything but
return containers. It does ﬁotvprohibit the buyers. And if
you think for one minute that all.the restaurants and all
the tremendous volume of beverage users in this State would
nét buy out of state simply‘to‘save that nickel per can or
bottle on a ten- or fifteen-cent soft drink of juice or what
have you, you are mistaken. ! :

Gentlemen, as the testimony has brought out, people
simply don't return returnable bottles. We don't know why.
The only upswing that we have been able to detect is in areas
where reclamation has been pursued so vigorously. Sure,
reclamation is called a stop-gap measure; One of the main
values is in the education that is carriéd on through reclamation
and the involvement of the young people and the income that
they can't otherwise get at ages below 14.

A.large part of the increase in litter, it should
be borne in mind, is also due to the increase in population in
the State. It is not just a matter only of people more and '
more throwing out more and more litter; it is more and more
people. One reCOmmendation_that the United States Chamber
of Commerce makes in this regard is fo pass legislation,
making tossing of litter from a moving vehicle a violation

\ -
\ :
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which would be entered on the driver's record, if convicted;
which would put teeth for the first time in some of these anti-
litter regulations. |

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: ' Any questlons? (No response.)
Thank you very much, Mr. Seales.

rs. Heidi Hopkins.

HEIDTI HOPKIN S: Mr; Chairman and members of
the Committee: My name is Heidi Hopkins and I would-iike
te present a statement. First of all, I would like to
present a letter on behalf of Thomas Southerland from the
Princeton University Env1ronmental Adv1sory Committee, and
- secondly, on behalf of the Conservation Coalition with
permission from the Crusade for a Cleaner Environment.

, First, the letter from Mr. Southerland:

(Reading) ‘ A

"On behalf of the Princeton University Environmental
Advisory Committee, I am writing to urge the

passage of Assembly Bill No. 2212. This concerns

the banning of certain non-returnable or disposable
beverage containers within the State of New Jersey

and requires a 5 cents deposit on returnable containers.

"Thank you.
"Sincerely yours,

Thomas C. Southerland, Jr.
Chairman"

Now to the statement in support of A 2212 on behalf
of the Conservation Coalltlon'

It has become evident from the arguments of many
of the opponents of A 2212 that the loss of jobs, which
the passage of A 2212 would allegedly entail, is thsir major
~concern. We would like to point out, howeVer, that - while
there might be a loss of jobs for some - the total job situation
is much more optimistic for New Jersey@ Let us look at the
research done by the "Crusade for a Cleaner Env1ronment" in
Washington, D. Cm Since the beer and soft drlnk 1ndustr1es
would have to return to their previous methods of bottl;ng
and marketing, the net résult of pasSing A 2212 will be an

increase in employment.
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Here arevthe factslﬁﬁich the "C:USaa; fér a Cleaﬁer Environﬁent" came up
wifh 6n "THE EFFECT:ON JOBS OF THE TRENDWTOWARD NCON~-RETURNABLE CONTAINERS
IN THE BEER AND SOFT DRINK INDUSTRIES": o

The swit@h—bver‘ffom returnablé, moﬁey—baék bottles to throw-away

containers in the beer industry has been paralleled by a sharp declire

in the number of breweries with a consequent loss of jobs and corresponding

decline in payrolls.

Figures from the U.S. Department of Commerce show that the number of

breweries in this country dropped from 262 in 1958 to 188 in 1967, a

decline of 28.3 jv. Recently, a representative of the U.S. Brewers

4issociation estimated there were now less than 80 brewing companies.

The number of persons employed;by:breweriesvdropned'from 71,700 in 1958

to 6,500 in 1967, a decline of 15.6 j. Based on the average wage rate

of 22,714 in 1967, the 11,ZCC"job decline amounted to a payrocli loss of

£97,596,800.

It is estimated that even lérger'répercussions will occur in the soft drink
industry — if the switch to throw-aways continues. If the current trend
continues, experts'predicf fhatbby 1975, all soft drinks will bé sold in
non—returnableléontainers; ‘In 1967 there were 3,403 soft drink bottling plants

in this country employing 123,400 persons with a total payroll of

$727,100,000.

If the trend to throw-aways in the soft drink industry parallels the beer

industry, which it has to date, a decline of 28.3 % in the number of plants
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would amount to a drop in plants of 936, or a new total of 2,440 plants.

The number of employees, with a 15.6 % decllne, would fall to 104 150.

U51ng the 1967 payroll flgure of g5, 892 the total loss in pgzroll would be
£113,421,000 yearly.

& complete switch to throw-aways would alsc affect emplorment in food

stores and other establishments selling soft drinks. Food chains estimate

that it takes between 1/4 andv1/2 of a man to physically‘handle the
sorting and related work connected with returnables. fhere Were, in 19€7,

8,13C focd ctores in this country. Estimating that around 90 7 were

handling returnables at that time and using the minimum manpower need of

-

1/4 rar, the number of jobs comes to 50,000. Using €6,000 as an averare

wage base, the payroll loss would be ¥30C,000,C00 yearly.

Combining the three different sets of figures, the effect on Jjobs and
calaries from the trend toward non-returnable containers in the beer and

soft drinx industries comes to a possible job loss of £(,450 persons and

a payroll loss of $511,017,800 vearly mirimum. In addition, there are

thousands of warehkousing jobs which would be adversely affected by a

complete switch-over to non-returnables.

For a plant comparison between the beer industry, now alrmost wholly
committed to throw-aways anc the soft drink iguustry ctill selling a
large volume of returnabvles, hiller orewing Comwpany ana the Seven-up
Bottling Company distribute approximately the same volume of products on

a national basis. Miller does it from three breweries. Seven-Up does it

from 487 franchise bottlers. The September issue of Qutlook, a publication

of Owens-Illinois (largest producer of glass bottles in the country), said,
"Ong of the nation's biggest soft drink manufacturers has more than

1,00C local bottling plants today -- but officials of that company predict

60



~that 10 years from now they'll have less than:. 100 serving
‘the entire country."

(Thus for the "Crusade for a Cleaner Environment.")

With these facts in mind, we, the Princeton
Conservation Coalition, strongly urge you to approve A 2212.

Mr. Black, here you ought to have the information
you are looking for again.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mrs. Hopkins, you are saying
even if this bill is not passed, there is still going to be
a decrease in the number of jobs in the:bottling industry
if the trend continues.

MRS. HOPKINS: Yes, if the trend towards non-returnables
continues, there probably will be if we can believe what the
Crusade for a Cleaner Environment has written. I think they
wouldn't have disseminated the information if they didn't
believe it was accurate. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I keep having the same question
come to my mind and, that is, how would we identify the bottles
that had deposits on them coming out of the funds of the
depositors in New Jersey? How would we prohibit bottles from
Pennsylvania coming back for collection of deposits?

MRS. HOPKINS: I think you probably are dealing
with a relatively small amount of bottles that are coming
over from Pennsylvania.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Right now we are because we are
not paying this five cents on every container. Under the
proposed legislation; we would then be paying five cents for
just about every bottle. The manufacturers have indicated
that they do not have the funds to go to a massive returnable
bottle situation. So I am wondering how we would identify
bottles coming in from adjacent states since they would
probably continue using the same containers.

MRS. HOPKINS: I am quite optimistic that if New
Jersey takes the step of outlawing the ncn-returnable containers,
Pennsylvania and all the neighboring states will follow suit

pretty.sobno It will be a matter of a year or two or perhaps
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at the most five, if that - I'm not even sure of that - and
‘we won't have that problem anymore. I am sure the people in this
country will cooperate.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: My next queStion; Are you aware
of any sweeping movement among the population to do away
with the throw-away bottles or containers?

MRS. HOPKINS: I think so. I think people are
very much interested. The fact that all these recycling
. movements have come into existence shows that there is a
great interest on the part of the people. However, they have
been misled in the past by all the'advertising@- They have
been trained to throw away things. And I don't think you can
untrain them within a year. It takes some time.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have my thoughts also and I : ;
was wondering if you could cite any drop in sales of materials
as a result of the containers?

MRS. HOPKINS: Beg youxr pardon?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Have gross sales increased or
decreased over the past ten-year period?

MRS. HOPKINS: Of what? :

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Of materials that are bottled '
in throw-away containers, ; ‘ -

MRS. HOPKINS: I don't think I understand your | .
question.,

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: What I am getting at is, the market
appears to be increasing, not decreasing.

MRS. HOPKINS: For non-returnable containers?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes. Yet the returnables have
been decreasing based on the figures producéd in testimony today.
and at the prior hearing. '

MRS. HOPKINS: I think if sales have increased, it
means that the people have become a little more affluent and
they just drink a little more Coke or whatever and I don't
think it is related to either the non-returnable oxr the
returnable containers. I don't think that makes any difference.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have seen no retail association |
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come forward and indicate that they have been contacted at
their counter:with»requests from the consumers to discontinue
carrying throw-away containers. This leads me to believe

that perhaps at this point we will have a speaker at a later
point bring this out. But thus far we have not. I would
assume then that the general publicyappreciates the convenience
“of the throw-away containers and are w1lllng to pay perhaps

a little bit more for them.

MRS. HOPKINS: Again I have to come back to my
statement that the public has been tfained and the public
has been made dumb by the.past‘advertisemehts, and I think
you must agree° They have been subjécted to this kind of
myth that it 1s>very easy Usﬁhrcwaway a can or whatever.
They believe it after a while.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I would say that the myth is
probably an actuality, that it is easy to throw it away.

MRS. HOPKINS: No, not if you have to pay for it -
first, the container, and then you have to pay for carting
‘the material away to the dumps.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: From the individual consumer's
standpoint, I would think that it is relatlvely easy to |
drop it in the kltchen waste can.

MRS. HOPKINS: Oh, no, it isn't = no, no.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: It is not easier?

MRS, HOPKINS: No, it isn't because if you are a
housewife, for instance, which I think you aren't --

“ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I haven't been for some time.

MRS. HOPKINS: (Continuing) -- you have to collect
an awful lot of bottles and they get terribly much in your
way and it is a great nuisance to have all those bottles
sitting around until the garbage man comes by on a certain
day, which is once a week in our case, to pick them up.

That is from the practical standpoint. .
~ ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: On the other hand, Mrs. Hopkins,
would it not also be to the disadvantage of the housewife

to have bottles sitting around in a container, waiting around
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toigejbaCk~to the store? T o A
MRS. HOPKINS: Well)'we have to golshopping every
second day anyway. ’ ’ ‘b
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Every second day? N
MRS. HOPKINS: Every second or third day. We like
to ‘have fresh food, fresh vegetables. .
~ ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you very much. YOu)have
answered one of my questions that I haven't asked -and that
is where my pay check goes. Now you have advised me where
it goes. My wife is probably shopping every other day.
' MRS. HOPKINS: That doesn't mean you have to pay
more or shop for more; you just get fresher food that way.
ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Mrs. Hopkins, last week we had
the industry people inwlved and some of the more prominent
ones today. We have had people from the AFL-CIO who} I
believe,vrepresent almost everyone in this industry. 1In
your statement you say there might be a loss of jobs for some.
Last week, the testimony’wbuld indicate "some" would come
out to a minimum of 10,000 jobs. To me, this would have to
be cleared up and this goes back to one of the original
statements today that with such conflicting and contradictory
testimony, cbviously an objective study in depth would have
to- be made here. On your figures for the breweries, these
are rlational figures. Is there a breakdown on jobs in
New Jersey, jobs that were and jobs that are?
MRS. HOPKINS: Not in. the information that I have.
But if vou would call Mr. Harman Elder at the Crusade for a
Cleaner Environment, I am sure he will be glad to give it
te you. : ‘ o o ,
~ ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: We will follow through on that.
We are going to hear today from two people who are listed here
as representatives of the Brewers' Association. Possibly
they might have those figures.. A , 7 )
-MRS. HOPKINS: It seems to me that the number of
job losses that have been cited is extremely high and I am
rather doubtful of that. I would appreciate it if you would
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on -that.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Unfortunately I am leaning in the
other direction. I am more frightened of the job loss and the
economic loss béing evenvgreater than has been stated.

Before I‘aé a representative of my constiuents could cast

an intelligent vote on an important Subject like this, I

most certéinly would have to have conclusive or near conclusive
economic statistics and figures and statements telling me just
what kind of_anhimpact this is’going to have on the individuals
and most cerﬁainly the’impaét on the industry of the State.
Because history has shown us where one state moves and moves
strongly into an area,‘the states that are bordering them are
not inclined to move as strongly; they are more inclined to
‘pick up the economic advantages that they have gained.

So the AFL-CIO figures and the statement from your organization
are the kinds of fact and the kinds of answers that the
legislators and the Governor havévto have in front of them.

MRS. HOPKINS: That is exactly why I felt you should
have the information. ‘ ,

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: After your statement td Assemblyman
Black, I don't know whether you are a’'Miss or Mrs., but ---

MRS. HOPKINS: Mrs. | .

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: What I would like to know in
the event it might not be brought up later - the figures that
you mentioned here by the U.S. Department of Commerce showing
the number of brewers having dropped from 262 in 1958 to 188
in 1967, were there any reasons given for this drop? Or was
it possibly expansion of the breweries in one location?

MRS. HOPKINS: The information that I have given
you here is Fact Sheet No. 4, as a matter of fact, from the
Crusade. I am sure they will be glad to give you-all the
details about it. This is all the information that was
"contained therein. | ‘ |

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: You mentioned the number of food
stores back in 1967, about five years ago; as being 218,000.

Has that been increased any?
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MRSGVHOPKINSz " Again there, may I refer you to

Mr, Eld@fo ‘ | |
.~ ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: All right. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Mrs. Hopkins, these statistics
from 1967, is that the last sfudy they have made - they have
made no other? o ' ,

MRS. HOPKINS: It seems;to me that the information
must have been GQmpiléd in 1970, since thevaere using some
sources from the 1970 Brewers' Almanac of the brewing industry
in the United States. I guess that is the title of it.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Do you know whether this has been
a continuing study?

MRS. HOPKINS: I don't really know, but I would
assume there must be more of it. .

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Because I think this point has
to be made too, that since 1967 to '71, the economic and
inflationary problems, particularly in our state, have
worsened drastically in that period.

MRS. HOPKINS: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you, Mrs. Hopkins.

MRS. HOPKINS: Thank you# ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. William Crane, American
. Paper Institute. (No responsef§

Mr. Robert Schroeder, Celanese Corporation.

ROBERT ALV INE: Mr. Chairman and Committeemen, R o
I am speaking for Mr. Schroeder. My name is Robert Alvine.
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Do you have a prepared statement
that you can give to us?.
MR. ALVINE: I will submit a formal statement.
I understand we have two weeks to do so.
I am Product Manager of polyolesins for Celanese
Plastics Company in Newark, New Jersey. Among the products
we produce is high density polyethylene used to manufacture
plastic milk containers. A

I would like to make some very brief remarks regarding * .
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the proposedAamendment to exempt plasticmcdated paper milk
containers and discriminate against plastic and glass milk
containers. ‘

We also believe the ultimate answer to our solid
waste problem is recycling. Polyethylene, like most plastics,
can and is being recycled. Several dairies are experimenting
with polyethyléne bottle collection centers and reground
bottles will be used for such things as pipe and drainage
tile. Paper milk cartons, with their polyethylene coating,
cannot be recycled economically. To recycle requires the
coating to be separated from the paper substrate. The cost
of this extra operation would be substantially prohibitive.
There is no valid scientific reason to discriminate in favor
of paper containers.

Examining the current situation, we have three
methods of‘disposal for those materials that are not recycled,
and that includesthe paper milk cartons: They are incineration,
open dumping and sanitary landfill. As to incinceration, the
plastic milk bottle can be incinerated. Polyethylene is a hydro-
carbon; that is, it contains only hydrogen and carbon atoms.
Given sufficient air, it will be burned cleanly and completely,
yielding primarily water ﬁapor and carbon-dioxide, both
natural ingredients of our atmosphere. Because of its high
energy content, polyethylene, thus can assist as an incinerator
fuel. It burns at a higher‘temperature than does the waste
mix in an incinerator. If the incinerator is also used to
generate steam, such as the one in Chicago, this characteristic
is an added plus for the plastic milk bottle.

As to open dumping, about 75 per cent of cur solid
waste 1s disposed of in open dumps of Roman vintage, smoldering
and fouling the air, leaching contaminants into ground water
and providing breeding areas for germs, insects and rodents.
The use of non-decomposing packaging materials reduces the
threat to our health and environment posed by the degradable
wastes in open dumps. Polyethylene containers will not support

bacteria, insects or rodents nor will they produce odor or
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Vgreund water contamination. In addition, polyethylene
will not contribute to smoke and pollution generated by
fires which occur frequently in open dumps.

Our last method of disposal is sanitary landfill.
In sanitary landfill, refuse is compacted and covered daily
with a layer of earth. About 8 per cent of our waste is
disposed of by this process. The Los Angeles County Sanitation
District disposes of all solid waste in the county by means
of sanitary landfill. County Sanitation District Offices
have thoroughly documented evidence on the use of this
method of solid waste management. They have made this state-
ment in a letter to the Society of Plasticsﬂindustry, and I
guote from the letter: Plastic waste disposed of in such a
landfill would seem to be as suitable as dirt, broken concrete,
bricks and other such like materials, which also do not undergo
decomposition. In open dumps and sanitary landfills, plastics
have the distinct advantage. They release virtually no leachable
materials to pollute the groundwater and nearby streams.

Another factor to be considered is weight and
volume. Regardless of the disposal method used, the most
esirable packages from the disposability standpoint are those
which contribute the least weight. and volume to our solid waste
burden., Because of its strength-weight relationship, polyethylene
has a great advantage over competitive materials in this respect.
In the dairy industry., paper cartons make only one trip before
being discarded. The same is true with most polyethyleéene
bottles. A polyethylene gallon weighs 90 grams; that is, 5.7
cubic inches compacted. Incineration can reduce this mass
to wvirtually nothing. A polyethylene-coated milk gallon
weighs 120 grams. -So it contributes 120 grams or ll.4 cubic
inches to disposal. Incineration may reduce this volume by
about 90 per cent. In half gallons, the difference is more
dramatic. Polyethylene half gallons weigh 35 grams each; coated
paperboard containers weight 62 grams, nearly 80 per cent more.

To summarize, I am convinced that milk containers

made of high-density polyethylene are superior from economic,
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ecological, convenience, health and safety standpoints.

They offer the housewife a light-weight, easy-to-handle,

safe package. They will not lead or break when dropped.

When incinerated, they will burn cleanly and completely and
leave'virtually no residue. They are excellent for use in
sanitary landfills where they occupy less space than containers
made of competing materials. In open dumps, they do not
contribute to odor or health problems. They can be recycled.
Their manufacture does not contribute to land, air or water
pollution. Thank you. ,' ,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: - Well, I have seen plastic
put in incinerators and I have‘Seen a lot of soot and a lot
of heavy black smoke. You say that a plastic container, a
milk container or any container burns the same as a wax-coated
paper, as far as the residue is concerned?

MR. ALVINE: We are saying that the paper-coated
or the plastic-coated paper container will produce more
residue than the plastic will, than the high-density polyethylene
milk container will.,

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have a question, sir. Undoubtedly
with your packaged product, you have from time to time gone
out to secure buyers for your product. When you go out with
your product, I was wondering what the criteria is that you
propose in competition with, say, another package item or
another type of package. In other words, when you take your
product out and attempt to sell it to a manufacturer of a
product that will go into the container, what is the basis
upon which you approach this man? ‘

'MR. ALVINE: For background, we are a raw material
supplier. '

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Sorry. I thought you were a
finished product man. ' ,

'MR. ALVINE: No. ‘We would supply people who would
manufacture a container, which in many cases is the dairy,
themselves.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I was attempting to clarify
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in my own mind whether my thinking was correct regarding
the criteria involved in the selling of a container. Perhaps
T will be able to talk to someone else a little bit later to
clarify it. Thank you, sir. | N , ,‘
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much for your
testimony.
At this time, I would like to enter into the record
a letter from the Atlantic County Citizens Council on
Environment, in support of A 2212,

(Letter from Atlantic County Citizens Council
can be found on page 231.)

Louis Shindell, of Maplewood. (Not present.)

Mr. Brad Hansen. (Not present.)

Mrs., James Graves. Mrs. Graves, could we just enter
the statement by the Friends of Princeton Environment into
the record rather than having it read.

MRS. GRAVES: I would like to point out that was written
by Edwin C. Hutter, the Chairman. |

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: We will have that entered into
the record. We have had quite a little bit of testimony from
Princeton,

MRS. GRAVES: All right.

(statement by Edwin C. Hutter, Chairman, Friends
of the Princeton Environment, Inc., can be
found beginning on page 233.)

DIANE GRAYVE S: I am Diane Graves. I am Conservation
Chairman for the Sierra Club's Southern New Jersey Group. The
Sierra Club is a national conservation organization of
approximately 122,000 members. The South Néw Jersey group has
approximately 800 members. We are a voluhteer organization
of men and women. | ‘
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on A 2212.

We fully support the intent of this important legislation, but
would like to make some comments which will be followed by
specific suggestions.

“ Everywhere you govin the Staté of New Jersey, you are
confronted by bottles and cans with which thoughtless people
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have littered the landscape. The differenée between urban
Newark and the wildest reaches of the Pine Barrens in this
respect is one of degree rather than of substance.

Years of public relations campéigns urging the populace not to litter

have to all intents and purposes had no effect. The strenuous efforts to
recycle containers of the past year - even with hundreds of dedicated
volunteers working for no pay - have hardly made a dent on the problem.
Recycling in New Jersey on any scale simply has not worked, and now we must
take the next step. Time is of the essence in preventing further |
deterioration of our environment by litter and garbage, and we submit

that the time is now. We would like to go on record as supporting the

strongest bill we can expect to pass.

Wé have all heard stated in verious ways that "the U.S. contains only

5.7 % of the world's population and yet it consumes 40 % of the world's
production of natural resources." (Time, 2/20/70). ‘It is becoming clear
that within the next 20 yeérs or so, we will be encountering shortages of
some vital materials. As time goes by, more and more materizls will become
scarce. Ultimately, of course, the world's reccverable resoﬁrces will be

exhausted and we will be forced to total recycling systems.

It is imperative to begin to decelerate our wasteful use of valuable
resources now. By increasing the recycling and re-use of materials and
products, the life of the world's‘reserves of natural resources can be
extended.‘ One small yet very significant step towards meeting this
challenge is the legislation before us today. The trend toward throw-aways
must be reversed.

An interesting fact: .

The total weight of aluminum put on the market during the first
nine months of 1970 alone was 700 million tons. In comparison,
the estimated total weight of returned aluminum was only

2,850 tons

We‘ére all aware of the energy crisis and we are cautioned more end more

often that citizens and industry must reduce energy consumption. It is
interesting to note that "Producing a ton of aluminum requires more than

6 times the energy réquired to produce a ton of steel plate from ore; and
more than 24 times the energy required to recycle steel. The process

accounts for approximately 10 % of all industrial power use." (Feter
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Borrelli, Sierra Club) Pernaps we need to &wﬁ wne*ne* 1temu aMCh 85 cans

should continue to be nade of alumlnum.

The recycling of aluminum must be made at léast?possible, if not mandatory.
Wherever possible, it should not be conteninated with other materials. If
alurninum cans continue to.be used, they gnould not be "throw-zways." Every
aluninum can made sheuld be recyvlea. To make this attractive, there muét
ce a strong incentive to‘return ecch can. 1f tnis cannot be done, the

manuracture of the eluminum can, which is a non-essential item, should Tte

stooped.
In the bill at hand we strongly recommend the following change:

In Section 3. "No person shall sell ---", line 3, insert after "of not

less than $0.05 for each container" under 16 ounces and not less than

$0.10 for each container of 16 ounces or more "which shall be clearly

indicated on the container.".

We also suggest that the following be included in the legislation as

amendments:

1. All beverage containers be made with a single materlal - no comblnatlons,

as in bi-metal cans.

2. Fhase out, with a strict prohibitioh by & specified date, no later than
1 year from the enactment of this legislation, the use of flip-top or

pull-tab openers on cans.

3. Phace out, with a strict ?rohibition by a specified date, no later than
1 year from enactment of this legislation, the use of twist-off bottle caps

that leave a metal ring on the bottle.
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" It is estimated that Americans could save £705,000,0C0 per year (based on
prices in the Wéshingtqn, D.C. area) if they purchased all soft drinks in
returnable, money-back bottles. If all beer were purchaseda in returnable,
money-back containers, the consumer could save ﬁBOC,OOC,OOO‘per yvear. This
total estimated sévings of over 1 1/2 billion dollars a year would go a long
way toward financing the program proposed by the President to clean up our
environment." (Crusade for a Cleaner Environment, ash. D.C.; their source:
The Role of Packaging in Solid Waste henagement 1966-1976, U.5. Dept. of
H.i.W., 1969)

President Nixon has said "The task of cleaning up our environment calls
for a total mobilization by all of us. It involves governments at every
level; it requires the help of every citizen. It cannot be a matter of
simply sitting back and blaming someone else. Neither is it to be left to
a few hundred leaders. Rather, it presents us with one of those rare
situations in which each individual everywhere has an opportunity to meke

a special contribution to his country as well as his community."

For these reasons and too many to further enumerate, we feel this

legislation, A.2212, is a strong and necessary step to take.

Thank-you.

This is signed by Stockton Gaines, Chairman of the

Southern New Jersey Group of the Sierra Club.
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? _

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I just have one question.
You mentioned that all beverage containers should be made
of a single material. In other words, you object to that
twist-top on bottles? When you mentioned a single materialf
I immediately thought of a bottle or glass container and I
was wondering how you would propose to =---

MRS. GRAVES: That would certainly fit in with
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what I was saying. Act?aliy I was’ieféfring to the bi—metal
cans. But I think, as you ?ointed out, this would also apply
to the screw-off caps, the twist-off caps. |

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I was wondering, first of all, how
long you have been active with the Sierra Club?

MRS. GRAVES: I have been a member of the Sierra
Club, I guess, since 1964 or ‘65, And I was active in
conservation long before then.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: We seem to utilize the term
"litter" and "garbage" almost interchangeably. Don't you
view the problem as being two-fold, one of, let us say.
litter along the highways,‘streets and vacant lots, as litter:
and garbage as that which we place on the curb to be picked
up periodically? |

'MRS. GRAVES: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I am quite upset, I have to
admit, by the statement that we should settle on one particular
type of container as the solution to the problem. I am upset
very much by the approach and I see possible correlations to
some of our other problems. We have here a problem of
increasing amounts of waste and I wonder if perhaps we should
take a lock at the way we are trying to handle this and this
would be a forced mandate that the people will settle into
& particular mold and will accept one type of container.

This approach bothers me véry much from this standpoint.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black, do you have
a question? | :

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes, I do, but I am not sure I
really want to ask it because I think perhaps‘it is unfair.
It is the entire concept.

Let me ask it this way: Do you feel that this
approach, although for the general good of the entire population,
is in any way similar to a "Big Brother" type of government
approach?

MRS. GRAVES: No, that hadn't occurred to me.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: It had not occurred to you?
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MRS. GRAVES: No. S
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you. No further questions.
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much:.

Mrs. Lois Grayson.

L OIS GRAYS ON: Referring to the "Big Brother"
type of argument that you brought up, might that not be
reversed? s :

 ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Excuse me. Will you please
give yourvfull.nameq ,

MRS. GRAYSON: I am Lois Grayson and I am speaking
to you as a concerned citizen of New Jerseyc

Couldn't the "Big Brother" argument be applied to
the industry when they put the one-way container on us?

We didn't ask for it.

| New Jersey is the most densely populated state in
the country@ The problems that face our country confront
the State of New JérSey many times over. We can look upon
this as a challenge'or we could say, why bother?

We, in our community, started recycling paper, cans
and bottles last March.. I question the validity of only
recycling. Sooner or later the value of reusable containers
is evident. -

First of all, I would like to know exactly why
10,000 people would be out of jobs? If the passage of this
bill would eventuate in the return to the reusable container,
why should the ' working man be penalized? Is the artist who
designs the container penalized? Does he get paid according
to how many are made? Is the engineer who designs the
container manufacturing machinery paid in accordance with its
output? What about the construction workers of the container
plants? Why should the working man be penalized whether he
makes 100 containers per day or 1,0007? '

Also what justification is there in teaching children
that we should collect our beverage containers, bring them back

to recycling centers to bé‘ultimately crushed and melted,
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only to become beverage containérs again when it is completely
possible to make a reusable container? Aren't we teaching

our children wastefulness? When industry went from the
returnable to the one-way container, that was without a

doubt retrogression.

One other thought for industry - Formexr Secretary
of the Interior, Stewart Udall, predicted years ago that
the over-all business of pollution control would hit Wall Street
with greater impact than the post-war boom in space age
technology.

It is estimated by 1975, almost all soft drinks and
beer will be sold in throw-away containers. At that rate,
industry will be producing 100 billion containers annually, thus
creating the possibility of 800,000 large truckloads of refuse
to be cleaned up at an enormous cost to the public. If,
on the other hand, this trend can be reversed and industry
would go back to the returnables, only 6 billion containers
would be needed, thus eliminating some 94 billion containers
from the waste prcblem.

According to a survey taken in households and
universities over the nation among 2,000 youths, aged 14 to
22, by the Research Guild, 97.7 per cent would buy soft drinks in
the returnable container. This survey covered numerous topics
ranging from political philosophy to dress codes, etc. The
ogreatest unanimity was in the area entitled, "Willingness to
Make Individual Sacrifices to Help Curb Pollution."” The inter-
viewing was coﬁducted August 15th to September 25th of 1970.

I first came across the results of this survey in Fortune magazine
August 1971.

I also have on hand a comprehensive study made by
Professor Bruce Hannon, with a group of students at the Center
for Advanced Computation, University of Illinois. The title
of this study is, "An Energy Analysis of the Returnable vs.
the Throw-Away Container Systems." It was completed on May 28,
1971. I quote:
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"The data was acquired from industry and library
research, and is synthesized using background
information obtained from the industries and
near approximations to form reascnable figures for
every element of the beverage container flow
program which consists of raw material acquisition,
container manufacturing, filling, the outlet, the
consumer, collection, separation and transportation.
The throw-away requires 4.70 times as much energy,
assuming 24 trips per returnable bottle. We realize
that the magnitude of energy consumption ratio
between throw-aways and returnables is very much a
function of the number of trips per returnable
bottle. A consumer education program to return
rather than litter, a high deposit on returnables
and the utilization of a virtually unbreakable
bottle would maximize the energy ratio.

"Based on our energy calculations and projecting

our proposed container systems into the future when
energy will become a scarce resource, we would see
no justification for the existence of the throw-away
bottle system. = Therefore, we would recommend
reverting back to the returnable bottle system."

This study also includes the Black Clawson Plant

in Ohio. The conclusion drawn in regard to glass is that

it is only 30 per cent efficient in reclamation. At a time
when so many power plants are in the planning and building
stages, especially in New Jersey, I consider this study made
at the University of Illinois an important one. '

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Your point that you feel that
education as far as recycling is trite ---

MRS. GRAYSON: I said it was trite?

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Did you say that?

MRS, GRAYSON: Oh, no.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: -- that you felt it was too long
of a process? B ‘

MRS. GRAYSTON: That recycling alone is not the end
and only through recycling - and I should thank whoever started
recycling - was I made aware of how ridiculous it is to
keep bringing kottles back, watching them being crushed, when
one bottle might make many trips.
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ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: What bothers me most of all is
that if this bill were enacted into law and suddenly all the non-
returnables weren't there, there would be just as many thought-
less people throwing away bottles. This is chauvinism in the
reverse. But Canada does not have the serious problem that
we have. They seem to be much more aware of their natural
fesourceso Perhaps the law is enforéed more vigorously. I
can't recall the last time I read about someone being arrested
for being a litter bug. I can't recall the last time I have
seen in the paper where somebody was hit with a good fine for
despoiling one of our county parks or State parks. So I
just don't like to see people building all their hopes on
this one bill, believing that if this one thing is accomplished,
littering would suddenly go away? _ |
MRS. GRAYSON: I just will agree with the girl from
the Sierra Club who said.and other people have said, that
this is just a step and it won't take care of everything at
all. This is just one tiny step, one beginning.
| ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: You mentioned the fruitlessness
of carrying bottles back to a recycling station, I believe.
MRS, GRAYSON: Yes. | .
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: And perhaps we do not have the
same mental image of the goal as far as recycling is concerned.
I, first of all, question,énd I believe that you question,
by putting a deposit on a bottle we are going to solve the
"bottle litter problem. . , '
MRS. GRAYSON: You mighti together with education.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: But Ehat‘step alone will not
solve it. I think we agree on that point.
MRS. GRAYSON:  No, but that could help, and not
giving the customer the choice that he has.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Don't you feel the full cycle
of recycling is the recycling of all trash as collected at
the home rather than a separate station that you would journey
to on a separate trip to deposit the bottles to be ground?
MRS. GRAYSON: Would the collection from the home
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then all go to one building, Such as this Black Clawson?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes, I believe this is the
concept.

MRS. GRAYSON: But if you read this literature -
and this is quite above me, I am afraid - the results at
the Black Clawson are that the reclamation of the glass is
30 per cent effective. 70 per cent goes into landfill. It
doesn't come back as a glass bottle. '

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes, but let us talk abéut that
70 per cent that goes to landfill. What is detrimental about
that 70 per cent to the ecology?

MRS. GRAYSON: If the bottle can be reused,
wouldn't that be preferable to it going into landfill?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: But I would assume the reason
70 per cent of it is going into landfill is that it can't
be reused. I mean, if they are processing and reusing 30
per cent, I have no knowledge as to why they couldn't go
ahead and reuse the entire $00 per cent, but I haven't had a
chance to loock at the figures. But if we have 70 per cent
that for some reason cannot be reused, I am wondering what
detrimental effect this has on the ecology of the area
since it is an inert material and does not break down.

MRS. GRAYSON:: That is the point. Now 'are: you
talking about glass that has been ground and made into sand
again going back into landfill or chunks of a bottle, pieces
of a bottle?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: If it is going through a
recycling plant, then it is going to be ground, pulverized
and made into sand.

MRS. GRAYSON: That would be preferable to having
it just remain around as litter, but it would not be preferable
for many reasons to having it be reused as a bottle.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Don't you feel, as Assemblyman Fay
has pointed out, that proper enforcement of anti-litter laws,

speaking about that phase of the problem, would have greater
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impact than passage of this particular bill on the elimination
of litter? 7

MRS. GRAYSON: Why one and not the other? Why
can't we attack this in all ways? '

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Well, one way is already in
existence, though'. perhaps not being properly applied; the
other way, as proposed here, will cost working people their
jobs, |

MRS. GRAYSON: The diminishment of the containers?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes.

MRS. GRAYSON: I just brought out the point that I
wonder why that is wvalid that if the workihg man makes fewer
containers a day., he should lose his job. Explain that to
me. Because many companies work not on the incentive plan.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: If they did not manufacture
additional bottles, in order to maintain the same payroll, would
they not have to increase the price of their product? And
would that not be passed on to the consumer?

MRS . GRAYSON: Perhabsn That would have to be worked
out. “ )

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much, Mrs. Grayson.

I would like the record to note receipt of a petition
signed by people who support A 2212, which was circulated by
Mrs. Richard drill.

We are now going to recess until five after two.

|  (Recess for lunch.)
AFPTERNOON SESSION
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSCON: I would like to resume the

hearing. The other members of the Committee will be here

shortly. We have a lot of testlmony to hearo
First, I would like to enter into the record a
statement by Mr. Winne of the Env1ronment Pollcy Commlttee,
Society of the Plastics Industry, Inc. '
(Mr. Winne's statement can be found beginning
on page 235,.)
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Mrs. Duzinski, do you want to testify, please.

BARBARA DUZINSKTI: I am Barbara Duzinski
of Cinnaminson, New Jersey. ‘

The Pompeston Watershed Association was supposed
to speak today but they will not make comment at this time.
They will later. _

I speak on behalf of my family and friends who are
both concerned consumers and taxpayers.

In a recent consumer poll conducted by the Courier
Post Newspaper, the public wants the return of deposit
bottles. The figures are four to one in favor.

Environmental groups and conservationists have also
signed to support the bill, A 2212,

I also wish to add my support. In the State of New
Jersey, we produce a total of one million tons of solid waste
- per year, of which total, beverage containers account for half
a million tons. We have broken this: 'down as follows:

75 per cent glass is 375,000 tons or 375,000 cubic yards.

This is based on 2,000 compacted pounds per cubic yard. 25
per cent metal is 125,000 tons or 1,250,000 cubic yards. This
is based on 200 compacted pounds per cubic yard. Most of the
counties in New Jersey use sanitary landfills. To deposit

one cubic yard in the privately-owned sanitary landfill in
Cinnaminson Township costs 75 cents. Using the 75 cents ...
per éubic yard, it costs the consumers of New Jersey $1,218,750
to dispose of a total of 1,625,000 cubic yards of waste.

This is only for non-returnable beverage containers.

Not only are we paying an exorbitant price to dispose
of this waste, but the resale of the salvaged material would
realize a total of $8,125,000. The glass industries are
claiming undue hardships in the retooling of their machines
and an unemployment problem. They retooled their machines
fours ago on their own initiative to give us the throw-aways.
Since then, their stockholders have received more dividends
than the consumers. The consumers outnumber stockholders.
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We are paYing fdr sémething weléertainly'ddn’t need
and wasting our natural resources, in addition to the needless
destruction of 1,625,000 cubic yards of area per annum. We
need a deposit bottle. : ,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: You mentioned in your testimony,
the poll showed four to one in favor of —=-

MRS. DUZINSKI: Four to one in favor. This was
printed in the Courier Post newspaper,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: This was an excerpt from a
newspaper article. This doesn't necessarily mean it was a
survey.

MRS. DUZINSKI: It was a survey. They polled over
700 families and it was four to one in favor.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Where is the Courier Post
situated?

MRS, DUZINSKI: It is a Southern New Jersey newspaper.
I have the clipping if you would like it or I can make
photostats and send them in. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Fine. Would you do that and
send it to my address at home. '

Mr. Robert Curry, (Not present.)

Mr. Thomas Conry, Midland Glass Company.

THOMAS J. CONRY: Mr, Chairman, Committee
Members, Ladies and Gentlemen:

My namé is Thomas J, Conry. I am the Vice-President
of the Midland Glass Company Cllffwood New Jersey and
appear as a witness on behalf of the company and its employeesa

With me is Mr. William Ware, Dlrector of Government
Industry Relations of our company. v

We are not members of‘thé Glass Cohtainer Manufacturers
Institute. Although we fully‘support their recycling programs,
it should be noted that our efforts and flgures should be
added to the figures already presented.

Midland has been ope;atlng a regular and continuous

glass reclamation program for the past year and a half. Our
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program was in operation before Earth‘Day 1970. There has been
no lessening of the enthusiasm and dedication of the public who

weekly bring their glass to our plant for recycling.

Currently we have three sources of recyclable glass:

1. Weekly recycling center at our Cliffwood plant. This operation has

taken in approximately 2 million pounds of glass in the past 18 months.

2. The input of recyclable glass from the community and regional civic
and environmental groups who bring in their collections on an

appointment basis. This effort totals approximately 1 million pounds.

3. Commercial bottlers and brewers who operate their own recycling
centers and feed their collections to our plant. This effort has thus

far produced 83 million pounds of glass.

At the present rate we are receiving and recycling glass at an annual rate

of 20 million pounds.

Quite frankly, we have put our money where our mouth is! In the past six *

months some 15 rﬂillion glass containers have been recycled at Cliffwood.
At least 25% of these 15 million containers were not beverage containers.
We have paid out some $100, 000 for this glass and in addition incurred an
almost equal amount in added costs such as transportation, ha\ndling,

supervision and equipment.
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The important message is not that we have expended twice the value of the
returned glass but that we have spentggtwice the value. This cost gap
was caused by start up problems, advertising and promotion efforts and the
normal inefficiencies which go with new operations. The major significance
is that we are learning to perform the task more efficiently and more
economically. Perhaps the collection and recycling of any‘single waste itém
(such as glas s) may never be economically sound, but we do believe a total

approach toward solid waste can become a viable and economically feasible

operation.

We look upon our present cfforts as temporary, stop-gap measures. We
consider the high cost as being justified in order to start the program and

feel that a total, integrated approach will see a reduction in these costs.

What is needed is a total commitment to the entire litter and solid-waste
problem. We do not need a piecemeal, diversionary effort such as
Bill A2212. For these reasons Midland Glass Company wishes to register

its opposit'ion to Assembly Bill A2212.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Conry, at your glass plant,
you use recycled glass. What percentage of recycled glass is used
in your mix?
MR. CONRY: It will range approximately 25 to 30
per cent - 25 per cent in all probability. v
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: 25 to 30 per cent. Has your
company every experimented to see how much reused glass --
What do they call it?
MR. CONRY: Cullet.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: - (Continuing) -- how much cullet

they could use? e , , :
.~ MR. CONRY: ‘I can't say that our company has. I

know from past experience of one instance where glass was
made totally from cullet over a period of about three weeks.
That was at another company with which I was associated.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: I have heard different figures
as to just how much cullet they can use. Some say 50 per cent:
some say 70 per cent. I was just wondering whether you had
any additional information.

MR. CONRY: I think you will find, Mr. Wilson,
that it varies with the various manufacturers within their
own requirements. Do you care to offer any comments in that
direction, Mr., Ware?

MR, WARE: No. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: All right, Mr. Conry. Thank you
very much for your testimony.

I will enter into the record a statement by John J.
Garrity, Executive Director, New Jersey Beer Distributors
Association; in opposition to A 2212;

(Statement of Mr. Garrity can be found beginning
on page 242.)

Is Mr. Leigh here?

EGBERT G. L EIGH, J R.: I am Mr. Egbert
Leigh, a resident of Princeton, New Jersey, and an Assistant
Professor of Biology at the University there, and I wish to
testify in favor of Bill A 2212. :

Everybody has defended recycling, but many have
decried this bill because it does not adopt a "total approach"
to solid wastes. What strikes me about this is that it
seems to me the primary problem with reusing or recycling
trash is separating it into its components, into reusable
components, and that the very piecemeal nature of this bill
may be its primary merit, for just this reason. If it works,
it will concentrate some wastes in eminently reusable form.

I suspect that the primary problem with this bill is that
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there may‘be insufficient facilities to permit recycling the
"nonreturnables" returned for their deposits, that there

had been a previous structure to handlefﬁreturnable” bottles,
but no one has ever before been faced with such an accumulation
of containers, explicitly for recycling. - If this is so,

then it may be very well that this bill does not embrace a
larger segment of solid waste. The machinery of recycling is
not terribly well developed and if we don't start with a

little bit and slowly develop our capacities, we may find our-
selves in serious difficulty.

I fail to see how this bill can affect employment
‘because it should not immediately affect the demand for
non~-returnables. It is not saying that bottles must be of
that sort which are reusable; it is merely a bill that is
designed to facilitate recycling, which everybody but one
that has testified against this bill has explicitly supported.
I have heard only one adverse comment about the idea of
recycling. Everybody else that has opposed the bill has
insisted that recycling is the answer and they have insisted
this without reference to the effect that total recycling might
have on the employment in their particular industries.

So I would strongly recommend further inquiry as to
just exactly what sorts of unemployment afe going to be caused
by this bill. |

Unlike total approaches, this bill does penalize
polluters; that is to say, those who do not help with the
recycling of waste. And I believe strongly that a piecemeal
approach to recycling based upon citizen responsibility should
avoid the need for expensive machinery associated with the
total approcach, separating apart garbage and trash that has
been carefully mixed together in the trash containers
associated with the "total approach" to recycling.

This bottle deposit is surely no more revolutionary
than parking meters which encourage socially-accepted
traffic habits. But I would strongly urge an increase in
the deposit to ten cents.’ '

I hope later legislation will cover the types of
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allowable-cdntaiheféﬁ’taking into account ease of reuse, as well as
taste and health.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? -

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: I can't understand how.ydu-can be
so dogmatic about the efféct on unemployment -when 50 many
have come out and said absolutely we are going to have a
minimum of 10,000 unemployed andvup. Even those who are
strongly for the bill now, recognize the fact there would be
a certain amount of unémployﬁent, The industry insists - and
I haven't seen any figures or facts to challenge them - that
they are going to have an economic impact on them.

MR. LEIGH} I confess to an extreme ignorance and
wish to make only two comments. One is that there has been
considerable dispute about those figures, that the person ‘
who reported, who did the staff work for your Environmental
Protection Agency, weighed in with the remark, as far as his
agency Say it, this bill would increaség not decrease, employ=-
ment. And we have had some more figures'fromyMrsn Hopkins on
the same business. | -

' I have to admit that this is something which requires
further study. But I would also have to admit to‘ah extreme
surprise if the figures on unemployment reported by both
union and industry, it is true, turned out to be correct. I
wonder whether that is not due to a confusion that has been
going all through these hearings - whether this is something
to ban non-returnables or merely to insure their recycliﬁge

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much.

MR, LEIGH: You are very welcome.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Sullivan of Cumberland Farms.
Is Mr. Sullivan here? (No response.)

"Mr. John Gilmour, New Jersey Milk Industry Association.

JOHN C. GILMOTUR, J R.: My name is John

C. Gilmour, Jr. I live in Cherry Hill, New Jersey, and I

am today testiinng for the Néw Jeréey Milk InduStry Association
which I am proud to represent as its President. Since 1928,
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I have operated the Holly Ravine Farm Dairies, serving milk and
~other dairy and food products, such as cﬁocolate drink, orange
juice, fruit drinks, etc., to families at their homes, to

'schools, hospitals,vinstitutions, reétaurants,kstores'and other outlets
where our citizens obtain their daily milk and beverage supplies. _Ovér the

years we have packaged ourl?roduéts in glass, paper, and plastic., Some of the
containers used for some of our fluid products have been, and are, cqmbinations
.of glass, metal, papér, and plastic,‘combined in such a fashion that the consumer
could be advantaged with the least costly, most sanitary and most convenient
‘container for a particular product, These "laminated" containers include glass
~containers with metal caps; paper containers lined with ﬁetal foil; and plastic
containers with metal closﬁres.

As a result of my 43 years'pf experience in the milk business, I am
concerned with the effects Assembly Biil #2212, as it is presently written, will
have upon my business,‘the entire milk industry in New Jersey, and the price of
milk to New Jersey's consumers if it becomes law in its present form.

The milk industry in New Jersey and the Uniﬁed States has been actively
involved in environéental quality problems for nearly a century. The physical
environment associated with the various activities involved in the production

and distribution of milk is a matter of the utmost importance. We have availed

ourselves of the privilege of appearing at this hearing in the hope that our
experience in this complex field may,ﬁe Sf some vélue fo the diséinguished
Committee that is considering Assembly Bill #2212,

I am sure that you are well aware of the fact that the milk industry
is subject to extensive and detailed public health regulations. These were
among the first legislative acts enacted which deal with environmental quality
by protecting the public health. . The benefits of this legislation are so well

known that they do not require documentation here. Less well known are the
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costs, both internal and external, of these acts. Since iegiSIators, administrators
and peopie engaged in the dairy indﬁstr&'haVe learned over the years that there

are costs associéted with-ény benefit}'if seems logical to call the Committee's
attention to this”aSPect of the problem,

.There are three broad tybes‘offboét‘thatrare invariably involved in
legislation of this nature. :fheybare;’

1. Economic .
2. Convenience :
3. Freedom of chqice and action

Because milk is'pfactically a uni&erSal food, costs of this nature affect
almost all New Jeréey cOpsumérs.‘

The economic costs are usually expréssed in dollars and.cents; and are
reflected in the cost‘of the product tqﬂcénsumers. These costs involve such
things as equipment chargés; production érocedures, quality control'practices,
administrative expenses éhdxénfqrcement»cosﬁs.-'A c§ntinuously expanding body of
knowledge has led td mbre and‘ﬁoré ieéiSlation‘with a céhsequent‘increase in
costs. For instance, a.report from thé ﬁ. S.‘Department of'Agriculture states
that fluid milk plants ih‘the United’Sta£es paid $3,400,000 in licenses and fees
to saﬁitary authorities in‘19é7. Oné of the importént things to notice about
these fees, as far as this Committee is concerned;‘is the f;;t that much of this
expense wasvfof‘duplicate'inspections.‘ Some planté had to obéain over 100
licenses, and for the nation as a whoié more than'l0,000 duplicate.inspections
were recorded, The poin@ that I am trying to establish here is the fact thét
wé have learned how easy it is to produce 1egislation that involves unnecessary
costs unless éareful‘aﬁtentibh is paid to the expenses that the\iegulations
entail, |

" The cosﬁyin térms éf ggnvenienqe,ié no# expressed with the preqision
of economic costs because convenience is a personal judgemént. 'Its importance,

howéver, can hardly be over-estimated. ?ASSéhbly'Bili #2212 is concerned with
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returnable and nonreturnable packages. Qopvgniepce, along with»sapitation,‘was
a major factor in‘the expandedvuse of nonreturnéble,paqkages. Practically a;l»
of the beverages described in thié‘bil; have extepsive distribution thrqqgh stores
and vending machines, Consumers do not like returnable cantainers when buying
through stores because Qf the inconveniénce inVolved in returning the container
or paying a higher price. _Vending,machines are not normally equipped to‘dispense
returnable_éontainérs.' The overwhelming predominance of nonreturnable packages
is a clear demonstration of these facts, Simple as thiSyisSue may seem to be,
the cost of changing present consumer buying patterns to Qonform to the present
provisions of Assembly BiliN#2212 will be large. Thus this Bill would not only
inflict the "cost" of depriving consumers of present cqhvenience, but would add
large dollar costs in the process.

The third cost is also external‘and does not appear on the price tag.
This is the limitation on freedom of choice and action. ‘While paragraphs 2, 3 and
4 of the Bill deal with people who "sell," the effect is to restrict the choices
available to buyers. Should this Bill become law' the 1egisléture would, in effect
be telling the peopie of New Jersey,."You cannot purchase the beverages listed
here in metal, glass or plastic containers except‘under certain conditions." »This
most certainly places a limitation on freedom of choice. Now it may be that the
benefits deriﬁed from this legislation outweigh the»costs, in which case passage
of this bill would be justified. _Howgver, gefer:ipg fo our gxperience, when
legislation or prohibitiéns directly affect consumers' daily‘habits;‘they are very

touchy. It is a delicate area.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Gilmour, I just would like
to remind you that you can't read the whole statement because
you are going to go way over the time limit. If there are
certain areas you want to cover, I would suggest yaou do so.

MR. GILMOUR: Mr. Wilson, I appreciate very much your
desire to get this meeting finished, but I have sat here for a
full day and a half. | A '

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: You won't be allowed to read the
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whole statement.

MR. GILMOUR: My statement is a matter of about 3 or 4
minutes longer and I would like permission to read it if I may.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: ©Not the whole statement. You
may continue, but when your time is up, I will tell you.

MR. GILMOUR: (Continuing reading)

with\thése geheral observétions on the cost-benefit equation in mind, I
would like to comment on some-specifié provisions pf the proposed legislation. Up
to this‘time, we have seen no preamble which spells out the objectives. 1Is the
bill concernéd with the total éroblem ;f the environment? Is it concerned only
with solid waéte? Or is it an anti-litter bill? All of these 6bjectives are
laudable goalé,‘but inteliigent comment is hémpered because methods of accomplishing
objectives vary with the objective. For example, if the objective is the
environment as a whole, then the bill is deficient because it deals with only
one of three primary faétors thdt'cause a deterioration in the environment. It
must be recognized that all living things draw energy and raw materials from their
environment and pump waste back into it. Each of these three actions, by itself,
has an adverse impact on the environment. I would like to sub@it a copy of a
paper by Dr., Eastland and Dr. Gough‘of the Atqmic Energy Commission which discusses
this concept in greater detaii. What I am getting at, however, is that if the
intent of the bill is to deal with the total environmental problem, then energy
and raw materials should.bé“considered. |

If the bill is concerned with only solid waste, then the contributions
of returnable containers_to the waste stre#m should be cdmpafed with non—retﬁrnables.
Attached hereto is a study of the‘coﬁtribution to the waste stream of returnable
glass milk botties cémpéred with.nonreturnablg paper milk cartons. The stﬁdy
shows that if all of the‘milk in the Unitedvstates had been éackaged in paper
containers thereawould have been generated a miil@on toné of used milk cartonms.

If all the milk had been in returﬁable.glass bottles averaging Zoitrips per
container, thgre wbuld.have been generated 32 million tons of solid waste, air
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If the objective of the bill is to reducg litter, theq‘the exfgnt to
which deposits’will deter littering or indeed, the extént té‘which containers
constitute litter should be considered. "

In 1969; HEW published a study maée for them By tﬁe Midwest»Research
Institute in Kansas City, Mo. entitled "The Role of Packaging in Solid Waste
Management 1966 to 1976{"~ In it (Page 117) was céntained‘a‘summary of a
survey of litter found along a one-mile stretch of a two-lane highway in the
State of Kansas. That survey l;sted 3,086 items of 1it#er found along thé
survey area. Of these 3,086 pieces of 1i€ter, only the 590 beer cans would
have been clearly prohibited by provisions of Assembly Bill #2212. The 250
pop and beer bottles might have beep prohibited had they been "one-way" bottles,

but they could have been "returnables." Here is the listing of the 3,086 pieces

of litter:

770 papet cups 20‘highway maps

730 empty cigarette packages. 16 empty coffee cans
590 beer cans 10 shirts
130 pop bottles. 10 tires =
120 beer bottles 10 burlap bags
110 whiskey bottles v 4 bumpers

90 beer cartons 4 shoes - no pairs
90 o0il cans 2 undershirts

50 paper livestock feed bags 2 comic books

30 paper cartons 2 bed springs

26 magazines 270

miscellaneous items

We believe that this Kahsaé 1ittér sufvey\graphicaily demonstrates
that the very real problem of litter will not be solved by prohibitions similar
to those contained in Assemblkaill #2212; |

We respectfully urge that the objectives of this bill be clearly
stated. | | |

A second question felates to the phrase "inciudiﬁg fluid milk products",
which is found on 1ineé 5 and 6 of paragraph #1.v There is a definite legal

meaning to the term "fluid milk products" in the state\of'New Jersey.
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Fluid milk ﬁfb&ucﬁé in'ﬁeﬁ73efséy now’inélude‘(in additionvto milk,
cream and the various pon—fat and 1o§-fat milks) sour cream, yogurt, half and
half, ice cream mix,béﬁd cbndénsed]aﬂd(évaporéted miik intendéd for fﬁrther
processing,vamong.others. Most‘of theserproducts are currehtly being distributed
and sold to consﬁmers in>either élaés; plastic or‘paper nonreturnable cbntainers,

" as théy traditionéliy have been. Many of fhesevéohtainérg are actually dual
use containers, such as driﬁking glasses, refrigera£or étofagebcontainers, etc.
Mandatory use of deposit returnable containers for these products would result

in making them practically unavailable for consumers. It appears impractical and

unreélistic to demand that products such as whipping cream, half and half, sour
cfeam and yogurt, to mention but é few, be sold to consumers iny in deposit
containers, We believe conéumers would vigorously resist such a move, and do
not believe it was, or is, the Committee's in;enﬁ to restrict the sale of low
volume specialty products of this nature. We urge that the bill be clarified
in orde# that we may know specifically what products are intended for inclusion.

Lines 9, 10, and 11, paragraph #1 say "'Container' means any device
made of glass, metal, plastic or other similar material used for the purpose of
holding or containing beverages." The meaning of the phrase "other similar
materials" is not clear. Today, the packaging industry uses different materials
as separate parts of the same package or as combination materials, as I mentioned
above.

Is it the‘Committee's:intent to include paper milk cartons within.the
scope of this billé' As our study on the contributions‘torthe waste stream for
glass and paper demonst;ates, one—way‘céntainers are not the»sole, nor in fact

* the largest contributors to solid waste or litter.

.

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Gilmour, your time is up. We
will have your testimony printed in its entirety.
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(Following is the portion of Mr. Gilmour's statement, which he
did not read.) ‘ ' R

We believe that the Committee is inte?estéd in knowing that most New
Jersey schools demand'that milk, juiéés and frgit drinks distributed in the
schools be in non—breakable’paper or plastic.coﬁtéiners for both safety and
sanitary reasons. In addition, most recreational areas, including playgrounds:
and swimming pools, prohibit glass contairers and permit only plastic or paper
non-breakable containers., Is it the Committee's intén£ to invalidate these
safety procedures by making it unlawful to use present efficient non~breakable
containers for milk, juices and fruit arinks?

As of March, 1968, more than 79% of all of the milk used by New Jersey
consumers was sold in "paper and plastic¢" containers, according to a survey made
by tHe N. J. Division of Dairy Industry. Present proviéions of Assembly Bill
#2212 appear to prohibit those sales. To ask that sales of more than 79% of the
milk in New Jersey be coﬁverted from existing to new coﬁtainers poses a production

and distribution problem that is incapable of solution within the near future.

Lines 12 and 13 dealing wifh the definition of "Nonreturnable
beverage container" raises some legal questions., Returnable containers, in
the sense that the term is used, generally reduire a depdsit of varying degrees
of magﬁitude. The deposit is incorporated into the price of the4product. vLet
us suppose that a depésit of 5¢ is charged for a beverage that would ordiﬁarily
sell for 10¢ so that the total sale price is 15¢. The purchaser will get the
5¢ back if the container is returned. However, whether or not the container
is returned is a judgement that the purchaser makes. If he chooses not to
réturn the container thé seller takes no action, Actually two transactions
are involved., One is when the purchaée is made. fhé othei is when the deposit
is refundea on the return éf‘the container., Does title change with each of
these transactions so that‘in the first transaction the store gives.title to
the purchaser and in the second the purchaser gives title back to the store when
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the stbre, in effect, buys the container back from the purchaser? I£ that is the
case, then all containers.are hopfétufﬁabie undgr the definition,_and all
containers are illégél undef the prop;sed iégisiafion. It may be that the law
is clear on this point but wethave nétlbéen able to find a satisfactory precedent.
‘In praétice, éhe differencé between non—rétﬁ:nables and rgturnables is
generﬁlly understood, buﬁ‘the legal implications of this definition leave us
uncertain. For ihstance, there ére many cases of burchasers of so-c;lled non-
returnables bringing them back to the store and saying, "These are yours. You
get rid of them.” In the minds of some pﬁrchasers ;he responsibility for getting
rid of nén—returnabie containers belongs to fhe seller, which suggests that the
buYer did not accept title to the cohtainers. If possible we would appreciate.
a definitiop thét would eliminate these potentiél problemsf
Paragfaph #3’contaihs a requiremént thch appears to defeat all of the
three possible objectives thaf I mentioned e;rlier. This_ié_the phrase tbat
says a refund value of not less than 5¢ shall be‘clearly indicated on the
containef. i havé here an ordinaiy, standard glassvmilk bottlé. It is typical

r

of the'several million glass milk containers used in New Jersey. Iast year about

150 million"quarts’of milk were packaged in glass in this State. That is
approximately 16% of the total of 900‘million quarts sold in New Jersey. Some
were in gallons; some were haif géllons, some lesser sizes. Probably 100
million units were in élass. with returnable{containers, the usual_practice
is to maintain a “floét." This means that'for‘every unit used there are five
or. six other units in transit; in storage,‘being washed, etc, Thus, if there
were 100 millionvunits of milk sold in glass»bottles,,there were 600 million
glass bottles in service. »Fgw, if any,»of ﬁhese bottles have the deposit
statement the bill requires. This representskmofe than a million dollars worth
of bottles that will be illegal undgr the law and must be{discarded. Not only
are the dollars‘wastedﬂ bﬁt of more ;ﬁpqrtancg,.ﬁoo million glass milk bottles

represent 300,000 tons of solid waste if they are thrown éway. To realize what
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this means, consider the fact that if all of the‘milk consumed in New Jersey, I
repeat all of the milk in New Jersey wefé in nonreturﬁabie paper milk cartons
it would take tenbyears to accumulate 300,000 toné of waste.

Now it might be possible to put a 1abel‘on the contaihefs setting
forth the required information, but this would mean a neQ label with each waéhing
and an old label going down the drain. One waste disposal problem would be
succeeded by another.

Finally, it is doubtful that the industry could purchase the number
of new bottles at one time that the act indicates would be necessary. Total new
glass milk bottles produced in the entire United States in 1970 were 53 million
units, Under this bill the industry in‘New Jefsey would haﬁe té acquire 12 times
the total national production last year, I doubt that it is the intent of the
Committee to legislate such a seemingly impossible situation,

To summarize: our experience has shown that legislation of this nature
affects almost all consumers in the State on matters of monéy, convenience and
freedom of choice, all of which are very touchyfsubjects. We think that there

are several critical phrases where the language does not express clearly the

intent of the legislation. Consequently, while we subscribe wholeheartedly
to efforts to improve environmental quality, and to reduce the voluﬁe‘of
solid waste and litter, it is questionable that this bill would contribute
very much toward the realization of any of those objectives, In same éases,
the language would generate actions thaf woﬁld clearly be counter-productive.
We would repeat that this is a most complex area where it is exceedihgly
difficult to draw up legislation that accomplishes desirable goals and avoids
the pitfalls that have so often produced highly undesirable side effects.

We appreciaté the opportunity to appeaf before this Committée. We

stand ready to cooperate and counsel with you further should you so desire.
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Contribution To The Waste Stream

Comparing

Packaging All Fluid Milk in the United States in PAPER .
- vs.
Packaging All Fluid Milk in the United States in RETURNABLE GLASS

If all fluid milk and fluid milk products in the United States (27.3

billion quarts) were packaged in retutnable glass centainers, and purchased by

consumers in the same combination of container sizes (% pint, quart, % gallon,
gallon, etc.) as they used last year, the following waste products would have

been generated:

- Detergents 1/ 10,000 tons

Worn out and broken bottles 2/ 680,000 tons
Bottle caps 3/ , - - 55,000 tons
Milk residue 4/ 85,000 tons
Fuel oil combustion products 5/ : 4,300. tons
Carbon dioxide from fuel oil 6/ 440,000 tons
Additional worn out tires 7/ . ‘ 1,000 tons

. ‘Additional vehicle exhaust 7/ 65,000 tons
Additional worn out truck bodies 7/ 4,000 tons
Water for washing and rinsing 8/ - 30,700,000 tons
Total . 32,044,300 tons

If these same products, sold in the combination of container sizes,

Z

were all packaged in paper,“they would have generated:
1,000,000>tons of used milk cartons - .

(While the 85,000 tons of milk residue would be present both in
paper and glass containers, vith the glass containers the residue
would be washed out and rinsed into the water resource, while the
residue in the paper containers would eithexr be incinerated or go

into a sanitary land £fill,)

1/The detergent figure is derived from a Michigan State University study that
found .00124 1lbs. of caustic per bottle washed.

2/The worn out and broken bottle flgure is based on 20 trlps per bottle,
3/Milk bottle caps run about 230 to 240 to the pound
4/Milk residue is assuming a tenth of an ounce per quart

5/Fuel oil combustion products is based 140,000 tons #4 dlstlllate oil which would
be required to heat 30,700,000 tons of water fran 60 degrees to 140 degrees.

6/The carbon dioxide is the product of burning the above amount of fuel oil.

7/The additional tires, vehicle exhaust and worn out trucks are based on the 25%
additional transportation that would be requlred to handle the glass because of
its weight and bulk compared with paper.

8/The water requirement is based on .27 gallons of water per bottle washed. The
figure is derived from bottle washer manufacturers and from Michigan State
studies. 97



ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON:  Assemblyman Black, do you -
have any questions? . S | , N

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I will have some. Let someone
else start. | S o

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I am anxious to know why you
brought the bottles. o |

MR. GILMOUR: I brought these bettles because I
wanted to tell you that there is not in use in the State of
New Jersey today a milk container which meets the restrictions
of this bill. Every one of the containers thét you see today
‘is. illegal under the terms of this bill. .

The glass bottle that you see there is illegal
because it does not have on it stamped,‘"Deposit Boftle,” and
the amount of the deposit. In my teStimbny‘here; I show
that just to change from the present amount of glass bottles
in use in the State of New Jersey-today'would'be impractical
and impdssible.because it would take five years development
of the.glass industry to produce the bottles that we need.
There are only some 50 million bottles produced a year in
the United States at the present time and right now we‘would
have to have almost 800 million in the State of New Jersey
because all of these bottles would be destroyed. The destruction
of these bottles immediately would add to the amount of glass
that would have to be recycled and be a drug on the market.

- The paper container that you see there has a plastic
coat on it and the plastic coating will disintegrate and
disappear in the ground when it is buried. It can be recycledﬁ
In fact, at the present time, the paper companies are offering
$30 a ton to recycle paper milk éontainers if the people
want to put them together and send them back@ |

So every container that you see there now is illegal
under the terms of this bill. | |

That container there (indicating),is a 1aminated
container that has a small piece of aluminum on it.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Would you like to comment on the
testimony given last week regarding}ﬁheftfendttb'gq'to the
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quart all-plastic container that the milk industry has been
using? , , _

MR. GILMOUR: As I recall the question - I was here
but it would be from memory now - the question was asked
why the milk industry.had left the quart sizes and gone to
larger sizes. | |

ASSEMBLYMAN FAV: Yes. |

MR. GILMOUR: Over the course of years, in an
effort to accommodate the economy necessary to keep milk
available‘to the people in this State, the milk industry has
changed its method of distribution to every other day and
now to a three-day a week delivery. Most of our business has
gone from retail to store deliveries. In doing this, the
amount of milk that is purchased is purchased in larger sizes
and there is very little milk which is sold today in quart
container sizes. It is all in half gallons or gallens or
largerm |

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: But do they have to be in those
allwplastic containers that there has been comment is so
difficult to recycle? ‘

MR. GILMOUR:  The all-plastic container is one
container which is used today. ;W@kdg not use it. As you see,
we do not,havé a bottle there. ’

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: I noticed that.

’ MR. GILMOUR: It is a possible container to use,
but it is one that I understand is a little bit difficult
toc recycle and we have made no comment on that particular ocne.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Testimony at our first hearing
indicated it is the trend for the milk industry in the State
of New Jersey to go to plastic comtainers and discard. ..
wax-paper containers, etc. Do you feél,this is a definite
trend in New Jersey, as far as milk producers are concerned?

MR. GILMOUR: I don't think it is a definite trend
for the whole industry. It is for a few distributors who
have the possibility of putting in what they call a blow-mould

machine, But the general trend for the whole industry, I do
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not feel is to the plastic container.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Let me ask you this: What
percéntage of the milk industry in this State, volumewise,
do you feel ‘i's actually going in that direction?

MR. GILMOUR: I represent the New Jersey Milk
Industry Association and our members represent approximately
80 per cent of the milk which is distributed in the State of
New Jersey. |

The testimony that was given the other day was given
by a representative for two large established companies. They
were seeking advice, as I understood it, in their testimony,
asking whether or not this particular container was going to
be considered as being legal or not. I don't think it is a
trend t h.at  the large volume of the milk business in the
State of New Jersey is going into plastic containers, only
to the extent that vyou see plastic-coatéd and a small plastic
bag, which is in the five-gallon paper container.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: So you don't feel that this is
the trend. 1In the testimony last week, it was said consumers
are finding this type of container easier to handle, etc.,. and
this is the reason they are moving in that direction.

MR. GILMOUR: I can only give you my personal experience.
" We tried it. The acceptance was not what wevexpected and
we discontinued it. »

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSéN; What size containers were they?

MR. GILMOUR: We had it in half pints, half gallons,
gallons, and six quarts, which is a six-quart pack. We
didn't find it as acceptable as paper and we discontinued it.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Mr. Gilmour, since you are
President of the New Jersey Milk Industfy Association - I
don't want to get off the subject of returnable béttles, but
there is one thing that has been bOthering me for a long time
and I have received calls on - in your regular container
there, the paper one with the coating, it is stampéd on there
the day of pasteurization, for instance,'Thursday or Friday.
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Is that égrrect? ‘

MR. GILMOUR: No. Stamped on there is the day of
the week, which is 24 hours. In other words, this is the end
date of 24 hours. It was produced or pasteurized during the
24-hour period ending 6 A.M., with a date which is stamped on
the container.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Is it the date?

MR. GILMOUR: No,eiﬁ is the day of the week.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: That is where the problem is because
I have received some calls that the milk evidently had gone
sour and they weren't sure if it was bottled, or whatever you
might want to call it, on Thursday of last week or the
particular Thursday that they might have picked it up.

MR. GILMOUR: Well, there is a great deal of
discussion in the Board of Health as to the method of dating
milk containers. It is almost a subject in itself and it
takes a little time to go into it. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Well, I didn't want to get into
it, - .
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: We have that bill in our Committee
too, so let's not get involved in that.

MR. GILMOUR: On the container, it says, pasteurized
during the 24-hour period ending 6 A.M. of the date stamped on
the container.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Of the day stamped on the
container?

MR. GILMOUR: Of the day =--

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Not the date? ;

MR. GILMOUR: Of the day stamped on the container.
There are a number of dairies who do not process within the
State of New Jersey who are using the coding of other states
and some of that is bleeding over into New Jersey, so that
the question raised to you may be on containers which were
not processed in the State of New Jersey.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Mr. Gilmour, I have one general

question, and that is this, sir: First, let me clarify my mind
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on this point. Isn't it true that the New Jersey school -
system requires that milk be delivered in non-returnable
containers?

MR, GILMOUR: I don't know whether it is required
universally, but most of the schools require that it be in
some non-breakable container, either in paper or plastic, and
I think that school milk is now universally delivered in paper.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: If we were to charge, let us say --
I don't know; I haven't bought a half pint of milk for a
long time -- What does that run, generally, sir?

MR. GILMOUR: Retail, it will run you 9 centss
at the schools, it will run about 7 cents.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: If I were to go out to a store,
it would cost, say, 10 cents?

MR. GILMOUR: Something like that. ;

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: 1If we were to require a 5~cent
or a one-third markup or 50 pér cent markup in price, and
‘that 5 centswas to be multiplied by the number of pints of
milk sold during the course of a day in the State of New Jersey --
let us say that of all the half pints of milk sold only
50 per cent of the containers were returned, what would happen
and who would be the recipient of the uncollected deposits?
Who should receive the uncollected deposits?

MR. GILMOUR: First of all, the dairy delivering theA
milk to the schools would have to charge the deposit to the
school and then it would be up to the school to collect the
deposit from the student. : »

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I am away from the school issue.
Suppose that I went to the local store and wanted to purchase
a half pint of milk and I gave them my 10 cents plus the
extra nickel and then for some reason I didn't come back to
get my deposit. This nickel along with many nickels like it.-
if it is anything like the Pepsi-Cola situation,'approximately
80 per cent of those nickels given for deposit would not be

‘collected - is money, let us say, in escrow in the storekeeper's
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hands at this point. He is holding that nickel pending return
of the container. If that container never comes back, whose
money is this? '

MR. GILMOUR: I don't think it would be in the
storekeeper's escrow. If a bottler or a dairy is responsible
~for buying thatvcontainer back from the store, then he has to
get'theFS cents before it goes to the store. So the money is
basically going to be in escrow back at the producer of the
product's locatlon, and all that the storekeeper is going to
be in this case is a handler of money. In other words, he
charges 5 cents to the consumer. He gives the consumer back
5 cents. When the bottle goes back to the dealer, the dealer
gives the storekeeper back 5 cents. f

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: And if the consumer does not
come back for his dep031tl then,ln actuality =-=- .

MR. GILMOUR: -- the original producer of the product
has 5 cents. ‘ |

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: And the consumer, on the other
hand, has ===~ | v | -

.~ MR. GILMOUR: - has‘paid 5 cents additional.

That is the way I 1nterpret the bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: It doesn't seem to be a very good
consumer protectiohddevice, does it?

'MR. GILMOUR: No. o

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: That was a question.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Let's ask questions and not
make statements at this time. We are fact-finding.

| bAny other questions? (No responsee) Thank you
very much. | |

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Your statement will be put in
the record in its ent:.rety° R |

MR. GILMOUR: May I call attention to one thing and,
that is, tomorrow morning in the State of Oregon a bill somewhat
similar to thls goes into effect, and in that bill they delete

all products whlch are fruit juices, unfermented, non-carbonated
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artificially-sweetened; fluid milk products and beverages
intended for medical purposes only. So they have deleted all
milk products from their bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Schindel.

LOUIS E. SCHINDE L: Mr. Chairman and
gentlemen, my name is Lou Schindel of the Maplewood EnvironACTION
Group. | "

First, I should like the record to show that while
on previous hearing days, there was a full p:ess'box, today
there are no members of the press apparently present. I
wonder if the people of the State of New Jersey are to get only
half the story. | | : |

Earth, millions of years in the making, is an almost-
perfect group of systems designed to support living things.
Earth's Senica Citizen, man, now in ovérabundance, was once an
innocent albeit negligent user of her. In the last two decades
man has become Earth's destroyer. Competent, objective
scientists in a wide range of disciplines“éttest to this
fact. Just as scientists are concerned, so are we. Are we
not all environmentalists who have come to express our
anxiety in this hearing on A 22127 Of course, we are.

Representativesfrom industry and industrial assoc-
iations, trained lobbyists, will be here to tell us how much
money their firms have spent to promote environmental controls.
Read their ads and learn all about it. Read also the law
reports on judgments against firms for pollution viclations.

By the way, it is rumored that one firm will offer
$200 to every municipality in the State if they will recycle.
I think this is a new high in public relations.

Spokesmen from labor will be present to warn of
loss of jobs for members of their unions. And they are right -
they should talk of jobs. ' : | '

- Let me point out one great difference between the

viewpoints of those I have mentioned and the areas I and my

fellow environmentalists cover. They talk about dollars or
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special interest groups. We talk about Earth, human ecology,
the elements necessary for the continuance of life on Earth,
about life itself. We talk about human values for all
people oh the face of our biosphereo We are for this bill
because it represents a curtailment of the one-way, no-return
society that is choking ocur lives. '

| In writing this bill, the sponsors have wisely
said, "We know that our forebearers and millions in other
countries live in full richness of life.and carry their used
containers back to stores.  We think that some things from the
past are good and this is one. Our New JerSeyg the most |
densely populated state, a corridor state {(or is it a doormat
state?) - our State is beséiged with more than its share of
pollution problems. Here is a logical place to invcke a
correctivé measure. " We of MapleWood EnvironACTION agree.

As we learn more and more about ecology and human
ecology - they are two separate related field - as knowledge,
once hidden on dusty shelves is absorbed, there is a most
important fact shining above all. Inter-relationships must
be studied and understood. In the case of non-returnable
containers, we must understand that litter is but the peak
of the iceberg, dangerous but not deadly. What about the
consumption of natural resources? Think inter-relationships.
Think not only the use of bauxite to manufacture aluminum
but also the massive amounts of fossil fuels used to extract
the metal. Then think thermal pollution from the power plants
and power lines used to trénsmit the power. This is a
pollution chain.

What about the garbage problem, now known as solid
waste management, which is related to this problem?
Incin‘ecrate? What about air pollution? Garbage dumps, now
known as landfills, what about them? We all know that time has
run out for landfills in most of New Jersey.

Recycle, say some people. We are experienced in
Maplewood and we say that to a limited degree, for a short

time, recycling is valid. However, 1f it is forced to grow to
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a point where we compound our mlndless technology through
the 1nstallatlon of large plantsi then we will have completed
another circle of stupidity.

If we are to solve the problem of geometrlcally
lncrea81ng the rate of Earth's destruction - and we are d01ng
just that - we must attack the problems created by the non-
returnables in the same fashion that we shall - we must -
cure other sources of pollution. We must attack causes and
remove them. This bill does just that. Mindful that some
readjustments will be necessary on the part of all concerned,
we, the people, industfy and labor, mindful of.this, say
that this bill should be moved to law with all possible speed.

Time is short. Let us not wait for the first crisis.
Let us act wisely and“boldlys Let us act now and move this
bill, Thank you. i | |

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON:  Mr. Schindel, I would just like
to point out, since you mentioned about the press, that Randy
Young, reporter for the Newark Star Ledger.is here.

MR. SCHINDEL: Good. '

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: And I saw Mr. Bolton Schwartz
who writes for the Passaic Herald here.

MR, SCHINDEL: Good.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: I am sure they are going to
get the statement. Mr. Young wrote the story that was in
last week's Ledger and I am pretty sure he is going to give
the other side. The Trenton Times was in here also this
morning,

MR. SCHINDEL: I am delighted my statement is
amended or corrected, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Mr. Schindel, how many members

do you have in your organization?

MR. SCHINDEL:. Maplewood EnvironACTION has approximately

50 active members. We consider all who bring materials to
us as members and that is, give or take a few, at least a
thousand citizens representlng a thousand households in the

Township of . Maplewood.
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ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I have some friends that live
up there. I was just wondering what was being done. I presume
you are working to better the environment of the Maplewood
area. ' | o -

MR, SCHINDEL: That is true, sir. We have a regular
collection day for glass, aluminum and newsprint. We hope
shortly to add facilities to receive steel. The cost of
this program to the community, to the taxpayer, is only one
cost, that is, the cost of moving a township truck or trucks
a total distance of 30 miles. All other costs are borne by
our group. |

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Thank you.

MRS. ALAN WALLACE: I am Mrs. Alan Wallace
from Princeton, New Jersey. '

Two years ago, recycling was just a dream for many
of us. Less than a year ago, many groups started volunteer
projects. To say we met Qith'skepticism,is an understatement.

I work with 700 familiés, We have household separation
and cleaning of glass cans and paper and have weekly pickups
by private contract. The separation of her solid waste
educates the consumer and makes her aware of the packaging
she brings homee |

Gentlemen, as you have heard in thertwb days of
hearings, everyone is talking recycling. We were right then
andbwe are right now. It may take you a year to realize that
we need such a bill as A 2212, but if it takes consumer power
to do it, we are willing to go out and boycott and work very
hard for the next year until people will listen to us.

We of the Coalition believe recycllng of glass and
cans and _paper and reuse of soft drink and malt beverage con-
tainers are first steps in the intelligent management of
solid waste. Someone has got to be first. The soft drink
industry will not of its own free will give us a choice. They
offer us convenience packaging. | |

Last May I made a survey of retail stores in the
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Princeton area and there were very few beers and.soft‘drinks
that we could purchase in returnable contalnerse .

This past week, yesterday prlmarlly, I went around
again and there are now 9 Amerlcansmade beers that we can
buy in returnable containers. So the beer industry is
llstenlng to us.
| The soft drink 1ndustry, on the other hand, has
gone totally convenience, throw-away contalners, except for
Coke. I don't really feel of.their own accord, by their
own goodwill, they are goihg to take any sort of profit cut
and offer us the choice. We need legislation. |

The milk industry certainly needs legislation or,
at least, the man on Wednesday asked for it,'to give them
guidelines. ‘ ' \ ‘

The ¢glass industry in New Jersey, in 1970, employed
13,600 people. How can they say they are going to lose
10,000 jobs? Do they'mean on a national basis or do they
mean on a State basis? What happens if in two to four years
the man that is méking the beautiful, light-weight plastic
container takes over the whole induStrY? They don't need
glass blowers any more. We don“t need glass containers.

Yet in Mercer County we are going to have very few incinerators
left to burn such containers. We are kind of pushing the
panic button because we realize that solid waste is such a
volume, such a mass, and we have to cut it down.

I don't want the soft drink industfy to get paranoid
or think we are only picking on them, because we are not. We
are’going to go ahead and we are going‘to go through the whole
mass of solid waste and find out how we can cut it back.

So, please, consider this bill very seriously and if
it takes you a long'time to decide on it, that's fine. We
don‘t want to rush. But I do hope that you will see your
way clear to propose Bill A 2212'to the Leglslature for votea
Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questlons°“

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I want to thank you very much
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for coming forward today and giving testimony. How many
glass employees did you mention there were in the State?

MRS. WALLACE: 13,631 manufacturers as of 1970.

That is broken down. Breweries have 6,000 employees.  The
soft drink industry has a little less than 10,000.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: That is breweries --

MRS. WALLACE: -- and soft drink is how I have it
broken down. I have it broken down also on figures of the
payroll and the number of manufacturers for the years 1956
to 1970.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: These are glass industry workers?

MRS. WALLACE: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Or bottlers?

MRS, WALLACE: These are glass industry workers.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Then there are how many employees
at the can manufacturing facilities?

MRS. WALLACE: 7,000, in New Jersey.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON:: Thank you very much.

Mr, McCaffrey, New Jersey Brewers Association.

"JOHN W, Mc CAFFREY: Gentlemen, I have
brought with me today Mr. Bernard,Malloy, a.lawyer, who has been
shanghaied out of Spring Lake to Washington, D. C. He is
senior counsel to the United States Brewers Association,
our parent organization.
I am submitting a statement here which you can
read at your leisure. The statement deals with what our
industry is doing within the State of New Jersey and also what
we are doing nationally. But rather than waste ten minutes
on going through that statement, since you will have ample
time to read it at a later date, I would like, since.others
have availed themselves of that opportunity, to rebut some
of the statements made at this hearing and the earlier hearing.
I wbuld like to point out, as our induStry statement

will bear out, that the brewing industry, including the
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Newark complex, has been in the forefront of American industry,
government and labor efforts td reduce the national problem -
of litter and solid waste disposal.

My member brewers recycle their own paper waste: and
damaged cans and bottles. Our employees are constantly subject
to an intensive educational program on: trash and refuse elimin-
ation. All brewery trucks carry the antimlitter message. All
brewery radio, television, magazine and newspaper advertisements
carry the same message. E }

The record has shown and will continue to show that
the New Jersey brewing industry is vitally concerned with the
improvement of our State's environment. -

In appearing at today's hearing in opposition to
A 2212, I wish to emphasize the fact that all members of
the New Jersey Brewers' Association offer both returnable and
non-returnable packages in the market places of New Jersey.
Further, we offer the returnable packages at a lower price
in an effort to make the returnables more attractive to the
consumer. But in spite of this favorable price factor, the
indisputable result is that the returnable beer package
represents only a small and constantly decreasing pércentage‘

. of consumer preference or‘salesa o ‘

Finally, we know from experience that many of our
returnables which carry a deposit refund do not return. Even
our returnable quarts which have a ten cents deposit have a
very high loss ratio. The conclusion necessarily must be
that a deposit requirement does not bring back the returnables
in the sizable volume,that.we would expect; :, , |

Statements have been made at these hearings that super-
markets by refusing to sell returnables are caﬁSiﬁg‘the
increasing trend towafd convenience or,nonndeposif packages.
Speaking for the brewing industry in the State of New Jersey,:
here are the faéts: There;are probably only 200 or less
supermarkets directly licensed to sell_beer;in,theAentire
State. There is a good reason fortthisjtgentlémen, because
in 1962 a statute was passed by the Staie of New Jersey which
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prohibited the supermairkets from having more than two beer .

or liguor licenses and since that date, they have been stopped.
So I have figures here showing in our direct delivery area --
this is the Counties of Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Middlesex,
Morris, Passaié, Somerset and Union, where we have a population
of over 4,779,000 people and there are less than 100 super-
markets in that area. The bulk of our beer is sold in the
12,000 other types of licensees throughout the State, principally
through package stores and taverns,where the consumer has a
clear—-cut choice between returnables and non-returnables,
regardless of what stance a local supermarket might elect to
take. | '

I repeat that the bulk of our beer sales in the
State of New Jersey occursin the 2,000 plus package stores and
the 8,000 plus taverns who offer a choice of packages,
deposit-bearing returnables and non-returnables.

Please let me clear the record on another point regarding
statements and statistics previously introduced at these
hearings. The statement was made again this afterncon that
the "switchover from returnable, money-back bottles, to
throw-away containers in the beer industry has been paralleled
by a sharp decline in the number of breweries, with a ’
consequent loss of jobs and corresponding decline in payroll."
This inference is a red herring. It is a hoax. I have no
criticism of these well-intentioned ladies who appeared here
tecday because they simply read off what the Crusade for a
Cleaner Environment handed to them. Statistics were also
introduced- to show that the number of breweries has declined
nationally from 262 in 1958 to0.188 in 1967, a decline of
28.3 per cent, and that the brewery employees totals had
declined during that same period to the extent of a payroll
loss of $97,596,800. GCentlemen, it is true that the number
of breweries has.declined;,but this happening, typical of
the history of many other American industries, has nothing
to do with convenience packages. |

|

During the period 1945 to 1955 when 80 per cent of all
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packaged;beer was in returnables, the number of brewing
 companies in America fell from 457 to 231, a decline of almost
50 per cent. The attrition continued over the next decade,
but again it had nothing to do with the steady expression of
consumer preference for non-returnable packages, because in |
1960 non-returnables represented only 38 per cent of the |
national sales and by 1965, 48 per cent.

I will read you off '‘'some New Jersey statistics. to
prove my point when we had an 80-20 per cent ratio.. Dolgers,
you may remémber, went out in 1947. The William Peter Brewery
went out in 1948. Peoples of Trenton went out 'in 1949m Brice
went out in 1951. Union City went out in 1950. There are five
breweries right there. )

The . employment decrease cited, 15.6 per cent over
the 158 to 1967 period ,is quite modest against the number of
breweries, 74, which ceased operation during the same period.
“‘But apart from this serious consideration, the decreases in
employment are attributable to the streamlining of total
brewery operations and increased automation, to more sophisticated
machinery and equipment and to vastly improved plant layouts
- and warehousing facilities. But this is true of all American
industry who to stay alive must improve quality and cost
‘performance by applying modern methods or go under. -

’ I dare say, for example, that the loss in the number

of independent farmers throughout the United States far

outweighs the loss of employment in the brewing industry and

many other industries. But no one suggests.that today's

American farmer should give up his modern techniques and

return to the horse and plow and antiquated crop-growing methods.
I am at a loss to explain the . $97,596,800 payroll

loss that supposedly occurred in the brewing industry during

this period 1958 to 1967. our figures show - and the Department

of Commerce will sustain them - that our payroll jumped from:

$443,000,000 in 1958 té $571,000,000 in 1967. 1In New Jersey

our payroll rosé from $49,000,000 in 1958 to $57,000,000 in

1967. We stand today at $60,000,000.
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"But I am not here today for the primary purpose
of refuting someone else's mathematical deductions, no matter
how erroneous. I appear to respectfully advise you that the
imposition of mandatory deposit requirements on non~returnable
packaging for malt beverages will have serious effects on
the economic wellbeing of my industry, our suppliers in the
State of New Jersey, the retailers and the State, itself.
If wé sell less cans, can workers will be laid off. If we
sell less glass non-returnables, a consumer preference over glass
returnables, glass workers will be laid off, and right down
the line to hauling teamsters, label manufacturers, etc.
I cannot forecast the exact total impact on over-all employment
' in'my industry and suppliers because I cannot predict the
percentage of consumer shift. But I can safely state that
any deposit impediment: on our convenience packages will hurt
us severely and also our suppliers and decrease the State
revenue from our industry. Thank you, gentlemen. (See page 260.)
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. McCaffrey, you mentioned
the fact that even now in all the stores, they offer returnables
as far as beer is concerned - they have returnable bottles.
But really when the average person goes into a package store
or 'a supermarket, they don't see these returnable bottles
out on display. Don't you have to ask for them actually?
MR. MC CAFFREY: I imagine again it is a question of
what they want. Some people like it in cans. Some people
like the quart deposit bottles.  Some people like the 7-ounce
bottles. We have many brands available. They are all there,
the deposits and the non-deposits. '
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: But having them in the back
room and out on the shelf are two different things. A lot
of people, for example, may come “into a package store and
just pick up a couple of six packs of beer. A housewife
may not select a certain type. She sees what is on the shelf
or in the cooler and says, "Ifll have two cans of that." But
actually the returnables are not on display, are they?
MR, MC CAFFREY: I am not so sure of that, Mr. Chairman.
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I think the housewife has her mind pretty well made up as

to what type of package and what brand she wants when she
goes into that store, as with any other commodity on the
shelves. I think she has her mind made up whether she

likes the returnables, and perhaps she doesn't like it
because of the inconvenience of bringing it back. But the
fact remains that we sell both packages throughout the State
of New Jersey. So I would like the bill amended to exclude
me because I offer both. I'm kidding, of course.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Mr. McCaffrey, I notice that
they are now putting out 7-ounce beer cans. |

MR. MC CAFFREY: That's right. s

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Could you tell me offhand the
difference in the amount of metal that is used between the
regular l1l2-ounce can and the 7-ounce can?

MR. MC CAFFREY: No, I could‘not, sir. I'm sorry.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Another thing, just for my own
knowledge, why was there such a decline in the breweries?

I mean, that has been brought out here.

MR. MC CAFFREY: I explained that and.I think it
parallels the automobile industry. At one time you may .
recall - I don't say you recall - but it is in the history
books - the State of New Jersey had well over 100 automobile
manufacturers right here in the State. I think we follow the
same pattern as the rest of the American industry.  Either
you grow bigger or you go out of business, one or the other.
Either you come up with a better product, better merchandising
method, better quality contrxol, better lines of distribution,
or you are not going“umsurvivé; I think that is the history
of American enterprise, gentlemen, as rough as it may sound.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I would like to ask, sir, if
you wouldn't include better packaging.

MR. MC CAFFREY: - Yes. Well, again, I have listened
to these groups here and I hope they understand that all
of our suppliers = and I think I have been fortunate to
sit here for a day and a half and listen to what the glass

‘companies are doing, the can companies are doing, the steel

114



industry is doing -- I hope nobody gets the idea that they
are alone in this effort to clean up the environment.

I think it has got to be a combination of industry, of labor,
of the state and federal goverhment, of~county government and
municipalities, and the homeowner himself or herself. We

are not going to do it singly and we are not going to do it
by picking out one phase of this problem and penalizing us.at
the expense of jobs. |

Incidentally, Congressman'Sandman mentioned 30,000
jobs. I just want to correct the record on that.

Also in the question and answer period, Joe Stevens
of the AFL-CIO stated that there were 10,000 jobs in his
industry and also in the glass industry, 5,000 in the cans
and 6,000 in the teamsters. I think you will find that 6,000
figure in Mr. Nalikowski's statement which was presented to
you here today. I don't know how accurate these fellows are.
All T can tell you is this, that if we don't sell beer, if
we are locked up, if we are penalized for selling cans, our
revenues are going down. It isn't juSt a question of some
warehouseman - it goes right aé;oés the board in the brewery
industry. It affects the bottler, the brewer, the warehouseman,
the driver, the mechanic, the machinist, the engineer, the
electrician, etc. We don't have any piece rates like this
one lady brought out today. There are no piece rates in
our industry. They are paid on a full daily rate. TIf we .are
not making money, if we are not getting the volume, then we
are necessarily going to lay off. And our suppliers who are
not buying from them in the same volume as today, they must
necessarily lay off too if they don't have the customers.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. McCaffrey, on the other
hand, when you talk about the number of people being laid off,
let's say, in the brewery business. - when you bring these
bottles back, they are going to have to be washed, etc., and
this will shift employment in another area. Also you are
going to have a lot more helpers because you are going to
have more empties. You know, according to the union rules,
there is .a"certain number of cases allowed on a load. And if
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yvou are going to have more emptles coming back to the brewery,
more work will be involved. $So is it not. -a. poss1blllty that
there may be some shifting‘asbfarvas job classifications
rather than a layoff as far as the employees ére concerned?
MR, MC CAFFREY: Our employeee’now are equipped
to pick up the returnables. , ‘».‘ . | |
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: What about the washing and
stotring of them at the brewery? |
MR. MC CAFFREY: We probably would have to put
on some additional help in that area, but that is not a
tremendous job. It is‘a quesﬁion,of,sorting@
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Also unloading the truck. This
takes a lot.of time. - | P |
MR. MC CAFFREY: We have palletized operations. I
don't see any great.manpower increase on that. I do think
that we would have it in one phase of the brewery, a
relatively minor phase, and that is the glass washing end
of it.where we are actually sortiﬂg out that glass.
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Alsc unloading the truck.
Let's face it, you don't use‘palletized operations for
unloading the trucks, not the small delivery trucks.
MR. MC CAFFREY: That's for sure. '
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: That isgall individual work.
MR. MC CAFFREY: That's true, and then we have to
sort the glass. It doesn't comevback‘sparkling clean. We
have to differentiate. We may have somebody else's glass in
there. There is some manpower involved in that. The over-all
loss on our sales would hit all other departments. We might
pick up a dbzen men here end'lose 100 some place else,
because odur can bu51ness is a tremendous business in the
State of New Jersey and so is our non-returnable glass.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: One additional question with
regard to employment - I know that we have roughly five
major glass manufacturers in the Counties of Salem and
Cumberland. I do not know that,we have any major breweries
in those two counties. Areryoﬁ awereeoﬁ-any major breweries

there? o
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MR, MC CAFFREY: No. Incidentally there was one
thing stated here I would like to correct. One of the ladies
quotéd Mr. King, who is President of the United States Brewers
Association, as saying there were 80 breweries. That is true.
There are 80 breweries, but there are now 135 plants. Because
many of our brewers like Pabst have several breweries.
Anheuser—Busch has several. Rheingold has several. Those
three are in the State of New Jersey, along with Ballantines.
We do have two small ones down here in this néck of the
woods, but the bulk of the business is done by my pecple.

- ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: However, since there are not
brewerles located in the areas where five major glass factories
are located, we would have to relocatevpeopleilf we are
going to give them jobs washing bottles at the breweries.

MRO'MC‘CAFFREY:"I know that sounds: . fine to people
that haven't been in industry to say you just shift men from
one place to another. But you shift men with 25 years of
seniority over to some brand new plant as a brand new man,
and this relocation, if it does occur, is an unhappy one
for him. He is being shifted from what I could consider to
be a semi—skilled or skilled job to practically an unskilled
one if that is all he is going to do, sort bottles and wash
glass. ' |

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you very much.

MR. MC CAFFREY: Thank you, gentlemen, and I would
like you to hear from Mr. Malloy.

BERNARD F. MALLOY: Mr. Chairman and members
of the Committee: I am going to make my remarks as brief
as possible. I understand‘from\what was said earlier that
the record of the hearing is going to be kept open for, I
think one gentleman said, a couple of weeks

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: It will be kept open for a week
and a half. T believe that will allow sufficient time.

- MR. MALLOY: My name is Bernard F. Malloy. I am
Vice Pre51dent - General Counsel of the United States
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Brewers' Association, a national trade association of American
brewers and of suppliers to brewers. The U. S. Brewgrs“
Assoclation is incorporated in New York‘statea Ité priﬁCipal
office is located at 1750 K Street, Northwest, in.Washingtoh,
D. C. | -

As stated, I am here at»the invitation of my associate,
Mr. Jack McCaffrey of the New Jersey Brewers' Association.

With me are Mry(Dan Adams, U,S.B.A. District Director, formerly
of Princeton, New Jersey, whose responsibilities include the
State of New Jersey; and Mr. Pauvaavérlyg‘wlloihas just been
employed by the U.S.B.A. as its field“representative for -

the State of New Jersey. Mr. Caverly 'is from Maywood, New
Jersey, and is presently inaugurating an extensiVe program of
litterx:: prevention via education throughout the State.

I should add that although I presently reside in
Washington, D. C., I am domiciled in Néw Jefsey and I am a
property owner and a taxpayer here.

Our Association was founded in 1862. It is the oldest
continuous incorporated trade association in the United States.
Our brewer members produce about 90 per cent of American beer.
Most of the New Jersey brewers who are members of the New
Jersey Brewers' Association are members of the U. S. Brewers'
Association. The great majdrity of the out-of-state brewers
who ship beer into New Jersey are members of our Association
and in addition plants orx offices are maintained in New
Jersey. v ‘ |

Indeed, my comments are going to reflect the extreme
concern of the entire brewing industry complex of this state,
including lodal brewers, shipping brewers, etc., as they
assess the inevitable disastrous impact that this ill-advised
proposal A 2212 would have on beer, the food béVerage of
moderation to most New Jerseyites.

I respectfully register thé Vigorous‘opposition of
the U. S. Brewers' Association to this bill, which in the
matter of beverage containers would in effect ban the can,

prohibit the no-deposit bottle, and force a reversion to an
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outmoded unrealistic, inefficient, 1nconvenlent, expensive,
unnecessary,'returnable—only dlstrlbutlon system by the
imposition of punltlve requlrements and penal sanctlonsm

I regret that our 1ndustry and others who have
testified at this hearing were not consulted by the State EPA
Office while they Were constructingvtheir staff policye '
I think our research and our informational data would have
been of interest to them and I take this opportunity on
behalf of our Assoc1atlon to offer thls a551stance to your
Committee, to the State EPA and to the private groups who
are here today, with respect to this bill.

- As I have indicated, we are embarked on a constructlve

program,of litter prevention by education in the State of
New Jersey. We have had considerable experience in this
area in some 42 states. - And working with Mr. McCaffrey, our
men will be travelllng throughout the State showing litter
preventlon films and slide programs to groups ranging from
school children to Chambers of Commerce and government and
fraternal organizations. We already have received permission
from some of your local school systems to‘embark on this
program‘in their schools@

_ In addition, these gentlemen will be involved in
speaking engagements before clubs to discuss the need for
litter prevention and will assist the local communities
interested in organizing and developing local clean-up
campaigns. They will participate in the formation and
direction of litter prevention programs, often serving as
cfficers of various organizations in this respect.

' We, of course, were one of the founding members of Keep
America Beautiful. You might be interested in khowing - I
don't think this has been mentioned before at the hearing -
that Keep America Beautiful, which is the nationwide
organization devoted to the beautification of our country, has
kept a litter index, in which they have attempted to measure
litter throughout the countrya. They began this in the early
part of the “60_5@ It went up durlng the '80's, but I am
happy to report that the litter index throughout the country
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kept by KAB has now taken a downward turn and in the last
two years has droppéd twice and is'HOW'doWn 6 per éeﬁtéﬂ
This is a healthful sign. I don't know who deserves the
credit for it. I think it is, however, a combination of
the fact that the American public has been alerted to the
seriousness of the problema ' |
I would like to mention a couple of matters with
respect to the bill which haven't been brought out. I don't
plan at this time - and this is not thé forum - to get into
a lengthy discussion of the question of the legal validity
of this bill. There is no doubt that there are problems |
involved with it as to whether or not it is a valid exercise
of the police power of the state. There are constitutional
problems involved as to whether or not it is an infringement
upon interstate commerce or upon due proCess or upon equal
protection of the laws as set forth in our Federal Constitution
and I believe paralleled to some extent in your State
Constitution. } '
' One phrase in the bill caused us a great deal of
concern; it prohibits the sale at wholesale or at retail.
It does not define the phrase '"sale at wholesale.”" I
think it was prcbably the intention of the sponsor that this
would involve a sale to a retailer. waéver; in some states
the definition of "sale at wholesale" is broader than that
and might encompass the sale by a manufacturer to a‘wholesalero
If that should be the case in this state, this would simply
mean that a New Jersey brewer couldn't sell to any wholesaler
from out of state who came in to pick up beer at his dock
where it is usually sold FOB. T don‘t know that this was
the intention of the bill, but this is one of the things
that gives us pause when we read it, and it is certainly
something that should be spelled out clearly by definition.
| Another important aspect of the bill which hasn't
been touched on completely at the hearing is the fact that
all beer containers presently in use in New Jersey would be

outlawed. This is due to the requirement in the bill that
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all beverage containers must have clearly indicated on

the container the refund value.  This means that manufacturers
would have to make a unique provision in their manufacturing
process for a special container which wbuld'bebused'onlY‘in
New Jerseys This, of course, would create havoc in production
lines and schedules and'would be another factor leading to

an increase in the cost of the production.

Supporters of the bill have made several references
to the advantages of the olden days. I suggest, gentlemen,
b'that if it were possible for your Committee to amend the
bill to legislate youth, I would be willing to go back to
‘some of the problems of the olden days. Absent that, we
certainly would not.

Let me mention Oregon which has been touched on on
a number of occasions. This year there were some 235 container-
related bills introduced in 45 states. The only state which
passed one of these bills is the State of Oregon. This bill
does not go into effect until October of 1972, one year away.
I think I can say without question, gentlemen, based on
reports that have appeared in the papers, that the validity
of this bill will be challenged in the courts.

Only one other state in the past has ever passed a
ban on convenience packaging and that was Vermont which '
did.itlearly in the '50's where they passed a ban on the sale
of beer in non-returnable glass containers. The Governar of
that.state appointed a study commission to study the effects
of the bill on litter and the report of that commission indicated
that the law had not appreciably solved the litter problem
and the law was perm;tted to lapse. .

Last year in the State of Washington, the voters
went to the polls and rejected a measure which would have
imposed a 5-cent mandatory deposit on beer and soft drink
containers. |

’ There are some 20 container-related bills pending
in the Federal Congress and much has been said here about
the exhaustive studies which are pending in Washington, relating
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to the problems of beverage containers. . ,

At the local level, some 20 localitiesvhave passed
some type of ban on convenience packaging for beer and
soft drinks. To the best of my knowledge,hnone of theée
is in effect, with the possible exception of one measure
relating to parks. This began, of course, in the Town of Bowie,
Maryland, and the County of Howard in Maryland, where
mandatory five-cent requirements were imposed and I advise
vou, if you don't already know, that both of those ordinances.
are presently in litigation before\the courts.

So we have at the present time, the Federal government
engaged in exhaustive studies; many state governments have
commissioned studies by various committees which are in progress
- now,relating to. this. ‘oaof
, I want to wind up my brief presentation by expressing
some surprise with respect to this. It seems that two of
the most significant, perhaps popular, movemehts in our
country in recent years have been consumerism and ecology.

Of course, the alcohol bevérage‘industry is particularly
attuned to the needs and desires and preferences of the
consumer because we went through one experience with direct
anti-consumerism which was the farce of Prohibition. Theiefore,
we are vitally concerned with a movement which would impose
additional restrictions not just on our industry but on the
consumer. And this‘bill would represent a partial prohibition,
not only on the industry but on the preference and the |
convenience of the consumer of our products.

Of course, it is inevitable that this type of
legislation would result in a higher price for beer to the
consumer and the denial of his freedom of choice in the
marketplace, by requiring that he have considerable funds
tied up in deposits, and the fact that he may have to pay
heavier taxes to make\up for the inevitable loss in tax
revenue which would accompany a deéline in sales of beer,
which pays heavy eﬁcise taxes, which would ignore his comfort,

cleanliness, convenience and preference, and which would
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eliminate from the market in New Jersey a number of brands
that are presently carried here. : : ,

The -effect on the State of:New,Jegsey has been
pointed out in detail. I would add to it, however, the fact
that you are dealing with a product which has produced some
$41/2 million for your. State last year in excise taxes
alone. It is inevitable that there be a loss of sales.

I can't tell you precisely‘what the loss of sales WOuld be.
Accompanying that loss of sales, as we have seen throughout
the country not with respect to these bills, because we |
haven't had the experience, but with other measures which
have caused loss of sales, has been a decline in tax revenue.

It would hurt, of course, the general business
climate of the State. It would have an inflationary effect.
And with respect to the Chairman's question earlier about
shift of jobs, again we are talking about something that
we have not had direct experience in, but it is possible,
as you indicated, that there would be some type of shift
of jobs but the loss of jobs would come in th@se which are
comparatively high-paying, skilled jobs, which provide
”excellent fringe benefits, &hd sﬁbstitution for a part of
them of seasonal, part-time,schooluboy type employmént that
was mentioned by Assemblyman Dennis when he talked about
how*in.the old days they used to pick up bottles and redeem
them. There might be a shift, but the net result of
the shift, I am afraid, would be deleterious to your state.

Thereforé, I’say to you gentlemen, let's live in
our own time. The answers to the problems, I believe, are
education, voluntary recycling and improved technology.

We recognize the urgency of preserving the quality of this
state’'s environment and I want to because I am domiciled in
the state. As an industry voted into existence by the
affirmative action of the people, we are aware of the urgency
of accommodating ourselves to the public interest and
respécting the public's preference and freedom of choice.

We are deeply concerned with the danger to our nation and
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state.--

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Malloy, how much longer?

MR. MALLOY: Ten seconds - twenty seconds.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Goc ahead.

MR. MALLOY: (continuing) -~ and to our already
heavily taxed and restricted industry and to the public's
options which ri's inherent in unreasonable, discriminatory
legislative proposals to penalizé convenience beverage
containers. These represent another legislative cost of
doing business which must result in ever-increasing costs.

We believe that the American public can and should
continue to enjoy freedom of choice, while at the same time
we, as manufacturers, and others in our industry, such as
distributors and retailers and the consumers of our packages
and products can contribute substantially to concerted efforts
to constructive solutions to problems of litter controi and
solid waste management. We have begun in the State of New
Jersey and we pledge our cooperation. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No response.)
Thank you very much. ' ‘

MR. MALLOY: I believe you said we have a week and
a half to file a statement.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: - The record will remain open
until Priday, October 8th. It will be approximately a week and
a half and then we will have the transcript printed.

_ Megs: -LynpecAbedi. (oo oy somento ool T D SN
Lo¥iN NMiEc oSco WAVYB E L@ Nearly all of the two hundred
houdewives in my apartment complex, which is in Princeton
Township, wash and sort all our‘households' bottles and cans
for recycling. We have not reduced our beer intake; we
simply wash the bottles and save them for recycling. We have
thus shown our willingness to make the extra effort necessary
for alleviating our community's solid waste problem. However,
if we were to recover a deposit on at least some of these
containers, we would realize a greater return for our effort.

Not only would we personally save the price of new containers
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for each beverage purchased, but also would our community save
the cost of multiple handling of container refuse. By this
I mean,-it_is the community that is responsible for getting
rid of the throw-away containers, not the bottlers or anyone
else: it is the community that pays - the municipality that
pays the cost. Unfortunately, it is currently impossible
to buy most beverages in returnable containers. Mr. Chokola,
whom you have already heard, had serious difficulty maintaining
his bottling business with returnable bottles because the
glass supplier simply refused to fill his orders. Mr. Chokola
discovered what every housewife also knows - we do no£ function
in a free marketplace, but must make do with what a few large
manufacturers deem profitable and convenient for themselves.
Consumer-~housewives must, therefore, rely upon our elected
officials to help protect us‘from such wastefulness as
throw-away containers. .

I urge YOu to act firmly invourvbehalf and pass
Assembly Bill 2212.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No response.)
Thank you very much,

Don Read.

DON R E A D: Mr., Chairman and members of the Committee,
my name is Don Read. I am employed by M&T Chemicals Inc.,
with general offices in Rahway, New Jersey.

I welcome the opportunity this afternoon to briefly
outline to you gentlemen a technology ﬁhat is relatively
little known by the general public that is used in the
recycling of tin cans.

I am sure we all know how glass and aluminum and
paper are recycled, but tin cans have been recycled in
the United States in the laSt‘65 years. This technology
was born right here in our own State of New Jersey in the
Town of Cartaret. At that time, my company was ihvolved in
the processing for reuse of tin-plate scrap that was generated

in the manufacture of tin cans. Currently, we are doing
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this in seven facilities located throughout theiUnited

States and Canada, having'an annual capability of over
400,000 gross tons pér year. We not only process tin plate
now but are receiving in ever ~increasing quantities tin-free
steel, which is also a can manufacturing material, as well as
bi-metal cans, which we are effectively putting back into

the industrial stream.

Since our inception back in Cartaret,swe have
processed over 13 million gross tons of material that would
otherwise have been thrown in the discard and never brought
back into use again. We are currently one of the two largest
de-tiners - now we are recyclers - in the entire world.

In the United States today there is recycling capability
of over 1 million gross tons per year. '

The process that is used currently at our plant in
Elizabeth, NeW'Jersey, I think would be of interest #o most
pecple, in that we recéive the material - primarily‘cans now -
used cans, rejected cans in manufacture, and clippingsy and
this material is first shredded, the tin is dissolved there-
from by intrbduction into strong hot alkaline solitions: resulting
in clean steel. It is then baled and the tin is recovered
by electrolysis from solutions. This tin is the purest tin
that anyone caﬁ buy in the world. It is much purer than the
virgin tin from ore. The tin we recover from ~recyclin§ this
material is utilized.primarily in our own company in our
Chemical Division, where various inorganic and organic
chemicals are made. Some, of course, does go right back
into the tin-plate industry which forms more cans. Others
are used as a catalyst in the production of urethane foams,
food preservatives, antifoulants for marine paint and
poultry medicants. ‘

The steel scrap is of wvery, very high quality, much
sought after by the steel industry where it is recycled back
into steels of high grade.

An ever-increasing-amount of it is used in the
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copper industry for éeméhting:éopper from leached solutions.
Over one-third of our virgin copper is now recovered in this
manner by recycling over processed tin cans.

We have also worked very closely with reclamation
projects, representatives of whom have appeared before your
Committee. I personally have worked quite closely with
Henry Seales who haéQSet upfa very exemplary program in
Long Branch, which also has,ﬁad its offsprings, first,
second and third generations, throughout the State..

You have heard mentioned that over 50 per cent ofv
the tin cans produced today are used in the beVerége industrye
If this bill should pass and beverage cans are not allowe&
to be produced, this would’reduce the raw material available
to our facility in Elizabeth to the point that it would no
longer be economical to conduct operations. True, we are not large
compared to these other industries, although we currently have
a payroll of 40 people operating there. _ '

We welcome tin cans,biﬁmétilor steel,from any source
whatsoever. We work with many ecology groups, as mentioned
before, and will continue to do so.

I might say in closing that should your Committee
decide to have another hearing, it might be well to consider
a possible meeting up in the Elizabeth area, at which time I
cordially invite you on behalf of the company to come with
me and tour our facilities at Elizabeth, which I think you
will £ind very unique and most interesting. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Mr. Read, do you do all of the
so-called detinning at your Elizabeth Plant? ,

MR. READ: That is all we do at the Elizabeth Plant,
yes, sir. | ' ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Nothing in the Avenel area?

You are across from the State Prison, aren't you?

MR. READ: No, that is our office in Rahway. We
don‘t detin there. Our,facility‘is in Elizabeth, out on
North Avenue. B : |

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: . I see. Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Read.
Is Mrs. Carl Light here? . (No response.) |

Mrs. Margen Penick.

MARGEN PENTICK: I am here at . the request of
the Princeton Township Conservation Commission. I am a
Commissioner.

We undertook a study of these problems in Princeton
last winter. We realized it was a very complicated subject.
not going to try to bore you with all the many facts and
things that we read because I am sure you have heard a great
deal of that. I would like merely to summarize some of our
thoughts on this. ‘

, In the first place, we sent a report - we are an
advisory body -- we sent a report to the Township Committee
and these are our recommendations:

Number ¢ne,Princeton Township should memorialize the

I am

State Legislature to prohibit the use of non-returnable bottles

and cans in connection with the sale of beer or soft drinks,
and to require a substantial refundable deposit on all such
containers. A deposit of ten cents is suggested.

Princeton Township should adopt a local ordinance
prohibiting within the municipality the sale of beer or
soft drinks in non-returnable bottles or cans, such ordinance
to take effect one year from the date of adoption.

Princeton Township should urge the Borough of
Princeton and other neighboring municipalities to adopt
similarx ordinances. ‘

At such time as ‘a’ practigal, bio=degradableé bottle
or container becomes available, the foregoing recommendations
should be reconsideréda

This is dated March, 1971.

I am bringing this up to suggest that there is a

great deal of interest in this problem on the municipal level.

At the time this report came to the Princeton Township Committee,

we already knew that this bill was going to have a hearing
and they decided to wait on any such legislation until the
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State had made a decision. But I think you will find that
municipalities, individuals and groups are hoping for action,
| hoping the State will take it and, if not, will’probably .seek
ways themselves to further this sort of an idea.

| I would just like to go through a few of our
rconclusions after we had studied the problem for‘fiVe'or
six months. : .

Citizen awareness of pollution has increased and
will continue to increase. ThroWHaway products are beginning
to be identified by the public with pollution. The consumer
pays a higher price for throw-away bottles at the store.

In addition, he pays the cost of disposing of non-returnables
through the increasing expenses of solid waste management.

Now this cost is spread broadly over the population, whether
or not one is a user of a great volume of soft drinks and beer.

The bottling industry wishes to pass on the cost
of this very necessary part of their business to the public.
They have to have containers. Supermarkets and groceries
do not want the cost of handling these products and we have
become involved in a cost shuffle, what you might call a shell
game.. Marketers, distributors and bottlers are eager to pass
the costs and problems involved in containers on to the citizen,
therefore, the municipality, and ultimately the State.

Now we can talk about tax loss, but I haven't heard
anybody mention the enormous increased costs of waste disposal,
which cannot be undertaken in an intelligent way by the
municipalities alone and are going to have to be supported by
the State and it is going to be extremely costly.

- The basic question, as we saw it, became: Should the
user and those who make their profits from the use of containers
be able to thrust the cost of disposing of their materials
on to the municipalities, the counties and the State, or
should they be responsible for the cost of the biproduct of .
their production? If this cost‘is handled only byamuniéipalm
ities, it will result in sky-rocketing costs. Well, already
we have sky-rocketing costs of municipal and county solid waste
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disposal, and this can only be increased by an enormous
flood of disposable bottles and cans.

We realize that this Assembly Bill does not attack
the whole solid waste problem, but is merely a beginning,
attacking merely one area.- : o

As in all pollution controls, jobs would be lost in
some areas of industry. However, jobs would be gained in the
pollution control area; for example, extra trucking time to
return bottles, extra men at supermarkets, etc. would be
needed. _

Oné qyestion we addressed ourselves to was: Why
single out the bottle industry? Why should they be forced
to be the first to attack a problem of municipal solié>ﬁaété?v
The answer that we came up With, although this probably |
doesn't sound very good to them, was that because at this
time they can do something about this waste problem. We read
many articles and pamphlets about dream machines which are
going to sort all these materials, recycle them, etc. Théy
don't seem to be available right now. And if they were avail-
able, I know that our own county, when they heard a cost
estimate, didn't feel that it was something we could buy
right away. |

| A bill like this is a temporary solution but it is
something that we can do now. Also to continue as we are
is to endorse the throw-away society; to continue to teach the
disposability of bottles, cans, and waste is to continue to |
teach the disposability of our land resources and our
environment.

As I have listened, I have jotted down a couple of
.comments. One person asked the question:  What is detrimental
to ecology about landfill? I believe if we were to use only
landfill as a dispoéal method, we could all be buried soon
in trash. In Princeton there was a proposal to use a Girl
Scout camping area, which is a ravine, for solid waste. But
when they researched how long it would take to f£ill it up,

it was only several years and that really isn't any answer to
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the problem. We could fill up all our empty spaces and we'
would still be overwhelmed with trash.

Supermarkets do not encourage non-returnables. This
costs the supermarket.extra.and the soft drinks are a low
per cent of their total volume of business. The reason we
suggested a ten-cent deposit is that we too realize that
people are not going to return bottles if there is not a
major economic incentive. They are going to throw them
away if it is two cents or three cents.

Addressing ourselves to the problem of a dealer
being flooded by out-of-state or out-of-town bottles, the
only answer we could come up with, which may not be very
good ,was to suggest scrip. This would be a problem for the
merchant because he would have to.také the time to give it
out. On the other hand, he might find that if people could
only return their bottles at his store, it would at least
- bring his customers back. '

As far as job loss - and I don't know the answer to
this - I was toldbby a local bottler that in order to be
dealing in returnable bottles, a bottler needs four times
as many bottles at any one time as he does if he has recyclables
because he has to have his bottle in the store on the shelf,
the bottle he is working on in his plant, plus the bottles
that are going out and coming back. So there may not be
as few bottles around as some people have led us to believe.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON:  Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: You mentioned a ten-cent deposit
on a bottle. A :

MRS. PENICK: I merely brought that out to show there
is municipal interest in this and that we are hoping the
State will act. I realize that your bill is different.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Would you recommend the_same
deposit on a can? o .

- MRS. PENICK:. ‘Yes. - I'm ‘sorry. It should have
read "containers,” We felt it should be on bottles and cans.
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As a housewife - and many people have spoken as housewives -
I must say I feel milk should be exempt from this. Because
the cost figures that I uncovered suggested that if the user
himself is paying the added cost of disposing of the container,
this will raise the price of'milkfconsiderablys‘ I feel this
is a case where there would be a greater social value in
allowing milk not to be included because I feel our society
should support it. It would be the poor people in the case
of milk who would suffer from increased cost. But I feel
for the other bottles and cans, this would be a fair user
tax@A»If~they didn't return it, they would lose the deposit:
and if they returned it, they would get their money back.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you. -

I would like to enter into the record a statement in
support of A 2212 from the Mayor of the Borbugh of Princeton,
Robert W. Cawley. ' ' ‘

(Letter from Mayor Cawley' can be found
- on page 245.)

Nancy Masterson, Hightstown—EastkWindsor Ecology

Coalition.

NANCY MASTERS O N: I am Nancy Masterson, resident

of East Windsor Township and Chairman of the Hightstown-East
Windsor Ecology Coalition.

Please note that Mrs. Teri Provissiero prepared the
following statement. Mrg,Provissiero was here on the 22nd,
but time did not permit her to present her material. She
was not able to be here today at this time because she is
attending a meeting in Princeton on solid waste and recycling.

I am pleased to have the opportunity to speak before
the Committee.. I would like to present a summary of the
statement. | -

The contribution that non-returnable containers make
to litter all over this country is nothing that can be
overlooked. The Bureau of Solid Waste and Management has

said in their publication The Rdle of Packaging in Solid Waste,

‘and I quote: "Quantitive and qualitative changes in
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packaging materials consumption in the 1966-1976 period will
1ntens1fy the lltter problem prlmarlly by prov1d1ng greater
quantities of non returnable beverage containers. "

In Oregon where people buy one million throw-away
beer and soft drink containers per day, most of them end up as
litter. e People's Lobby AgainsthonmReturnables of Oregon
conducted a survey picking up‘littero In two hours, they
picked up 16,850 beer and soft drink throw~away containersa
This may seem an impressive figure, but it only represents
twenty—four minutes worth of daily consumption in that state.
The results of the survey, conducted under controlled conditions,
were as follows: ' L :

54 per cent of the litter was cans; soft drink and
beer containers outnumbered all others four to one |

17 per cent was‘glass; throw~away bottles outnumbered
deposit or returnables five to one

28 per cent was paper; a s1gn1flcant percentage of
that was beer and soft drink container packaging.

The survey concluded that throw-away containers have
a 21 per cent greater chance of becomlng litter than deposit
or returnable contalners@ Although one-way bottles and cans
account for 55 per cent of the sales of soft drinks and beer
in Oregon, they account for 96 perycent of the container litter.

| Glassvand‘metal packaging present two of the worst
disposal problems, particularly when incinerators are used.
A typical situation where one ton«. of packaging material is
incinerated, a residue of 705 pounds remains; of this amount,
637 pounds or 90 per cent comes from glass and metal containers.

The Bureau of Mines claims that at the present rate
we are using aluminum, our supply will run out in 138 years.
My great grandchildren may hold as their‘most'precious and
valuable possession an all-aluminum beer or soda can. This
possibility strikes\avfrightening’note@‘ ,

Container manufacturers clalm.thelr products
contrlbute a relatlvely small percentage of solid waste to

our environment. kTheﬂpercentage is about 22 per cent;
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nevertheless, because glass and metal are nonabiédegradable,
they contribute 80 per cent of our‘permanent litter.

Last year alone this country spent $500 million to
clean up litter. Mr. David D. Dominick, Assistant Administrator
of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency, tells us
that we produce more than 4.3 billion tons of solid waste a
year and it increases at an annual rate of four to six per
cent. i ‘ “ D

Aside from the unsightlessness of litter along our
roadways, the costs of disposing of it, the added burden to
the taxpayers and the added pollution it contributes, we find
still other problems it causes.

Farmers in Oregon testified in supPOrt of the State's
ban on non-returnables. They said that litter along the
roadsides cOststhem.the lives of many livestock. The animals
would eat pieces of broken glass and metal which would become
lodgedvin their chest causing severe pain and finally killing
them. | o '

‘New Jersey is no exception. Mrs. Provissiero talked
to a local farmer in the Hightstown-East Windsor area and he
confirmed what the Oregon farmers had said. He also added
that he has had to throw out loads of feea,because glass and
metal particles had become ground in with it., The blades on
his machine have been torn up by glass and metal containers.
He concluded that there were about the roadside other forms
of litter, neVertheless; soft drink and beer containers
predgminated@ - - ‘ -

Small children suffer from cuts and bruises caused
by broken glasé and meﬁalﬂ We've seen children put their
fingers and tongues into the tops‘of flip-top cans and come
out with gashes. ' '

It might be cited by some who oppose this bill that
in 1953 the State of Vermont passed a bill banning one4way
bottles which was not successful. 1In fact, after four years,
the bill was deemed "not effective." A further look into

this bill would show why it inevitably failed.
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1. It banned only "malt alcoholic beverage
containers." , _ : :

2. Public awareness of ecoclogical problems in
1953 was relatively low. _ : |

3. Social problems of 1953 could not compare to the
problems we have in 1971. By this I refer to the encouragement
of industry to create a use-it-once and throw-it—-away society.

4. The malt alcoholic beverage companies started
packaging their products in cans.

I'd like to add here that it was due to increased
| public awareness that the State of Oregon was akle to pass
its ban on non-returnables. An overwhelming majority of
states have such bills pending as our Assembly Bill 2212.

Would this be possible if a sense of public awareness and
urgency were not prevalent? People are ecology minded today
out of necessity.. '

Container manufacturers would have, we the consumer,
bring our containers to redemption or recycling centers where
they would be melted down 'into new oneawéys@ ‘They cite surveys
that show returnables wind up as litter too. The price of
everything has increased greatly todéy@ Perhaps if there were
a proportionate increase in the deposit of containers, people
would be more likely to return their containers.

Perhaps it is time for industxry to begin sharing
some of the burden, to share a social obligation. The consumer
is over-taxed enough already, natural resources are over-taxed
and our minds are being over—taxed with concern about this
mass of garbage we're being buried in day by day.

Recylcing is not the whole answer. In my community
a group of concerned citizens supported five recycling
days. People were asked to bring glass. metal and paper
items to a specific point where the material would go to
cutlets that would recycle them. Some people did not participate
feeling that such programs were unrealistic; that unless there
were national or statewide bans on non-returnables, it would

"be purely idealistic to support recycling days.
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In summation, I would like to quote something
President Nixon said last year, and I qguote: "The 1970's
absolutely must be the yearswhen America pays its debt .
to. . . our living environment. It is literally now or
never. " . ' " ‘ ‘ .-
As a group of concerned, conscientious citizens, we
feel that the passage .of this bill is a major step in paying -
that debt. '

(Mrs. Provissiero's complete statement can be
found beginning on page 246.)

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Thank you very much. Assemblyman
Fay, do you have any questions?

.~ ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Do you think the ten-cent deposit -
is going to be that much of an impetus? Is that dime
going to stop a crass person from throwing an. empty bottle
or an empty can out of a window on to the park or the roadway?

MRS. MASTERSON: I think so. Because if you are
taking back, say., a six-pack of bottles,; that is 60 cents.

You can do a lot with 60 cents. A dime may not sound like
much, but when you consider the amount of soft drinks people
consume, it soon adds up. :

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: You really feel this would be
the panacea? » ' , i

MRS. MASTERSON: Yes, I do very strongly. |

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: And at the same time, you don't
feel the 60-cent deposit on a 6-pack of anything would.'":
be a burden to a poor family? .

MRS. MASTERSON: Of course, initially it is 60 cents,
but then you get it back. I think pecple understand you
would just be lending your 60 cents because you do get it . _
back when you take it back. And if you don't take it back, it .
is justyour own fault. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: You don't feel in the case of a
family_df four, living on $100 or $110 a week, that the 60 cents
for the Coke or the 60 cents for the beer would be a burden on
that family?
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'MRS. MASTERSON: If they understand that they get
that béck it should not be a burden. R

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK:  You mentioned a statement made
by PreSldent Nixon. Isn't it true that he also made the
statement that we could not emphasize ecology to the detrlment
of industry that had made this country as great as it is today?

| MRS. MASTERSON: I would say to that that it
seems that the taxpayer through municipal taxes is paying
for disposing of the materials that industry produces@ And
I cannot see how anyone could say that industry is doing us
a service by not fulfilling a social obligation in providing
for either the recycling or reuse or intelligent disposal of
materials that they produce and not letting .:this country be
clean - its air be clean - its water be clean. We are all
guilty of pollution in our own ways. But I believe that
industry has not as yet paid its full social obligation to
the people of this country.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Were you aware that thevPresident
made that statement?

MRS. MASTERSON: Yes, I was.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: . Several more questions: You
mentioned five hundred and some odd million dollars for
litter. What was your source on that figure?

‘ MRS. MASTERSON: Since I did not prepare this
paper, I will have to make a notation of that and ---

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: That's all right. I see here,
the figure $5,600,000 which was spent for Indiana's share.on
roadside litter. It mentlons a national study of roadside
litter. You don't know what study that was?

MRS&~MASTERSON: No, I do not. I can get that
lnformatlon for you. | |
_ ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: The gentleman behind you may
be able to answer. o

MR. GERSHMAN: I believe those are the figures
publlshed on the annual cost of lltter by Keep Amerlca
Beautiful. But w1thout 1nterjectlng my own th@ughty_I
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believe the litter index has fallen over the last two years.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Having been aware of the lack"
of success of the Pepsi Cola enterprise in Manhattan, you
still feel that the additional deposit concept is the solution?
MRS. MASTERSON: Yes, I do. '
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: How do you feel about the proposal
to recycle waste, let us say, by having it picked up by your
local garbage collection agency, as a solution?
- MRS. MASTERSON: A municipally-sponsored, communitywide,
curb-side pickup for recycling? ' ‘
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes.
MRS. MASTERSON: “Organizations such’as mine,have .seen
Scome ' peeple are willing to separate their garbage after a
lot of education in the community, but not all. The conscientious
do. ]
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I think the effort in Ohio is
one devoted to being able to take unseparated garbage and
‘process it straight through.
MRS. MASTERSON: ©Oh, the Black Clawson Plant.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Right. Do you think this offers
a reasonable solution of this problemé h
MRS. MASTERSON: Yes, I do.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you very much.
ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN:
Mrs. Elizabeth Kline, Communlty Air Pollution

e

Thank you very much.

Committee.

E L IZABETH KLINE: Geod‘afternoon, gentlemen.
Ihthank vou for continuing this hearing so we are able to
present our views oﬁ Bill 2212.

By way of identification, CAPCOM, The Community
Air Pollution Committee of Southern New Jersey is argroup
of environmentally concerned citizens from the‘seven counties
of Camden, Gloucester, Ocean, Atlantic, Cumberland, Salem,
and Cape May. Although we were originally incerperated to

deal with air pollutibn probleﬁs,‘we have broadened our
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scope to include problems of the total environment since
each segment is dependent upbn each of ﬁhe others.

| CAPCOM commends the Assembly sponéors of Bill 2212
for their basic concern about ourvenvironmént’and for the
initiative they have taken in formulating this bill. This
proposed law places New Jersey in a league of states very,
very small in number at this momént; which realizes that we
cannot continue to conduct our lives as we have been if we
intend to‘retain a positive quality of life for the long haul
ihtovthe future. Therefore, some very important values and
activities are being brought to the fore with Bill 2212 which
need examination and action. In’short, CAPCOM supports this
bill and would feel that a step forward had been taken if it
were passed. We see it as a small and necessary first step
but do not see it as a final cure for the problems it addresses.

Basically, Bill 2212 deals with a part of the solid
waste disposal problem. It provides a means of reducing
solid waste by making beverage containers’valuable items
that would not simply be thrown_gway,'either spontaneously
as litter or systematically as trash for our landfills and
incinerators. Good! Thi& is needed. Ifydontaimers were
worth a nickel apiece, it would offset the expense of
retrieving them along our roadsides”letc;, and since beverages
for home consumption are usually bought in quantity (six-pack,
etc.), families would be dealing not with individual nickels
but with groups of nickels totalling 30 cents or more.

Even our affluent society wOuld‘think twice about "throwing
away" this kind of money. |

I would like to speak now on recycling - remelting
versus reusing. | '

In assessing reaction to this bill, we are somewhat
puzzled by the industries' opposition. The advertised goal
of both the GlaSé Container Manufacturers Institute, repre-
senting glass bottle makers, and the Can People, representing
American, Continental,‘National,and Heekin, is to recycle
their cdntainérs.'léiil%ZZlZlispé‘recycling bill. oOn the
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surface it seems there should bevno'problemm‘ However, thére
is obviously a big problem and it revolves.very tightly i
around the meaning of the word "recyéleb"‘ This needs
examination and to discuss it we will limit ourselves at the
moment to glass. ' - '

Recycling to the glass industry means "remelting”
while to conservationists recycling means "reusing." This is
the important rub. Although either remelting or reusing depends
on collection of bottles, best facilitated at the moment by
deposit values, the industry is afraid that, once collected,
bottles will not fall into their remelting bins, but may
simply be reused. This is why they cannot support a bill
such as 2212, for it would lay the groundwork for bottles
to go in either direction or, worse to them, only the reuse
direction. Therefore, it is what 2212 does not say that
bothers the industry. As it stands, 2212 would not adversely
affect the industry. They are happily receiving glass
containers collected by volunteer trash recycling groups,b
remélting»them, making new bottles from them, and getting ‘
all the public relations points they can out of this activity.
Jobs are not being lost and consumers are not paying higher
prices for glass-contained commodities. This bill does not
propose to change any of this system activity. But it should.
And the industfy fears that the publié and government may
soon realize it.

To conservationists, once bottles are collected through
deposit value incentives, they can better and more economically
be reused than remelted. But, should this happen, the 4
manufacturers, etc. of the bottles would be cut Qut.of the
flow system and those people employed to remelt might be
unemployed. This, however, would be only temporary, for the
bottle fillers could easily employ these people to prepare the
bottles for refilling. It seems to us that the.glaSS
manufacturers are not concerned basically with people's jdbs
but the amount of produce and profit passing through their

hands. This doesn't sound so nice though, does it? It
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nonetheless needs to be realized and stated just that bluntly.
’ Taken simplistically, what the manufacturers
advocaté, if viewed in an>évery—day extreme,‘would wind up
looking like this scene: In every home in this Country
a family has finished eating dinner. The dishes are collected
ina pile in the kitchen. The children's milk glasses are
collected in another pile. And a third pile is made up of
knives, forks and spoons. But none of these things are washed
for reuse tomorrow. In'place of the sink, the kitchen is
equipped with a smasher-crusher, various ovens, and a supply
of molds. Mother takes the china and glasses, sméshes them
.all, remelts the piéces, pburs the liquid into molds, etc.,
etc., and when it is all finished she has a pile of nice clean
dishes and glasses from which to serve meals to her family
tomorrow. She, of course, does similar things with the
knives, forks and spoons.

Now many péople‘would find nothing wrong with this
scene. They might see it as exciting. New dishes every
day would bevvery nice, and if Johnny throws his glass of
milk at the wall and it breaks into a hundred pieces{ it
really‘wouldn“t‘matter since the pieces would be remelted
and remade. Nothing would be lost. And maybe Mommy could
even hire someone to help her with all the kitcheh work and,
thereby, provide a job for someone needing work.

~ Let's talk about natural resources.

In reality, a great, great deal would be lost. And,
here again, the industry and conservationists have different
meanings for the same teimo Natural resources to the
container indﬂstry means the materials from which their conta%mers
are made. However,; when conservatiohists speak of natural
resour@és, they are discuSsing energy, air, water, lahd, and the
materials that make up the containers. This is the most
fundamental layer of all the layers of the sclid waste disposal
problem. ) .» , o |

Lodking again at the hypothetical kitchen we just

discussed, we can see that some "water, soap and elbow grease
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would mlnlmalry use natural resources to ready dlshes for
another meal. However, when you start smashlng and’ remeltlng
and remolding, etc, =—-—-

| ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Excuse me, Mrs. Kline. How
many more pages do you have? . J ' ’

MRS. KLINE: Another page.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: . Could you summarlze it?

As far as testimony is concerned, we llmlt it. T extended
it to seven minutes. | j
| MRS. KLINE: I hadn't heard that. o

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: We have been limiting everyone
today so everyone would have an opportunity to testify.

MRS. KLINE: I am sorry. I hadn’'t heard that.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Some of the people representing
industry had longer statements also and we had a little friction,
but that is the rule. So if you could summarize that last
page, then we can ask you some questions.

MRS KLINE: Well, what I am basically'pointing out
is that to run all this machinery, which comes down also to
this central collectlon thing that a town mlght buy, we are
using power and energyb One truism is that all power pollutes
and the more power we continue to use, the more pollut;on
we will continue to have. ’ ‘ {

We have to consider: Where does the power and
energy come from? and it comes from mining and of f-shore
drilling and tankers and trucks and all sorts of things,
and ultimately our beautiful atomic energy plants. _

/ Therefore, I would point out that CAPCOM would

like to see this bill passed. We would like to see the "Rube
Goldberg Recycling Plan" of‘the container induétry shown

for what it is. R o \

We would like to see government draw upon the
hlgher attributes of humanlty than allow;ng them to take this
sloppy, easy life of throw—aways, whlch 1s Very easy for all
of us. ‘ ' B '

We would like onr'eleoted‘officiels and our
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Department of Environmental Protection to outlaw plastics
until some way is known to do something.with this stuff that
lies around forever. '

We would like to see a uniformity of container
sizes, shapes, and colors, so that the collecting will be
easier. , |

We would also like to see this extended to other
glass-contained things, like baby foods, mayonnaise, wvinegar,
etc., etc. ‘ |

With this testimony, I include a Flow Chart which
shows the comparative components involved in the Reuse versus
the Remelt Systems.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Do you have a copy of your
statement?

MRS, KLINE: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: The whole statement will
be_included in the record.

(On the following pages are the portions of
Mrs. Kline's statement which she did not
read and the Flow Charts she referred to.)
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& greab, grest deal woula be losbe. . And, here ,
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